
Lancashire County Council

Executive Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday, 17th January, 2017 at 2.00 pm in Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of 
Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston 

Agenda

Part I (Open to Press and Public)

No. Item

1. Apologies  

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary 
Interests  
Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary or Non-
pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to the 
meeting in relation to matters under consideration on 
the Agenda.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016  (Pages 1 - 6)

4. Reports for decision by Cabinet  

(a) The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire 
County Council - Year Ended 31 March 2016  

(Pages 7 - 30)

(b) Money Matters - The Financial Strategy  (Pages 31 - 126)

(c) Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000: 
Annual Report to Cabinet  

(Pages 127 - 194)

5. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key 
Decisions  

(a) Adult Social Care Fee Uplifts - 2017/18  (Pages 195 - 200)

(b) Schools Budget 2017/18  (Pages 201 - 214)

(c) The University of Central Lancashire 
Masterplan and Associated Highway 
Modifications  

(Pages 215 - 220)



(d) Procurement Report - Request for Approval to 
Commence Procurement Exercises  

(Pages 221 - 228)

6. Urgent Business  
An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member's intention to 
raise a matter under this heading.

7. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting of the Executive Scrutiny Committee 
will be held on Tuesday 31 January 2017 at 2pm at the 
County Hall, Preston.

8. Exclusion of Press and Public  
The Committee is asked to consider whether, under 
Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, it 
considers that the public should be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of 
business on the grounds that there would be a likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
appropriate paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act, 1972, as indicated against the 
heading to the item.

Part II (Not Open to Press and Public)

9. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key 
Decisions  

(a) Chorley Youth Zone - County Council Grant  (Pages 229 - 240)

(b) Provision of PAT Testing Services to 
Lancashire County Council  

(Pages 241 - 246)

I Young
Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services 

County Hall
Preston



Lancashire County Council 

Executive Scrutiny Committee 

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 6th December, 2016 at 3.30 pm in 
Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston 

 
 
Present:  

 
County Councillor Bill Winlow (Chair) 

 
County Councillors 

 
A Atkinson 
A Barnes 
Mrs S Charles 
D Clifford 
B Dawson 

G Driver 
S Holgate 
K Iddon 
J Oakes 
D O'Toole 

 
It was reported that County Councillor Keith Iddon had replaced County 
Councillor Michael Green at this meeting. 

 
1. Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors N Penney and S 
Perkins. 

 
2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary Interests 

 
None. 

 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2016 

 
Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2016 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair. 

 
4. Reports for decision by Cabinet 

 
The Committee considered a number of reports to be presented for decision by 
Cabinet on 8 December 2016, as follows: 

 
a. Pan Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Governance Arrangements 

 
The Committee considered a report on work undertaken to move to a new model 
of Health and Wellbeing Board governance, in the form of a single Health and 
Wellbeing Board for Lancashire, with five local area health and wellbeing 
partnerships, reflecting the local area health economies across Lancashire. 

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made. 

 
b. Money Matters - 2016/17 Financial Position and Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 
 
The Committee considered a report which provided an update of the forecast 
outturn Financial Position for 2016/17 on revenue and capital as at 30 September 
2016, and the County Council's updated Medium Term Financial Strategy for the 
period 2016/17 to 2020/21 including some additional efficiency savings for the 
County Council. 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made. 

 
5. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key Decisions 

 
The Committee considered the following reports on Key Decisions due to be 
taken by individual Cabinet Members as indicated: 

 
a. Securing the Healthy Child Programme 

 
It was reported and noted that this item had been withdrawn. 

 
b. The Future of Ashton Community Science College's Post 16 

Provision 
 
The Committee considered a report to be presented to the Cabinet Member for 
Children, Young People and Schools on the future of Ashton Community Science 
College's post 16 provision. 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Children, 
Young People and Schools be noted and that no additional comments or 
suggested alternative recommendations be made. 

 
c. Assessment and Priority Policy for Public Transport in Lancashire 

 
The Committee considered a report to be presented to the Cabinet Member for 
Highways and Transport on the proposed introduction of an Assessment and 
Priority Policy for Public Transport Services in Lancashire. 

 
The report also recommended the extension of the existing tendered bus service 
network for a further 12 months until 31 March 2018 to allow more time to 
examine and evaluate potential alternative public transport solutions, and to allow 
Parish/Community groups to consider their options for service delivery. 

  

Page 2



Resolved: That the recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport be noted and that no additional comments or suggested alternative 
recommendations be made. 

 
d. Proposed Junction Improvements - Blackpool Road/Lea Road 

Preston 
 
The Committee considered a report to be presented to the Cabinet Member for 
Highways and Transport on the proposed provision of crossing facilities on all 
four arms of the Blackpool Road/Lea Road junction in Preston. 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport be noted and that no additional comments or suggested alternative 
recommendations be made. 

 
e. Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence 

Procurement Exercises 
 
The Committee considered a report to be presented to the Leader of the Council 
and to the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services on the proposed 
commencement of three procurement exercises for: 

 
(i) The provision of Agency Staff Neutral Vendor Managed Service; 
(ii) The supply and distribution of Groceries, Frozen Foods, Soft Drinks and 

Confectionery; and 
(iii) The provision of Reablement Services 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations to the Leader of the Council and to the 
Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services be noted and that no 
additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be made. 

 
6. Urgent Business 

 
None. 

 
7. Date of Next Meeting 

 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Tuesday, 
17 January 2017 at 2pm, County Hall, Preston. 

 
8. Exclusion of Press and Public 

 
Resolved: - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public should be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business on the grounds that there would be a likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in the appropriate paragraphs of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972 and that in all circumstances of 
the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

  

Page 3



 
9. Report for Decision by Cabinet 

 
The Committee considered the following report to be presented for decision by 
Cabinet on 8 December 2016: 

 
a. Cuerden Strategic Site Development 

 
(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information) 

 
The Committee considered an update report on proposals to bring forward the 
development of the Cuerden Strategic Regional Investment Site. 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to Cabinet be noted 
and that no additional comments or suggested alternative recommendations be 
made. 

 
10. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key Decisions 

 
The Committee considered the following reports on Key Decisions due to be 
taken by individual Cabinet Members as indicated: 

 
a. Disposal of Winckley Square properties 

 
(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information) 

 
The Committee considered a report to be presented to the Deputy Leader of the 
Council on the proposed disposal of properties in the Winckley Square area of 
Preston. 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to the Deputy Leader 
of the Council be noted and that no additional comments or suggested alternative 
recommendations be made. 

 
b. Disposal of the former Moor Lane Resource Centre, Moor Lane, 

Preston 
 
(Not for Publication – Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information) 

  

Page 4



The Committee considered a report to be presented to the Deputy Leader of the 
Council on the proposed disposal of the former Moor Lane Resources Centre, 
Moor Lane, Preston. 

 
Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report to the Deputy Leader 
of the Council be noted and that no additional comments or suggested alternative 
recommendations be made. 

 
 
 
 

I Young 
Director of Governance, Finance 
and Public Services 

 
County Hall 
Preston 

  

Page 5



Page 6



Report to the Cabinet
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 19 January 2017

Report of the External Auditor 

Electoral Division affected:
None

The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council – Year Ended 31 March 
2016
 (Appendix 'A' refers) 

Contact for further information: 
Karen Murray, Tel: 0161 234 6364, Director, Grant Thornton
Karen.L.Murray@uk.gt.com

Executive Summary

The report sets out the external auditor's Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Recommendation

Cabinet is asked to note the key messages set out in the Annual Audit Letter for 
Lancashire County Council for the year ended 31 March 2016 as set out at 
Appendix 'A'. 

Background and Advice 

The Annual Audit Letter summarises the key findings arising from the work that 
Grant Thornton, the County Council's external auditor, has carried out at Lancashire 
County Council for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Letter is intended to communicate key messages to the Council and external 
stakeholders, including members of the public.  The eternal auditor's annual work 
programme, which includes nationally prescribed and locally determined work, has 
been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that was issued in April 2016 and 
was conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice, 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) and other guidance issued by 
the Audit Commission. 

The Annual Audit Letter will be considered by the County Council's Audit and 
Governance Committee on 30 January 2017.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a

mailto:Karen.L.Murray@uk.gt.com


Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

No significant risks have been identified. 

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None  

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 8



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016

The Annual Audit Letter

for Lancashire County Council and 

Lancashire County Pension Fund 

Year ended 31 March 2016

Caroline Stead
Senior Manager 
T 0161 234 6355 
E caroline.l.stead@uk.gt.com

Marianne Dixon 
Manager 
T 0113 242 7386
E marianne.dixon@uk.gt.com

Ian Pinches 
Assistant Manager
T 0161 234 6359 
E ian.m.pinches@uk.gt.com

October 2016

Karen Murray 
Director 
T 0161 234 6364 
E karen.l.murray@uk.gt.com

Appendix  'A'

P
age 9



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive summary 3

2. Audit of the accounts 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 13

4. Working with the Council 18

Appendices

A Reports issued and fees

P
age 10



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 3

Executive summary

Purpose of this letter

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 

work that we have carried out at Lancashire County Council (the Council) for the 

year ended 31 March 2016.

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to the 

Council and its external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to draw 

to the attention of the public.  In preparing this letter, we have followed the 

National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and  Auditor 

Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'.

We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit and 

Governance Committee as those charged with governance in our Audit Findings 

Report on 26 September.

Our responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit 

Practice, which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act 2014 (the Act). Our key responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council's financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's  arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 

three).

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we comply with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the 

NAO.

Our work

Financial statements opinion

We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 28 

September 2016.

Value for money conclusion

We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 

31 March 2016 except for

• The Council has received an inadequate Ofsted inspection of its children's 

services. 

• The work of internal audit has been insufficient to provide an opinion on the 

overall system of internal control at the Council.  

We therefore qualified our value for money conclusion in our  audit  opinion on 28 

September 2016.

P
age 11



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 4

Whole of government accounts 

We completed work on the Council's consolidation return following guidance 

issued by the NAO and issued an unqualified report on 29 September 2016.

Certificate

We are unable to issue our certificate of completion of the audit. We cannot 

formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed 

our consideration of matters arising from 2012/13.  

Working with the Council

We have worked with you to move towards the early close of the accounts.  You 

have plans to close your accounts earlier in 2016/17.  We have worked with you to 

bring our work forward and will continue to do so during 2016/17. 

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

October 2016

P
age 12



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 5

Audit of  the accounts

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council's accounts, we use the concept of materiality to 

determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in evaluating the results 

of our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial 

statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or 

influence their economic decisions. 

Council

We determined materiality for our audit of the Council's accounts to be £32m, 

which is 1.5% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this 

benchmark, as in our view, users of the Council's accounts are most interested in 

how it has spent the income it has raised from taxation and grants during the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality for certain areas such as senior 

officer remuneration, auditors remuneration and transactions with related parties.

We set a lower threshold of £1.6m, above which we reported errors to the Audit 

and Governance Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

Pension Fund

For the audit of the Lancashire Pension Fund accounts, we determined materiality 

to be £58.3m, which is 1% of the Fund's net assets. We used this benchmark, as in 

our view, users of the Pension Fund accounts are most interested in the value of 

assets available to fund pension benefits.

We set a lower level of specific materiality for certain areas such as auditors 

remuneration and transactions with related parties. We set a threshold of £ £2.9m  

above which we reported errors to the Audit and Governance Committee.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining enough evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are 

free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 

This includes assessing whether: 

• the Council's accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently 

applied and adequately disclosed; 

• significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.

We also read the narrative report and annual governance statement to check 

they are consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the accounts 

on which we give our opinion.

We carry out our audit in line with ISAs (UK and Ireland) and the NAO Code 

of Audit Practice. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's 

business and is risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response 

to these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 13



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 6

Audit of  the accounts – the Council

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue 
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue. 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at  Lancashire 
County Council and Lancashire Pension Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 
recognition can be rebutted, because:
• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and
• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Lancashire County Council, mean that all 

forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

There were no matters to report

Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  
management  over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

We have: 

• undertaken a review of entity level controls 

• tested of journal entries

• reviewed the accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by management

• reviewed unusual significant transactions

There were no significant matters to report

Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment  - in respect of the 
waste plants owned by the Council.  

As part of our audit work we:

• discussed the timeline of the plans with officers. 

• reviewed the information shared with the Council's external valuers setting out the impact of these plans on 
the service and therefore the Council's valuations for the sites

• assessed the information used by the valuer to value the assets and the qualifications of the valuer in making 
the valuations required. 

• reviewed the valuation report and discussed with management how this would be accounted for in the 
financial statements

We concluded the valuation was materially correctly stated. We reported our findings to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

P
age 14



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 7

Audit of  the accounts – the Council

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk

Valuation of pension fund net liability We undertook the following audit work:

• identified the controls put in place by management to ensure the pension fund liability is not materially misstated. 

• assessed whether these controls were implemented as expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the 
risk of material misstatement.

• reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your pension fund valuation. 

• gained an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried out.

• undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made. 

• reviewed the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the financial 
statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

There were no matters to report

Social care income and expenditure  We undertook the following audit work: 

• identified the controls in place in the system 

• completed walkthrough testing of the controls to confirm they operate as we understand 

• sample tested transactions processed through the system during the year

• reviewed the processes for identifying year end accruals of income and expenditure

• sample tested year end balances for accruals of income and expenditure.   

There were no significant matters to report 

Employee remuneration accruals understated
(Remuneration expenses not correct)

We undertook the following audit work: 

• documented our understanding of the processes and key controls over the payroll transaction cycle

• Completed walkthrough testing of the key controls to assess the whether they were operating in line with our 
understanding

• reviewed the reconciliation of payroll expenditure recorded in the general ledger to the subsidiary systems and 
interfaces.

• sample tested payroll transactions.

• Performed a trend analysis of monthly payroll costs. 

There were no matters to report

P
age 15



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 8

Audit of  the accounts – the Council

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk

Creditors understated or not recorded in the
correct period
(Operating expenses understated)

We undertook the following audit work:

• documented our understanding of processes and key controls over the operating expenditure transaction cycle

• performed walkthrough of the key controls to assess the whether those controls were operating in line with our 
understanding

• substantively tested  a sample of expenditure transactions

• reviewed  managements processes to raise accruals and to ensure the accruals recognised are materially complete.

• substantively tested a sample of creditor balances and accruals recognised in the year end balance sheet.

• tested cash payments made after the year-end to identify potential unrecorded liabilities and gain assurance over the 
completeness of the payables balance in the accounts.

There were no significant matters to report

P
age 16



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 9

Audit of  the accounts – Pension Fund 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK&I)240 there is a presumed risk that revenue 
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue. 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 
concludes that there is no risk of material misstat ement 
due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA(UK&I)240 and the nature of the revenue streams at Lancashire 
County Pension Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be 
rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited due to clear separation of duties between the 

Fund, fund managers, and  custodian ; and
• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Lancashire County Council as the 

administering authority, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

There were no matters to report

Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA(UK&I)240 it is presumed  that the risk of  
management  over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

In line with our plan we:

• reviewed entity-level controls 

• reviewed journal controls and tested a sample of journal entries

• reviewed accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by management

• reviewed any unusual significant transactions

There were no matters to report

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the audit of the pension fund. 

P
age 17



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 10

Audit of  the accounts – Pension Fund 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk

Level 3 Investments

Fair value measurements priced using inputs not bas ed on 
observable market data not correct. - Valuation is i ncorrect 
(Valuation Net)

Under ISA(UK&I)315 significant risks often relate to significant 
non-routine transactions and judgemental matters.  Level 3 
investments by their very nature require a significant degree of 
judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at year end.

• carried out walkthrough tests of the system processes and controls..

• tested a sample of  individual  investments valuations by obtaining and reviewing the latest audited accounts 
for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date. Reconciliation of those 
values to the values at 31 March with reference to known movements in the intervening period. 

• reviewed the qualifications of fund managers and custodian as experts able to value the level 3 investments 
at year end and gain an understanding of how  the valuation of these investments has been reached.

There were no matters to report

Investment Income 

Investment  activity not valid (Occurrence/Valuatio n)
Investment income not  correct (Accuracy)

We undertook the following audit work:

• updated and documented our understanding of processes and key controls for investment transactions

• Performed walkthrough of the key controls to assess whether those controls operated in line with our 
understanding

• for investments held by fund managers, reviewed reconciliation between  the custodian , fund managers,  
and  Pension Fund  following up any significant variance and gain appropriate explanations/evidence for 
these.

• for a sample of  direct property investments, rationalised  income against expected rental income.

There were no matters to report

Investment purchases and sales 

Investment activity not valid
(Occurrence/Valuation) 

We undertook the following audit work:

• reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the custodian and the Pension 
Fund's own records and seek explanations for variances

• tested a sample of purchases and sales to ensure  these are appropriately recorded

There were no matters to report

P
age 18



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 11

Audit of  the accounts – Pension Fund 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk

Fair value measurements priced using inputs (other than 
quoted prices from active markets for identical 
investments) that are observable either directly or  indirectly 
not correct

Valuation is incorrect. (Valuation net)

• reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the custodian and the Pension 
Fund's own records and seek explanations for variances

• tested a sample of these investments to independent information from custodian/manager on units and on 
unit prices where the custodian does not provide independent pricing confirmation

• for direct property investments, agreed values in total to the valuer's report and taken steps to gain reliance 
on the valuer as an expert. 

There were no matters to report

Contributions

Recorded contributions not correct (Occurrence)

� performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-year controls were operating in accordance with our 
documented understanding.

� carried out controls testing over  completeness accuracy and  occurrence of contributions

� Rationalised contributions received with reference to changes in member body payrolls and numbers of 
contributing pensioners and ensured that any unexpected trends were satisfactorily explained.

There were no matters to report

Benefits payable

Benefits improperly computed/claims liability unders tated 
(Completeness, accuracy and occurrence)

� performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-year controls were operating in accordance with our 
documented understanding.

� Controls testing over completeness, accuracy and occurrence of benefit payments.

� Rationalised pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner numbers and increases applied in the year 
and ensured  that any unusual trends were satisfactorily explained.

There were no matters to report

Member data

Member data not correct. (Rights and Obligations)

� performed a walkthrough to gain assurance that the in-year controls were operating in accordance with our 
documented understanding. 

� Performed controls testing over annual/monthly reconciliations and verifications with individual members

� Tested a sample of changes to member data made during the year to source documentation.

There were no matters to report

P
age 19



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 12

Audit of  the accounts

Audit opinion

We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's accounts on 28 September 2016, 

in advance of the 30 September 2016 national deadline.

The Council made the accounts available for audit in line with the agreed 

timetable, and provided a good set of working papers to support them. The 

finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the course 

of the audit.

Issues arising from the audit of the Council's accounts

We reported the key issues from our audit of the accounts to the Council's Audit 

and Governance Committee on 26 September 2016. 

Pension fund accounts 

We also reported the key issues from our audit of accounts of the Pension Fund 

hosted by the Council  to the Council's Audit and Governance Committee on 26 

September 2016. 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are also required to review the Council and Pension Fund Annual Governance 

Statements and Narrative Reports. It publishes them on its website with the draft 

accounts in line with the national deadlines. 

The documents were prepared in line with the relevant guidance and were 

consistent with  the supporting evidence provided by the Council and with our 

knowledge of the Council

Other statutory duties 

We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers to 

issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the 

Court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give 

electors the opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and to 

raise objections received in relation to the accounts.

We have not used these powers in 2015/16. 

P
age 20



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 13

Value for Money conclusion

Background

We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice 

(the Code), following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2015 which 

specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources 

to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

Key findings

Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 

identify the key risks where we concentrated our work.

The key risks we identified and the work we performed are set out in table 2 

overleaf.

As part of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in September 2016, 

we agreed a recommendation to address our findings, that a full internal audit plan 

should be delivered in 2016/17.  

Overall VfM conclusion

We are satisfied that, in all significant respects, except for the matters we identified 

below, the Council had proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2016.

The areas where we identified the Council did not have proper arrangements in 

place were as follows:

• The Council has received an inadequate Ofsted inspection of its children's 

services. 

• The work of internal audit has been insufficient to provide an opinion on the 

overall system of internal control at the Council.  

P
age 21



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 14

Value for Money 
Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusio ns

Ofsted inspection of 
children's services
Ofsted issued a report on 
the Council's children's 
services in 2015 which 
rated these as 'inadequate'. 
The Council is currently 
subject to follow up review. 

We liaised with officers and review 
updates as they become available.  

The Council's Children's Services were subject to an Ofsted inspection in 2015. The report, published on 27 
November 2015 assessed the aspects of the service as follows: 

• Children who need help and protection - inadequate 
• Children looked after and achieving permanence - requires improvement
• Adoption performance - requires improvement, 
• Experiences and progress of care leavers – inadequate,
• Leadership, Management and governance - inadequate. 

The report identified wide ranging areas for improvement across the service with concerns raised around the 
failure of the Council to work with other key agencies in strategy discussions, risk assessments being 
undertaken without reference to, or knowledge of, significant history, complex work assigned to insufficiently 
qualified or experienced practitioners, and a lack of effective management oversight. The inspection also 
identified that performance management information was very poor, providing insufficient information to 
provide management and members with the right information to hold the service to account.  

The Council has responded quickly to the report and subsequent Improvement Notice issued by Ofsted. An 
Improvement Board was set up with an Independent Chair. The chair has the responsibility to develop an 
Improvement Plan which was subsequently agreed with Ofsted. An interim Director of Children's Services, 
shared with Blackburn with Darwen Council, is now in place.  

The Improvement Board meets on a monthly to consider the progress against the improvement plan, with an 
"improvement board 12 week plan" being considered at each meeting. This 12 week plan provides focus to 
three key areas identified for improvement – workforce, managing change and managing demand.   Multi-
agency focus groups have also been established to identify key issues and barriers to better working practice.  
The feedback to the improvement board is that communication and information sharing is an area for 
improvement. 

Progress is being made in a number of areas. In particular, the Council has worked to address the challenges 
in recruitment of staff (with agency staff currently being used to reduce workloads), accuracy of performance 
information, and the implementation of a new operating model. However, at the time of this  report, the current 
version of the progress plan notes feedback from both Ofsted and the Department for Education indicates the 
pace of progress needs to be faster.  At the start of September Ofsted visited the Council again for a follow 
up. The feedback from this visit was published on the Ofsted website on the 3 October 2016.  In this 
Inspectors recognised the increase in the pace of change to improve services for children and young people 
in Lancashire.  Further work needs to be carried out to embed good practice and to ensure that services are 
delivered consistently.  

P
age 22



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 15

Value for Money 
Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions

Internal control 
The Council's Head of Internal Audit was 
unable to provide an overall opinion on the 
Council's system of internal control in 
2014/15 because of the limited nature of 
the internal audit plan. 
In 2015/16, the Council's internal audit 
plan focuses work on key financial 
systems. It is therefore unlikely that the 
Head of Internal Audit will be able to 
provide an overall opinion again for this 
year.     

There is an outline plan in place for 
2016/17 which identifies key areas of audit 
coverage. If this plan is refined and 
delivered as expected, it is likely that the 
Head of Internal Audit will be able to reach 
a conclusion on the Council's system of 
internal control. 

We update our assessment of the Council's 
arrangements in the light of the year end report from 
the Head of Internal Audit and the Annual 
Governance Statement.   

At the Audit and Governance Committee on 9 May 2016 the Head of Internal 
Audit reported that the audit plan for 2015/16 would concentrate on the following 
financial systems: 
• general financial ledger
• cash and banking 
• accounts payable system 
• accounts receivable and debt management system 
• payroll 
• treasury management and 
• VAT

The work planned by internal audit for the year was insufficient to support an 
overall opinion on the internal control framework of the Council.  

The planned work on the general financial ledger, accounts payable, payroll and 
VAT was completed and reported to the May committee meeting. The remaining 
work was scheduled for after the end of the financial year because members of 
the audit team were seconded into the finance service to provide capacity on 
key projects during 2015 and the early part of 2016. As a result, the work on 
cash and banking, accounts receivable, and treasury management was 
completed following the end of the financial year.  As at 7 September 2016 the 
cash and banking report was still at draft stage. 

The draft  Annual Governance Statement presented to members at the Audit 
and Governance committee held on 30 June 2016 recognises the internal audit 
service has not been able to deliver a plan which would support an overall 
opinion for 2015/16 and acknowledges that the work delivered by internal audit 
has not been sufficient in scope for a Council the size and complexity of 
Lancashire County Council.  

Looking ahead, the Audit and Governance Committee has approved a plan for 
2016/17 which includes a fuller programme of work.  This has been designed to 
support an overall head of internal audit opinion for 2016/17.   Internal audit 
have begun to recruit to the new structure to support delivery of this plan 

P
age 23



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 16

Value for Money 
Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusio ns

Financial 
position, 
planning  and 
service 
transformation 
projects
The Council's 
financial plan has 
been refreshed 
throughout the 
year in recognition 
of the significant 
financial 
challenge facing 
the Council in 
delivering good 
quality services 
for residents and 
taxpayers over 
the medium term. 

The plan requires 
significant savings 
to be made over 
the next few 
years. 
Consultation has 
now begun on 
some of the 
changes being 
made to the 
scope and scale 
of services to be 
provided. 

We will review the project 
management and risk 
assurance frameworks 
established by the Council in 
respect of the more significant 
projects, to establish how the 
Council is identifying, 
managing and monitoring 
these risks.

The Council faces a significant financial challenge in the short to medium term. A significant amount of work is needed to 
understand the level of service that can be provided within the budget available, and then to make a reality of this delivery. 

In November 2015, the Council set out the scale of the financial challenges facing it in the update to the medium term financial
strategy. When Cabinet received the updated medium term financial strategy it out that significant savings were needed as a 
funding gap of £262m over the five years to 2020/21 has been identified. At this stage, an overspend of £19.666m was also 
forecast for 2015/16. In the update taken to members in January 2016, as part of the budget setting council meeting, the in 
year overspend was forecast at £9.581m against the revenue outturn for 2015/16 but a further on-going pressure on budgets 
of £35.766m was identified. The Council was now reporting a funding gap of £200.5m for the period 2016/17 - 2020/21 after 
the impact of the financial settlement, new financial pressures and the £64.8m of savings proposals agreed by Cabinet in 
November.  In September this funding gap has reduced to £147.944m, reflected in the change in council tax funding 
assumptions.  

At the end of 2015/16, the Council had successfully delivered within it's planned revenue budget. The final outturn position 
reported to members was £726.074m compared with a revenue budget of £726.675m set in   February 2015. The final 
position, which is an overall underspend of £0.6m on services reflects a mixed picture across the Council's services. For 
example, there are overspends of £16.977m in adult services (largely relating to commissioned social care), £1.379m in 
children's services (where a significant overspend on Children's social care- £9.570m has been offset by other underspends), 
and £2.939m in commissioning, and £4.107m in development and corporate services. However, there was an underspend of 
£22.070m in Chief Executives, of which the most significant elements were higher than budgeted interest received and a lower 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge. The reduction in MRP was partly due to lower than anticipated borrowing but also 
reflects the change in MRP policy agreed at Council on 11 February 2016.  At the end of the financial year, the Council had 
£36m in the County Fund (unchanged from 2014/15) and £364.5m in earmarked revenue reserves (£376.1m in 2014/15). 

Despite the underspend in 2015/16, the Council knows that urgent action must be taken to reduce medium term funding gap 
through its transformation programme. This programme will drive radical change to the way services are provided. As part of 
this, the Council's base budget review is designed to identify the services the Council will provide. A key element of this is 
Council's property strategy and the Council has now consulted on detailed plans about how it will use its asset base to deliver 
services in future years. The proposal identified 130 premises preferred for retention as neighbourhood centres, with a further 
106 premises  identified for closure. 

The Council is working with external consultants to assess the future operating model for the Council and to test the financial 
resilience of future service plans. Additionally, external support is also being used to support plans for transformation of the
delivery of social care.    

The Council's risk register clearly documents the risks to the on-going financial position, the longer term financial viability and 
the risks around transformation. 

P
age 24



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 17

Value for Money 
Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusio ns

Waste plant
In February 2016 the executive scrutiny 
committee considered a report on the 
proposed waste processing requirements 
and specification for services delivered by 
Global Renewables Lancashire 
Operations Limited (GRLOL).  This 
recommended that elements of the plant 
were closed with immediate effect or by 
the end of the financial year 2015/16. 

On further discussion with officers, we 
understand the planned timetable for 
operational mothballing these assets 
stretches beyond the timescale agreed by 
members.  We are also concerned that, as 
part of the decision making process, the 
impact on the valuation of the assets was 
not considered.  

We have reviewed the decision 
making process the Council 
followed to understand that 
members considered all relevant 
information to make their 
decision. 

Over recent years, the Council has been looking at ways to reduce the costs of waste disposal 
provided at two facilities in Lancashire. As part of the wider consideration of budget options in 
November 2015, a policy was agreed to reduce the processing activities and costs at the two plants 
as these were no longer considered to economic. Where this occurred, the plant and equipment 
was to be mothballed and maintained. As part of this decision, the service would cease composting 
of co-mingled food and garden waste. Alongside this was a commitment to downsize the waste 
company operating the facilities on behalf of the Council.  

Following this decision, the service options were considered in more detail.  The recommendations 
made to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural Services included that:
• waste transfer operations were established for residual waste,
• In Vessel Composting processes ceased with immediate effect
• redundant processing equipment be protected and preserved; and 
• a new operating structure with the Council be agreed by GRLOL.  

This decision was taken on the basis of the lowest cost, lowest risk option, which at the time was to 
divert the residual waste to landfill. However, further discussion with contract holders for the waste 
output identified some options to use existing relationships to provide a lower specification output. 
As a result, some elements of the original service provision continue although on a reduced scale. 

Following our audit plan, the Audit and Governance committee requested and received a report on 
the decision taken and the financial impact.  

The plans for the downsizing of the company are continuing. This is expected to lead to a greatly 
reduced workforce at the company. 

The Council is committed to exploring the options for the future use of the two facilities and the 
equipment currently being preserved. A soft market testing exercise has been commenced but is 
not yet concluded so the longer term viability of the sites is unclear.  

The Council has discussed with its external valuer whether the changes in the service provision 
currently agreed impact on the carrying value of the assets.  We received a draft of this on the 2 
September 2016. 

P
age 25



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 18

Value for Money 
Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions

Better care fund 
The Council has entered into a Section 75 
agreement with local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs). This has 
created pooled budgets for the delivery of 
certain schemes.    

We have reviewed the arrangements for ensuring 
the governance of the Better Care Fund.   

There are appropriate governance structures in place for the delivery of the 
Better Care Fund across Lancashire. The Lancashire Health and Wellbeing 
Board (HWB) takes overall accountability for the implementation of the Better 
Care Fund, and is supported by the BCF Steering Group, which reports directly 
to the HWB and manages the delivery of the BCF schemes. The Steering 
Group's aims are to review progress against the plan, scrutinise performance 
and finances and report by exception to the HWB. 

There is also a Programme Managers group, which is responsible at a local 
level for the delivery of the Better Care Fund. Within its terms of reference the 
group is also responsible for the submission of quarterly performance reports for 
use by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Meetings are held frequently and there is representation from NHS England, 
district councils and the third sector. The groups appear to be an effective forum  
for working through specific issues together. 

There has however  been a lack of financial monitoring and performance reports 
in relation to the Better Care Fund within both the Steering Group and the 
Programme Managers Group. This has been recognised  by both groups and is 
expected to be addressed  early in 2016/17. Quarterly performance/spend 
returns are produced for NHS England but these are at a very high level and do 
not assess whether desired outcomes are being achieved.  There is a risk 
register which is brought to the Programme Managers' Group for review, but 
members of this group have recognised that more consideration of risks needs 
to be given by them. 

Over the medium term, the five year Sustainability and Transformation plans 
being developed for the wider health economy will need to be supported by 
strongly defined and clear governance arrangements.  Work is on-going to 
agree the appropriate arrangements to support this. Clarity over the detailed 
reporting and monitoring arrangements at the outset will be a key requirement 
of these new arrangements. 

P
age 26



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 19

Working with the Council

Our work with you in 2015/16

We are really pleased to have worked with you  over the past year. We 

have established a positive and constructive relationship. Together we 

have delivered some great outcomes. 

An efficient audit – we delivered the accounts audit x days before the 

deadline and in line with the timescale we agreed with you. Our audit team 

are knowledgeable and experienced in your financial accounts and systems. 

Our relationship with your team provides you with a financial statements 

audit that continues to finish ahead of schedule releasing your finance 

team for other important work. 

Understanding your operational health – through the value for money 

conclusion we provided you with assurance on your operational 

effectiveness. We highlighted the need for you to continue to deliver your 

improvement plan in response to your Ofsted inspection and the 

importance of delivering a full internal audit plan in 2016/17. 

Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit and governance 

committee updates covering best practice.  Areas we covered included:

Innovation in public financial management, Knowing the Ropes – Audit 

Committee; Effectiveness Review, Making devolution work, Reforging

local government. 

We have  also shared with you our insights on advanced closure of local 

authority accounts, in our publication "Transforming the financial 

reporting of local authority accounts" and will continue to provide you 

with our insights as you  bring forward your production of your year-end 

accounts.

Providing training – we provided your teams with training on financial 

accounts and early close of the accounts in 2017/18.  The courses were 

attended by members of your finance team.  

P
age 27



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 20

Working with the Council

Working with you in 2016/17

Highways Network Asset 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code) requires 

authorities to account for Highways Network Asset (HNA) at depreciated 

replacement cost (DRC) from 1 April 2016. The Code sets out the key 

principles but also requires compliance with the requirements of the 

recently published Code of Practice on the Highways Network Asset (the 

HNA Code), which defines the assets or components that will comprise the 

HNA. This includes roads, footways, structures such as bridges, street 

lighting, street furniture and associated land. These assets should always 

have been recognised within Infrastructure Assets. 

The Code includes transitional arrangements for the change in asset 

classification and the basis of measurement from depreciated historic cost 

(DHC) to DRC under which these assets  will be separated from other 

infrastructure assets, which will continue to be measured at DHC.

This is expected to have a significant impact on the Council's 2016/17 

accounts, both in values and levels of disclosure, and may require 

considerable work to establish the opening inventory and condition of the 

HNA as at 1 April 2016.

Under the current basis of accounting values will only have been recorded 

against individual assets or components acquired after the inception of 

capital accounting for infrastructure assets by local authorities.  Authorities 

may therefore have to develop new accounting records to support the 

change in classification and valuation of the HNA. 

The nature of these changes means that Finance officers will need to work closely 

with colleagues in the highways department and potentially also to engage other 

specialists to support this work.

Some of the calculations are likely to be complex and will involve the use of 

external models, a combination of national and locally generated rates and a 

number of significant estimates and assumptions.

We have been working with the Council on the accounting, financial reporting 

and audit assurance implications arising from these changes. We have issued two 

Client Briefings which we have shared with your capital team. We will issue 

further briefings during the coming year to update the Council on key 

developments and emerging issues.

This significant accounting development is likely to be a significant risk for our 

2016/17 audit, so we have already had some preliminary discussions with the 

Council to assess the progress it is making in this respect. Our discussions with 

Council Officers to date has highlighted the following: 

• The Council understands the requirements of the Code and the finance team 

are working with your highways team to ensure sufficient information is 

available to support the disclosures in the accounts.  

• We have agreed to undertake early work on the processes undertaken to 

calculate the opening balances in the 2016/17 statement of accounts.  This 

will include understanding the systems and processes in place to capture the 

information  

• The timescales and amount of information required will be challenging for 

your team.  

P
age 28



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016 21

Appendix A: Reports issued and fees

Fees

Planned
£

Actual fees 
£

2014/15 fees 
£

Statutory audit of Council 112,995 112,995 150,660

Statutory Audit of Pension Fund 34,169 34,169 34,169

IAS19 protocol audit work 1,737 1,737 1,737

Audit of subsidiary company LCDL Ltd 31,130 31,130

Total fees (excluding VAT) 180,031 180,031 186,566

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

Audit related services:

• Teacher's Pensions return, reasonable assurance 
engagement 

• Initial teacher training reasonable assurance 
engagement 

• Local Transport Plan Major projects reasonable 
assurance engagement

4,200

2,000

2,500

Non-audit services 

Risk management workshop

Tax services to subsidiary company 

Pension Fund 

Facilitation of self assessment of governance 
arrangements

3,684

20,200

4,500

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan - Council May 2016

Audit Plan – Pension Fund May 2016

Audit Findings Report September 2016

Annual Audit Letter October 2016

P
age 29



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council  and Lancashire Pension Fund |  October 2016

P
age 30



Report to the Cabinet
Cabinet Meeting to be held on 19 January 2017

Report of the Director of Financial Resources

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Money Matters – The Financial Strategy for 2017/18 to 2020/21
(Appendices 'A', 'B', 'C', 'D' and 'E' refer)

Contact for further information: 
Neil Kissock, (01772) 536154, Director of Financial Resources 
neil.kissock@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report provides an update of the forecast outturn Financial Position for 
2016/17 on revenue and capital, the County Council's updated Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the period 2017/18 to 2020/21, reflecting the 
provisional settlement for 2017/18, and the position with regard to application of 
current reserves.   

The County Council is facing an unprecedented financial challenge.  The Medium 
Term Financial Strategy reported in December forecast that the council will have a 
financial shortfall of £146.133m in 2020/21.  This is a combination of reducing 
resources as a result of the government's extended programme of austerity at the 
same time as the Council is facing significant increases in both the cost (for example, 
as a result of inflation and national living wage) and the level of demand for its 
services.  The revised position following the provisional financial settlement for 
2017/18 is now for a financial shortfall of £153.389m in 2020/21. This revised gap is 
after the impact of the settlement, new financial pressures, revised council tax 
projections and includes savings proposals that have previously been agreed by 
Cabinet.

Recommendations

The Cabinet is asked to: 

(i) Note the current forecast underspend of £15.298m on the revenue budget 
in 2016/17 

(ii) Note the revised funding gap of £153.389m covering the period 2017/18 to 
2020/21 as set out in the revised financial outlook forecast for the Council.

(iii) Approve the additional budget adjustments for 2017/18, and following years' 
increases, included in the revised MTFS following the financial settlement.

(iv) To recommend to Cabinet to make recommendations to Full Council on 

Page 31

Agenda Item 4b

mailto:neil.kissock@lancashire.gov.uk


9th February 2017 the Band D Council Tax for 2017/18 reflecting a 3.99% 
increase including 2% to be used for social care as per the new flexibilities.

(v) Note the contents of the County Council's Reserves position at 
31st December 2016.

(vi) Approve the specific capital programme as presented within the body of the 
report.

(vii) Approve the increase in prudential borrowing identified within the Capital 
Programme report.  

(viii) To note and have regard to the advice of the Director of Financial 
Resources in relation to the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of 
reserves.    

1. Background and Advice 

The detailed reports at Appendices A, B, C, D and E present the County Council's 
revenue position, reserves position, an updated financial outlook, a revised Medium 
Term Financial Strategy for the period 2017/18 to 2020/21 as at 31st December 2016 
and an update on the Capital Programme, as at 30th November 2016 and the Capital 
Programme for future years.

Financial Position as at 31st December 2016 (Appendix A)

A revenue underspend is forecast for the County Council of £15.298m and represents 
a variance of c2.0% against the overall County Council budget. This is subject to a 
number of assumptions around the anticipated profile of expenditure for the rest of the 
year which is difficult to predict in some demand led budget areas. The report identifies 
those areas where forecast pressures exist and will be subject to ongoing detailed 
review with a focus on controlling and reducing costs and the delivery of an improved 
financial position by year-end. 

It is important to recognise that the forecast variance includes the impact of additional 
income arising from Treasury Management activities, with a surplus of c£26m now 
being forecast in this area.  This, in great part, reflects opportunities in response to 
external events post Brexit and is an extremely positive position, however without 
these gains the County Council would be forecasting an overspend of £11.458m 
across service budgets. Therefore it is critical to note that there remains an underlying 
pressure within the forecast from service budgets. 

The 2016/17 budget of £713.020m includes a significant savings requirement of 
c£100m, however many savings will not be fully implemented until 2017/18 or 2018/19 
and therefore it was agreed that these would be covered by the use of reserves.

The report provides details as to progress on the achievement and delivery of the 
savings relating to each Head of Service. The level of reserves that were approved to 
be applied from the transitional reserve 2016/17 in support of the delivery of savings 

Page 32



was £46.417m and the amount that is now forecast to be required is £34.231m 
reflecting early delivery of some agreed savings, although this is partially offset by 
some budget savings that are delayed and will require reserve funding to cover the 
delay in implementation. 

Delivery of the significant savings programme has been identified as a key risk area 
and the savings plans are subject to detailed regular scrutiny by the Programme Office 
and Finance. 
 
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (Appendix B)

A revised MTFS was presented to Cabinet in September with a reported funding gap 
of £146.133m (cumulative gap of £411.207m). 

This report considers the impact of budget decisions to be taken by Cabinet and 
updates other assumptions in light of the most current information available including 
the impact of the Local Government Finance Settlement in December.  As a result of 
these reviews the overall estimated funding gap has increased to £153.389m, primarily 
due to the announcement within the settlement that the 2% Adults Social Care Precept 
could not be applied in 2020/21, which had previously been assumed in the MTFS.  
However, the cumulative gap has reduced to £407.988m as a result of a reduced gap 
in in earlier years primarily resulting from the introduction within the settlement of a 
non-recurrent Adult Care Support Grant of £5.543m in 2017/18.

The County Council's Reserves Position (Appendix C)

The County Council by 31st March 2018 is expected to have reserves (excluding 
schools) of £127.699m, of which £36.000m County Fund will remain leaving a residual 
amount of £91.699m in service reserves. This does however include £8.354m school 
PFI expenditure and £4.944m which is not LCC money, meaning in effect the available 
balance of £78.401m. 

If the County Council underspends in 2016/17 as currently forecast this will be a further 
contribution to reserves. This is not currently included within the forecast reserves 
position. 

The report indicates that there are sufficient funds within the Transitional Reserve to 
deliver a balanced budget in 2017/18 as per the agreed financial strategy. However 
this is dependent upon a number of key factors and risks which are as follows:

 All values within reserves that are currently reported to be available funds are 
transferred into the transitional reserves with no further commitments emerging 
in these areas now that the transfer has taken place. 

 There is limited slippage on the agreed savings programme for 2017/18 and 
2018/19. As any slippage will result in a requirement for funding from reserves. 

When reviewing the County Council's reserves in conjunction with the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (Appendix C) the funding requirement to bridge the financial gap in 
2018/19 would total £85.162m. Although there are reserves available at 31st March 
2018 of £93.699m (if the currently forecast underspend is achieved) there are 

Page 33



commitments in 2018/19 of £10.450m (excluding non LCC commitments).  The 
forecast available balance to support the 2018/19 budget is therefore £83.249m which 
means that there will be insufficient funds within reserves to fully meet the 2018/19 
budget gap.

Capital Monitoring and Financing Position as at 30th November 2016 (Appendix D)

This report sets out the November 2016 capital monitoring position for 2016/17 against 
the re-profiled capital programme 2016/17 budget approved by Cabinet on 6th October 
2016.

It also compares the 2016/17 November monitoring position with the equivalent 
position in 2015/16 in order to give an understanding of the progress being made to 
date with regard to overall spend level.

Capital Programme 2017/18 -2020/21 (Appendix E)

This report covers the capital programme for the period 2017/18 – 2020/21 and also 
provides details of the financing of the full multi-year capital programme and the 
expected associated capital charges.

2. The Robustness of the Budget and the Adequacy of Reserves

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires that, in giving consideration to 
budget proposals, Members must have regard to the advice of the Council's Chief 
Finance Officer (in the case of the County Council the Director of Financial Resources) 
on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the Council's reserves. 

Robustness of the Estimates

This section is concerned with the scale of financial risks faced by the Council as a 
result of the estimates and assumptions which support any budget. The basis of the 
estimates on which the budget has been prepared, as in previous years, relies on the 
forecast of activity and the impact of changes in policy previously agreed by the 
Council. These forecasts are kept under review as part of the budget monitoring 
process and actions identified to address financial risks arising from changes in the 
forecast as they occur. A number of specific risks remain within the budget as follows:

  Government Funding

The Local Government Settlement on 17th December 2015 included the Government 
offering any council that wishes it to take up a four year funding settlement to provide 
greater certainty around financial planning.  The offer only covers Revenue Support 
Grant, Rural Services Delivery Grant and Transitional Grant.  These grants in 2017/18 
will represent c11% of our resources and are forecast in the MTFS to reduce further 
and finish completely by the end of this Parliament when full Business Rate Retention 
comes in, which will be accompanied by an updated funding formula for local 
authorities and new responsibilities which are yet to be determined.  

Page 34



Whilst the principle of a longer-term settlement is welcome, the Council has not taken 
up the offer as previous reports to Cabinet have clearly identified an impending 
scenario whereby the Council will have insufficient resources to meet statutory 
responsibilities as they are currently provided.    Not accepting the multi-year 
settlement will mean the level of Revenue Support Grant being confirmed on an annual 
basis and therefore may be subject to change from the assumptions included within 
the MTFS, although 2017/18 RSG has been confirmed as being in line with the level 
forecast within the MTFS.

The Statutory Services Budget Review undertaken by PwC and reported to Cabinet in 
October validated the financial position as reported through the MTFS and confirmed 
that even should the County Council reduce its expenditure to the median of lowest 
quartile by 2020/21 an in-year deficit of £79m would remain.  One of the considerations 
raised within the report was whether the current funding model of the Council is 
disproportionately contributing to the funding gap.  The County Council has continued 
to lobby Central Government and relevant stakeholders regarding the extreme 
challenges being faced as a result of the local government finance system.

A subsequent business case prepared by PwC has identified proposals relating to a 
future Lancashire Public Services Delivery Model, which includes estimates of the 
financial benefits that could be delivered following implementation and the level of 
transitional funding required to support the major transformation. However, at this 
stage it is a proposal to go out to consultation with key partners and stakeholders and 
has not therefore been factored into any of the MTFS assumptions.   

The most significant financial challenge facing upper tier Local Authorities is Adult 
Social Care.  Additional funding has been provided via the Adult Care Support Grant 
(£5.543m) in 2017/18 and the flexibility to raise an additional Adult Social Care 
precept.  Whilst these are a welcome recognition of the significant cost pressures 
being faced, the Grant is only for one year and together they do not meet the full cost 
of additional demographic demand and cost pressures within the Care Sector 
particularly impacted by the National Living Wage.

  Service Demand

This is a key risk facing the Council in both preparing future budgets and managing 
budgets during the year. As reported in the budget monitoring reports presented to 
Cabinet over the year, demand for both adult and children's social care services and 
waste services continues to see increases despite the impact of demand management 
measures.  

Over the period 2017/18 to 2020/21 £91m has been provided in the MTFS for demand 
pressures of which c58% relates to adult social care, c24% children's social care and 
c15% waste services. These have been identified based on current and historical 
trends and population projections where appropriate (particularly linked to the ageing 
population in respect of Adult Social Care).  Whilst for Adult Social Care the estimates 
are based on assumptions that have previously been a reasonable prediction of 
demand, during the current financial year significant and unanticipated increased costs 
in relation to Children's Social care and Waste have been reported to Cabinet in 
revenue monitoring reports.  

Page 35



Detailed work is being undertaken in all three areas focused on a better understanding 
of the causes of the increased demand and what steps can be taken to mitigate the 
financial impact, which, along with funding reductions, is a major contributing factor 
towards the funding gap reported in the MTFS.  

 Pay 

The MTFS makes provision for pay of a 1% increase each year.  Most of the pay bill 
will continue to be driven by the national pay agreement and this assumption will be 
kept under ongoing review.   The County Council is committed to paying its employees 
as an accredited member of the Living Wage Foundation who have announced a 5% 
increase in the Living Wage. The impact of this initial increase and further 5% 
increases in subsequent years for those staff directly impacted has been factored into 
the MTFS.  This does not address maintaining current differentials in pay grades which 
will need to be considered in future years.   

 Inflation

Actual inflation remains relatively low but analysts are anticipating slight increases 
over coming years. Provision made within the budget is limited to areas where the 
Council has no choice but to pay increased prices e.g. due to contractual terms. The 
inflation forecasts used in recent years are based on the future level of inflation implied 
by yields on interest linked gilts. Historically, this has tended to give a more accurate 
forecast than the methodology previously used. It is anticipated that the continued use 
of this methodology will reduce the risk of needing to make catch up additions to the 
budget for "missed" inflation and the need to absorb additional inflationary costs in 
year.

A particular issue concerns care markets, primarily residential and homecare, the 
funding of which is recognised as being a significant issue regionally and nationally.  
Whilst a significant amount of resource has been included within the MTFS to fund 
price increases and the estimated impact of the national living wage on care providers, 
there remains capacity and sustainability issues within the market which the Adult 
Social Care Precept and Adult Care Support Grant will only partly help mitigate given 
the scale.   

 Savings Programmes Delivery

The Council is already committed to the delivery of a significant savings delivery 
programme (c£154m over the period 2016/17- 2020/21) including £12m of new 
savings agreed at Cabinet in December a number of which relate to the outcome of 
the zero based budget review of services agreed within the financial strategy. There 
are inherent risks with savings plans of this scale and scope and any significant under-
delivery of agreed savings will create an additional funding gap.  This has been 
identified as one of the highest level risks in the Council's Risk and Opportunity 
Register and there are comprehensive arrangements in place to track delivery of 
financial savings and take corrective actions as required.  

Page 36



The Level of Reserves

The Council holds reserves for a number of reasons:

 To enable the Council to deal with unexpected events such as flooding or the 
destruction of a major asset through fire.

 To enable the Council to manage variations in the demand for services which 
cause in year budget pressures.

 To fund specific projects or identified demands on the budget. 

There is no 'right' answer to the question of the appropriate level of reserves for a local 
authority; this is a matter of judgement taking into account:

 The level of risk evident within the budget as set out above.
 A judgement on the effectiveness of budgetary control within the organisation.
 The degree to which funds have already been set aside for specific purposes 

which will reduce the need for general reserves.

Previous reports to Cabinet have clearly identified that the revenue budget will be 
heavily supported by the reserves that are currently available to the County Council.  
The value of the Council's reserves is currently significant but are non-recurrent and, 
bar the County Fund, are now fully committed over the next 2 years and will not 
therefore be available in later years to support managing future year budget pressures.

The level of risk evident within the budget is clearly increasing as set out in the analysis 
above at a time when it is clear that the revenue budget will have to be supported 
significantly by reserves. The setting up of a transitional reserve was a recognition of 
this requirement and the effectiveness of budgetary control is a combination of both 
systems and processes and the risk environment within which the Council is operating. 
Budgetary control procedures are strong, however, based on the evidence of the 
current year and given the increased level of financial risk there is a greater risk that 
the processes in place would not be adequate to reduce any significant overspend 
over the course of the following years.

In relation to the Council's general reserve (County Fund Balance), the forecast level 
at 31 March 2017 remains as £36m.

Overall, the Council has an appropriate level of reserves available to manage the 
financial risks it is facing in 2017/18, but this is unlikely to be the case for 2018/19 and 
subsequent years.  Within the MTFS there is a revised funding gap of £85.162m for 
2018/19 and, excluding County Fund and committed reserves but including the 
projected revenue underspend at the end of quarter 3 of £15.298m, there is estimated 
to be £83.629m of uncommitted reserves remaining at 1st April 2018.  

Even if the 2018/19 gap could ultimately be covered by the use of reserves the forecast 
funding gap increases to £115.392m in 2019/20 and therefore it is critical that a 
significant level of additional savings are identified which can be delivered in 2018/19 
to minimise the scale of reserves required to support the revenue budget and that 

Page 37



utilisation of those reserves remaining should support, wherever possible, activities 
which reduce ongoing revenue costs.  One of the priority areas for new savings will be 
in seeking to implement the aim within the current financial strategy of seeking to move 
to lower quartile cost, of the most appropriate comparator group of local authorities, 
for all services.

The Council has benefited significantly financially over a number of years from its 
Treasury Management activity including the investment portfolio, with a projected 
revenue benefit of £26.756m in 2016/17.  It is important to note that one of the 
consequences of utilising reserves is that this effectively reduces the value of cash 
backed accounts on the balance sheet which support the investment portfolio. 
Therefore, based on current planned usage of reserves the size of the portfolio will 
reduce further significantly and it is reasonable to assume that the scope to generate 
future gains will also therefore reduce. 

Conclusion

Following the ongoing detailed budget monitoring, zero base budget review work, 
identification of £12m of further budget proposals and a detailed review of the current 
reserves commitments, a balanced budget for 2017/18 with the use of £54.045m of 
reserves can be recommended.  However, this is clearly dependent on all budget 
options agreed at Cabinet in December being delivered fully within the timeframes 
identified, along with the other savings agreed in previous budget cycles.  Should any 
of these budget options ultimately not be taken forward they will need to be replaced 
with alternative savings to avoid increasing the size of the gap.  There also remains a 
funding gap of £85.162m in 2018/19 and an urgent need to identify proposals for 
additional savings early in 2017/18 that can be delivered in 2018/19.

Whilst the principle has been agreed of reviewing each and every continuing service 
using a zero based approach, with reference to our benchmark unit costs, and moving 
towards the lowest quartile of the most appropriate comparator group, this will need to 
make early progress during 2017/18 to meet the 2018/19 shortfall and consider 
whether a sustainable financial position will be achievable over a longer period.  
Taking everything into account, there remains a strong likelihood that the Council will, 
during the course of this financial strategy period (in 2018/19 at the earliest), be in the 
position of being unable to set a budget which will meet the cost of its statutory 
responsibilities. 

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel

None  

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 38



Appendix A

Money Matters
The County Council's Financial Position 
As at 31st December 2016

Page 39



1

Contents Page

Introduction 2

Section A – The 2016/17 Revenue Budget 4

Page 40



2

Money Matters – Update on the County Council's Financial 
Position for 2016/17

1. Introduction

This report provides an update for Cabinet on the County Council's 2016/17 revenue 
financial position.

2. Summary of the Financial Position

This report provides a view on the Council's current financial performance and the 
anticipated position at the year end. The forecast is predominantly based on the 
information up to the end of November 2016 with adjustments made to reflect further 
information available in December (this is usual practice for Quarter 3 reports due to 
Cabinet deadlines). The report also contains a comparison to the previously reported 
financial position as at 30th September 2016. The current forecast outturn for the 
County Council is an underspend of £15.298m and represents a variance of c2% 
against the overall County Council budget. This is subject to a number of assumptions 
around the anticipated profile of expenditure for the rest of the year which is difficult to 
predict in some demand led budget areas. The report identifies those areas where 
forecast pressures exist and will be subject to ongoing detailed review with a focus on 
controlling and reducing costs and the delivery of an improved financial position by year-
end. 

It is important to recognise that the forecast variance includes the impact of additional 
income arising from Treasury Management activities, with a surplus of c£26m now being 
forecast in this area.  This, in great part, reflects opportunities in response to external 
events post Brexit and is an extremely positive position, however without these gains 
the County Council would be forecasting an overspend of £11.458m across service 
budgets. Therefore it is critical to note that there remains an underlying pressure within 
the forecast from service budgets. 

The 2016/17 budget of £713.020m includes a significant savings requirement of 
c£100m and in addition there are further agreed savings of c£54m predominantly 
relating to 2017/18 although some of which will not be fully delivered until 2020/21. 
However, a significant proportion of savings will not be fully implemented until 2017/18 
or 2018/19 and as it was agreed that these would be covered by the use of reserves

The narrative provides details as to progress on the achievement and delivery of the 
savings relating to each Head of Service. The level of reserves that were approved to 
be applied from the transitional reserve 2016/17 in support of the delivery of savings 
was £46.417m and the amount that is now forecast to be required is £34.231m. This is 
due to early delivery of some savings, particularly through staff vacancies and turnover, 
although this is partially offset by some budget savings that are delayed and will require 
reserve funding to cover the delay in implementation. 

In total the forecast includes £88.434m from reserves which includes the strategic 
investment reserve, downsizing reserve, risk management reserve, transitional reserve 
and specific service reserves. (details can be found in Appendix C). In additional there 
are transfers between reserves and contributions to reserves that total £8.784m. 

Page 41



3

Delivery of the significant savings programme has been identified as a key risk area and 
the savings plans are subject to detailed regular scrutiny by the Programme Office and 
Finance. 

The report reflects the organisational structure with detailed budget monitoring 
undertaken at Head of Service Level and is summarised in the report up to their 
appropriate management line, e.g. the Director for Development and Corporate 
Services. All forecast variances +/- £0.1m are explained within the report along with any 
mitigating actions being put in place. 

A significant budget realignment has taken place in relation to staffing budgets in 
Quarter 1 and enables post by post budget monitoring, this has been a critical piece of 
work given the importance and value of staffing budgets within the County Council's 
overall budget. It is currently forecast that the overall staffing underspend will be £3.5m 
reflecting early delivery of savings, staff turnover and a number of services undergoing 
restructures and populating their agreed structures including the filling of agreed 
vacancies.

2.1 Recommendations

Cabinet are asked to:

 Note the current financial revenue forecast based on financial data at the end of 
Quarter 3.

Page 42



4

3. Section A

The summary forecast outturn for 2016/17 is as follows:

Ref Service Area
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.1 ADULT SERVICES 317.674 319.528 1.854 3.848 1%
3.2 CHILDREN'S SERVICES 119.421 132.729 13.308 10.981 11%
3.3 COMMUNITY SERVICES 134.239 137.044 2.805 4.085 2%
3.4 PUBLIC HEALTH & WELLBEING 28.860 28.867 0.007 1.907 0%
3.5 DEVELOPMENT AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES
35.574 35.408 -0.166 0.199 2%

3.6 COMMISSIONING 46.649 44.556 -2.093 -0.835 -3%
3.7 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 30.603 -0.410 -31.013 -33.456 -97%

 TOTAL 713.020 697.722 -15.298 -13.271 -2%

Page 43



5

3.1 Operations and Delivery – Adult Services

Ref HEAD OF SERVICE
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.1.1 ADULT SERVICES 0.135 0.152 0.017 0.017 13%
3.1.2 DISABILITY (adults) -4.468 -4.399 0.069 0.066 -2%
3.1.3 OLDER PEOPLE 0.629 0.280 -0.349 -0.417 -55%
3.1.4 LEARNING DISABILITIES, 

AUTISM & MENTAL HEALTH
161.886 158.391 -3.495 -1.321 -2%

3.1.5 SOCIAL CARE SERVICES (adults) 159.492 165.104 5.612 5.503 3%
 TOTAL - ADULT SERVICES 317.674 319.528 1.854 3.848 1%

The total net approved budget for Adult Services in 2016/17 is £317.674.  The service 
is forecast to overspend by £1.854m, a reduction in overspend of £1.994m compared 
with the previous Quarter 2 monitoring update to Cabinet.

This forecast includes the impact of the fee increases across homecare services, 
Learning Disabilities supported living and Physical Support over 65 residential and 
nursing services. Several further fee uplifts have also been included in the forecast 
position and future year impact has been considered as part of the MTFS review in 
Appendix B. The forecast also incorporates budgeted savings of £13.223m. £6.651m of 
this budgeted savings figures relates to the Transformation work being undertaken with 
Newton's Europe under the name of Passport to Independence which is considered 
undeliverable in 2016/17 and therefore has been reconsidered as part of the Quarter 2 
MTFS update in terms of re-profiling the timing of these savings.

Adult social care staffing including Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Autism are 
currently implementing their approved staffing restructure which is forecast to utilise 
£1.580m from agreed reserves.

3.1.2 Disability Service

The service is forecast to overspend by £0.069m. 

Net expenditure for Day and Domiciliary services is largely in line with 2015/16 spend 
patterns.
 
The service have been able to manage the impact of the revised transport to day 
services policy through changes to staff rotas to extend opening hours where required, 
this policy change has seen positive results for the majority of service users. The 
domiciliary service undertook to provide additional hours for provider failure, crisis hours 
and a supported living service on top of existing provision.

3.1.3 Older People – In-House Care Services

The Service is forecasting a positive variance to budget through an overachievement of 
its income of £0.349m. This service delivers care through the operation of 17 care 
homes and 14 day centres across the County.

Page 44



6

3.1.4 Learning Disability, Autism & Mental Health

The Service is forecast to underspend overall by £3.495m, compared with £1.321m last 
quarter. The main reason for the increase in underspend is additional forecast income 
of £1.446m relating to joint funded packages. The breakdown of the total variance is 
detailed below. 

Learning Disabilities

 Learning Disability services include the provision of care services including 
residential and nursing care, but predominantly supported living and direct 
payments. Services are commissioned via a pooled fund arrangement with the 
six Lancashire CCGs. The LCC share of the service is forecast to underspend 
by £1.087m. 

 Increases in service user activity are forecast to increase spending in 2016/17 
by £2.000m which includes the impact of transitions from Children's services, 
however this is lower than the expected demand build into the budget. 

 The forecast includes the impact of agreed fee increases for supported living 
and domiciliary care valued at £7.400m. Of this, £3.500m of this has been 
funded by reserves in 2016/17 as agreed with the future impacts built into the 
MTFS. 

 The budget has been reduced by £1.000m to reflect the agreed savings relating 
to the remodelling packages of care, this saving is forecast to be achieve 
£0.650m in year as the average saving per tenancy is lower than forecast. 

Mental Health – Residential

 Mental Health residential care is forecast to underspend by £2.535m, a further 
underspend of £1.387m compared to last quarter. Within this an additional 
£0.690m of income for joint funded packages has been forecast.

 Since April 2016 there has been a 2% increase in the number of service users 
(April 2016 290; November 2016 296) and the average weekly cost of care 
packages has increased by 10% from £796 to £875.

 There are currently 296 clients supported via this service.

Mental Health – Nursing

 Mental Health Nursing is forecast to overspend by £0.675m, a reduction of 
£0.382m compared to Quarter 2 monitoring.  Within this additional income of 
£0.249m has been forecast.

 The overspend is due to the average weekly package costs increasing at a rate 
higher than budgeted for and the number of nursing placements not reducing in 
line with the assumptions built into the MTFS.

Mental Health - Home Care

 Mental Health Home Care services are forecast to underspend by £0.641m, a 
further underspend of £0.410m compared with Quarter 2 monitoring.

 An additional £0.507m of income has been forecast.
 In the year to date service user numbers have increased by 5% (April 2016 472; 

November 2016 495) which is lower than anticipated.

Page 45



7

 Average care package costs have increased by 7% in year.

In addition there are other small variances across Mental Health that result in an 
additional overspend of £0.093m. 

This budget has been reduced by £0.362m as a result of approved savings, however it 
was agreed that funding from the transitional reserve would fully support this saving in 
2016/17. Due to natural turnover and disbandment of the Health Care Systems 
Development Team the funding is no longer required. 

3.1.5 Social Care Services (Adults)

Changes in statutory reporting requirements has meant the previous client groups of 
'Older People' and 'Physical Disability' have been combined to form the client group 
'Physical Support'. People enter these services via from community settings but a 
significant proportion come as they are discharged from hospital.

The total budget for this service area is £159.492m. The forecast overspend is £5.612m, 
an increase of £0.109m compared with last quarter.

The significant areas of variance are detailed below. Additionally, there are also a 
number of other variances which amount to an overspend of £1.912m in total across 
equipment and adaptations, reablement and carers and central expenses, as spend is 
forecast to increase in these preventative areas.

Physical Support

The service is forecast to overspend by £4.738m, a decrease of £0.714m compared to 
the Quarter 2 update to Cabinet. The forecast overspend is as a result of delayed 
achievement of savings. 

This forecast also includes the drawdown of £1.700m from the Transitional Reserve to 
support an agreed uplift of residential and nursing home fees in 2016/17. The future 
year's impact above the level built into the current budget has been built into the MTFS 
in future years. 

Social Care Service Central Costs

This service is forecast to underspend by £0.698m through controlling costs on non-
essential spending.

The forecast for 2016/17 includes £10.177m contributions from reserves, offsetting the 
expenditure in relation to the Newton's design and proposed implementation work 
estimated at £5.961m and £4.216m for the agreed repayment of outstanding CCG 
monies held on their behalf.

Supporting People

Supporting People services assist people to live as independently as possible. The 
range of services include supported and sheltered housing, refuges for women 
experiencing domestic violence, alarm services  for elderly people, and ‘floating support’ 
where workers visit people in their own homes. The delivery of the service to Lancashire 

Page 46



8

residents is facilitated by a large number of contracts with external providers and 
agencies directly providing these schemes.

The remaining statutory service is currently forecast to underspend by £0.340m. A full 
assessment in conjunction with the service consultation has been carried out to review 
the ongoing budget requirement in 2017/18. Where required extensions to contracts 
have been granted during 16/17 to ensure appropriate support during the transition 
period, the service is working towards a reduced service aimed at providing 
accommodation for homeless 16/17 year olds.  The remaining service has close links 
to the Prevention and Early Help Fund and the aims of this funding stream.

The forecast for 2016/17 includes £8.355m contributions from reserves, for the 
continuation of the non-statutory services up to the end of March 2017 as per the agreed 
savings. It was originally anticipated and approved that £10.150m would be drawn down 
from reserves to support the transitional arrangements of this budget option however 
the reduced amount is required due to early delivery of savings. 

Page 47



9

3.2 Operations and Delivery – Children's Services

Ref HEAD OF SERVICE
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.2.1 CHILDREN'S SERVICES -0.623 -0.642 -0.019 0.006 3%
3.2.2 SEN & DISABILITY 15.690 13.975 -1.715 -1.487 -11%
3.2.3 SAFEGUARDING INSPEC   & 

AUDIT
9.376 7.731 -1.645 -1.769 -18%

3.2.4 ADOPTION & FOSTERING  
RESIDENTIAL AND YOT

26.134 24.989 -1.145 -0.696 -4%

3.2.5 CHILDREN SOCIAL CARE 64.719 84.425 19.706 17.736 30%
3.2.6 SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT 6.785 6.158 -0.627 -0.667 -9%
3.2.7 TRADED SERVICES (START 

WELL)
-2.660 -3.907 -1.247 -2.142 47%

 TOTAL - CHILDREN'S SERVICES 119.421 132.729 13.308 10.981 11%

The total net approved budget for Children's Services in 2016/17 is £119.421m.  As at 
the end of November 2016, the service is forecast to overspend by £13.308m.  An 
additional £5.000m was included in the 2016/17 budget following the Ofsted inspection 
in mid-2015/16.

3.2.2 Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND)

SEN and Disability is forecast to underspend by £1.715m in 2016/17.

 Children with Disabilities (CwD) Family Support is forecast to underspend by 
£0.188m based on spend to date.

 CwD Placements, which includes in-house fostering payments and residential 
and foster care placements with external providers, is forecast to underspend by 
£0.346m.  Of this forecast underspend, £0.294m relates to in-house fostering 
payments and is in line with the outturn in 2015/16 and £0.052m to agency 
fostering placements.

 CwD Direct Payments is forecast to underspend by £0.250m as a result of 
clawback.

 Forecast underspends of £0.300m relate to budgeted increases in charges for 
SLA's with Health for Occupational Therapy and Speech and Language Services 
which are not expected to materialise in 2016/17.  This has been adjusted for 
within the MTFS for future years.  

 Underspends of £0.673m are forecast across a number of teams of which 
£0.439m relates to staff costs, £0.214m to non-staff costs and £0.020m to over 
recovery of income.

 Overspends of £0.042m are forecast for SEN Traded Services. 

The service reported underspends of £1.487m at the end of Quarter 2, compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £1.715m, an increase in forecast underspend of 
£0.228m, which largely relates to an improved position on direct payments.

Page 48



10

This forecast reflects the achievement of approved budget savings of £0.301m in 
2016/17.

3.2.3 Safeguarding, Inspection and Audit 

Safeguarding Inspection and Audit (SIA) is forecast to underspend by £1.645m in 
2016/17, of which £1.562m relates to staff costs across the service, and in particular 
vacant posts covered by agency staff for which the costs are included within Children's 
Social Care, and £0.143m relates to over recovery of income, offset by £0.061m of 
overspends on non-staff costs. The cost of all agency staff recruited to social work 
related posts following the Ofsted inspection in 2015/16 and non-staff costs incurred in 
response to the Ofsted inspection, are recorded against the Children's Social Care 
budget in order to identify and track additional costs arising from the inspection.

The service reported underspends of £1.769m at the end of Quarter 2, compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £1.645m, an increase in forecast of £0.124m, which 
relates to a number of budget areas across the service.

The forecast includes the application of non-recurrent funding of £0.100m from the 
Strategic Investment Reserve to support the Early Response Service and £0.079m from 
the Lancashire Safeguarding Children's Board Reserve.

3.2.4 Adoption, Fostering Residential and YOT

Adoption, Fostering, Residential and YOT is forecast to underspend by £1.145m in 
2016/17. 

 Adoption Service is forecast to underspend by £0.914m.  Underspends of 
£0.368m relate to staff costs and vacant posts some of which are covered by 
agency staff for which the costs are included within Children's Social Care, and 
£0.163m to various non-staff costs.  Forecast underspends of £0.211m relate to 
adoption allowances (although forecast spend is in line with spend in 2015/16).  
Forecast underspends of £0.234m relate to inter-agency adoption fees and the 
extension of grant funding from October 2016 to March 2017, as well as a 
number of adoption placements for which grant has been received in line with 
grant conditions but no fees are payable to other organisations. 

 Residential In-house Provision is forecast to overspend by £0.120m, which 
relates to staff costs.

 In-house foster care allowances are forecast to underspend by £0.078m based 
on current demand levels.  Of this forecast underspend, £0.212m relates to 
expected increases in allowances that have not increased in 2016/17 (which is 
in line with national minimum weekly allowances), offset by higher than expected 
payments of £0.134m.  The forecast shows an increase of £0.699m from the 
outturn in 2015/16 which largely reflects an increase of 36 (6.2%) in-house foster 
care placements from 535 in August 2015 to 571 in March 2016.  Numbers of in-
house foster care placements are 1.6% higher in November 2016 than at the 
same time in 2015/16.

 Net underspends of £0.273m are forecast across a number of teams, of which 
underspends of £0.319m relate to staff costs in the In-house Fostering Service, 
SCAYT and the Adoption, Fostering, Residential and YOT Management Team, 
(some of which relate to posts covered by agency staff for which the costs are 

Page 49



11

included within Children's Social Care) and £0.023m to over recovery of income, 
offset by overspends of £0.069m on non-staff costs.

The service reported underspends of £0.696m at the end of Quarter 2, compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £1.145m, an additional forecast underspend of 
£0.449m.  Of this £0.361m relates to the Adoption Service, in particular the extension 
of interagency fee grant funding from October 2016 to March 2016, a number of 
adoption placements for which grant has been received in line with grant conditions but 
no fees are payable to other organisations, and non-staff costs.  Additional forecast 
underspends of £0.088m relate to a number of other budgets across the service.  

The budget for Adoption, Fostering, Residential and YOT includes approved budget 
savings of £0.956m in 2016/17.  The forecast reflects the fact that some of the £0.642m 
savings for YOT are offset by the approved application of non-recurrent funding of 
£0.041m from the Transitional Reserve, however, whilst use of £0.320m was originally 
approved, only £0.041m is expected to be required in 2016/17.  The forecast reflects 
non-delivery of £0.006m of savings on ONSB Service and non-delivery of £0.005m of 
savings on Residential In-house Provision in 2016/17.  

The forecast also includes the application of non-recurrent funding of £0.131m from the 
YOT – General Youth Offending Reserve to cover the cost of projects approved by the 
Youth Justice Board.

3.2.5 Children's Social Care

Children's Social Care (CSC) is forecast to overspend by £19.706m in 2016/17. 

 Overspends of £7.283m are forecast across Social Work Staff and Management 
CSC.

o Overspends of £4.415m relate to staff costs (including car allowances) 
which includes agency staff covering vacant posts, additional temporary 
staff required for 12 months over 2016/17 and 2017/18 to increase 
capacity in children's social care and to support the development and 
implementation of a single operating model across Children's Services 
being trialled in Fylde and Wyre, and temporary workstarts required for 3 
months to provide business support to Project Accuracy, in order to 
implement agreed actions detailed in the Lancashire Children's Services 
Improvement Plan following the Ofsted inspection.    Of this £2.249m is 
offset by underspends on staff within Safeguarding, Inspection and Audit 
Service and Adoption Fostering, Residential and YOT Service as referred 
to earlier in this report.  It is anticipated that this overspend will reduce 
following recruitment campaigns in 2016/17 as vacant posts are filled by 
permanent staff reducing the need to cover posts with agency staff which 
are more expensive.

o Forecast overspends of £2.915m relate to a number of other expenses 
arising as a result of work undertaken in response to the Ofsted 
inspection.  Of the additional £5.000m included in the budget in 2016/17 
following the Ofsted inspection, circa £4.400m, was budgeted to cover 
staff costs, with the remaining amount, circa £0.600m, budgeted to cover 
various non-staff costs, consultant and professional fees.  The forecast 
includes one-off spend of £3.218m for Children's Social Care Referral and 
Assessment Service Framework, £0.168m for children in need 

Page 50



12

assessments undertaken by an external social work provider in 2016/17 
and £0.162m for consultant and professional fees.

o Forecast underspends of £0.047m relate to various non staff costs.

 Forecast overspends of £9.729m relate to agency residential placements.  
Placements have increased by 90 (67%) from 135 in November 2015 to 225 in 
November 2016.  The forecast is based on available financial and activity 
information and assumes that placements will continue to increase for the 
remainder of the financial year.  Work is continuing as part of the 0–25 
Programme Board to review the underlying reasons for increases in numbers of 
placements, and to estimate likely future demand and the impact of this on the 
County Council's budget.  The capacity of a number of in-house residential units 
is limited due to the placement of young people with increasingly complex needs 
that require high staff to child ratio's to support.  Consequently young people who 
would otherwise have been placed in these units have been placed with external 
providers.  As at 28th October 2016 there were 12 vacancies within in-house 
residential units (based on 6 10-bed units), albeit that 2 units are now operating 
as 2-3 rather than 6 bed units.  It is likely that demand has been effected by work 
undertaken following the Ofsted inspection, although the pathway diagnostic 
work has already identified some potential for efficiencies which could reduce 
costs in the future without affecting levels of service delivery.  

 Forecast overspends of £2.264m relate to agency fostering placements.  
Placements have increased by 62 (16%) from 392 in October 2015 to 454 in 
November 2016.  The forecast is based on available financial and activity 
information and assumes that placements will increase for the remainder of the 
financial year.  Again work is continuing as part of the 0–25 Programme Board 
to review the underlying reasons for increases in numbers of placements, and to 
estimate likely future demand and the impact of this on the County Council's 
budget. 

 Forecast overspends of £1.042m relate to numbers of Special Guardianship 
Orders (SGO's) which continue to increase which is offset by underspends of 
£0.267m on Child Arrangement Orders (CAO's). 

 Forecast underspends of £0.296m relate to financial assistance for care leavers.  

 Forecast underspends of £0.049m relate to a number of items including DBS 
costs.

The service reported overspends of £17.736m at the end of Quarter 2, compared to the 
current forecast overspend of £19.706m, an additional forecast overspend of £1.970m.  
Of this £0.229m relates to SGO's and £0.375m to agency residential placements both 
of which reflect continuing increases in placements, £1.490m to non-staff costs in 
particular the Children's Social Care Referral and Assessment Service Framework, 
offset by a reduction in forecast of £0.124m relating to staff costs.
The budget for Children's Social Care includes approved budget savings of £0.504m in 
2016/17.  The forecast reflects the fact that delivery of these savings which relate to 
CSC Placements and Social Worker Teams are delayed due to demand pressures.  The 
forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding.

Page 51



13

 Contribution of £0.275m from the Risk Management Reserve to cover the cost 
of the LCC Children's Priority Reporting on LCS contract with Newton's (Project 
Accuracy).

 Contribution of £0.200m from the Transitional Reserve to fund the cost of the 
Transformation of Children's Services Pathways in Lancashire 
Assessment/Diagnostic based on payments made to date.

 Contribution of £0.200m from the Former CYP DFM General Reserve to fund risk 
assessment training and models and quality assurance, auditing and training 
costs.

3.2.6 School Improvement

The service is currently holding vacancies awaiting the approval of its new structure 
whilst maintaining income levels which is resulting in a forecast underspend of £0.627m. 
The income levels for the service are forecast to achieve the target within their budget, 
however there is potential for this to increase and will be kept under review. 

This budget has been reduced by £0.657m with the forecast incorporating that this 
saving will be achieved. 

3.2.7 Traded Services (Start Well)

Traded Services are forecasting a positive variance to budget through the 
overachievement of income of £1.247m in 2016/17. This relates primarily to the 
maintenance of income levels within the School Catering Service in line with the 
2015/16 outturn position that the service achieved. This also incorporates a saving 
target that is being achieved of £0.037m. 

Page 52



14

3.2 Operations and Delivery – Community Services

Ref HEAD OF SERVICE
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.3.1 CUSTOMER ACCESS 3.779 3.233 -0.545 -0.557 -15%
3.3.2 COMMUNITY SERVICES 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0%
3.3.3 HIGHWAYS 21.268 20.267 -1.001 -0.173 -5%
3.3.4 LIBRARIES  MUSEUMS  

CULTURE & REGISTRARS
9.698 10.063 0.365 0.316 4%

3.3.5 PUBLIC & INTEGRATED 
TRANSPORT

42.100 42.232 0.133 0.594 0%

3.3.6 WASTE MGT 57.269 61.122 3.854 3.905 7%

 TOTAL - COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 134.239 137.044 2.805 4.085 2%

The total net approved budget for Community Services in 2016/17 is £134.239m.  As at 
the end of December 2016 the service is forecast to overspend by £2.805m.

3.3.1 Customer Access

Customer Access is forecast to underspend by £0.545m in 2016/17.  Forecast 
underspends of £0.398m relate to staff vacancies and £0.175m is attributable to the 
over recovery of income, offset by forecast overspends of £0.028m on non-staff costs.  
Delays in recruiting to vacant posts could lead to further underspends and these will be 
kept under review over the coming months. 

There is no significant change to the forecast underspend reported to Cabinet at the 
end of Quarter 2.  The forecast reflects the achievement of approved budget savings of 
£0.234m in 2016/17.

3.3.3 Highways

The service is forecast to underspend by £1.001m.

 This is due to additional income forecast of £1.264m across highways on the 
permit scheme which includes traffic regulation orders and charges to utilities 
companies for breaching codes of practice, delays in work and road closures.  
Additional income was seen in the 2015/16 outturn position and as a result, part 
of the savings strategy was to increase these income targets in the 2016/17 
budget.  However, these targets have been exceeded during the course of the 
year.  This is largely due to fee increases and the fact that these fee increases 
have not resulted in a significant reduction in utilities companies' activity.

 This underspend has been partly offset by a £0.263m pressure on parking 
services due to a forecast reduction in parking income.  This is being reviewed 
with the service as to the causes and whether this may represent a continuing 
pressure into future years.   

 The service is forecast to spend the agreed highways maintenance and drainage 
budget within year.

Page 53



15

 Staff time charged to capital schemes is significantly lower than expected 
however this is not shown as a pressure as it is believed that this is due to some 
initial issues relating to the new time recording system.

There has been a change to the forecast underspend reported to Cabinet at the end of 
Quarter 2 of £0.828m predominantly resulting from increased fees for traffic regulation 
orders.

The forecast includes the approved application of non-recurrent funding from the 
roundabout sponsorship reserve of £0.048m relating to previous years income 
generation and subsequence reinvestment in specific public realm schemes.

The budget for Highways includes approved budget savings of £3.210m in 2016/17, the 
forecast reflects the fact that these savings are on track to be delivered in full in 16/17 
therefore the approved application of non-recurrent reserve funding of £1.404m from 
the Transitional Reserve in 2016/17 to support the service as it works towards delivering 
these savings is not required.

3.3.4 Libraries, Museums, Culture and Registrars

Libraries, Museums, Cultural Services and Registrars (LMCR) is forecast to overspend 
by £0.365m in 2016/17.                                 

 Cultural Services Museums is forecast to overspend by £0.586m.  Following the 
closure of 5 museums from October 2016 it is expected that the remaining 6 
museums will be self-financing, including covering costs associated with 
collections, with the exception of Gawthorpe Hall for which there is a recurring 
annual budget (of £0.104m in 2016/17) to cover running costs.  It is forecast that 
it will cost £0.690m to run Museums in 2016/17 after applying non-recurrent 
funding of £0.500m from the Transitional Reserve.  Of the 5 museums which 
have closed negotiations are underway to transfer 3 of the museums to other 
organisations by 31st March 2017 and the future of 2 museums is still to be 
determined.   The forecast reflects the fact that the County Council will incur care 
and maintenance costs following the closure of museums particularly in respect 
of Helmshore Textile Mill and Queen Street Mill, one-off costs to prepare 
museums for transfer and will be required to retain collections staff to assist with 
the work associated with collections held in museums prior to transfer.  Given 
that negotiations are ongoing and the future of 2 museums is still to be 
determined, the forecast position may change over the remainder of the financial 
year as further decisions are made and transfer arrangements confirmed.   
 

 County Libraries is forecast to overspend by £0.216m which relates to non-
delivery of previously agreed savings.  The forecast includes the application of 
non-recurrent funding of £1.608m from the Transitional Reserve.  The forecast 
reflects the closure of 22 libraries on 30th September 2016 and that these 
buildings will be cleared and/or transferred by 30th December 2016, and assumes 
the LMCR restructure will be implemented from February 2017.  The future of a 
number of other libraries is still under consideration and the exact timescales for 
the closure, transfer and transition to satellites of a number of other libraries is 
still to be confirmed.  Consequently the forecast for 2016/17 may change over 

Page 54



16

the coming months as further decisions are made and closure, transfer and 
transition arrangements are confirmed.   

 Registration Service is forecast to underspend by £0.122m of which £0.146m 
relates to over recovery of income offset by overspends of £0.024 on staff costs.

 Underspends of £0.314m relate to the remainder of the service which includes 
Archives, Conservation, Heritage and Arts, Museum School Service, and 
Support and Development.  The forecast includes the application of non-
recurrent funding of £0.487m from the Transitional Reserve.  Underspends of 
£0.199m relate to staff costs and £0.155m to non-staff costs, offset by under-
recovery of income of £0.040m.

There is no significant change to the forecast underspend reported to Cabinet at the 
end of Quarter 2.

The budget for Libraries, Museums, Culture and Registrars includes approved budget 
savings of £5.808m in 2016/17.  The forecast reflects the fact that £2.411m of savings 
have been achieved, £0.802m will not be achieved in 2016/17 and £2.595m of savings  
are offset by the approved application of non-recurrent reserve funding from the 
Transitional Reserve in 2016/17 (see below) to support the service as it transitions and 
works towards delivering these savings.

The forecast includes the following approved application of non-recurrent funding from 
the Transitional Reserve.

 Contribution of £0.500m from Transitional Reserve to cover the cost of operating 
5 museums which closed on 30th September 2016.

 Contribution of £0.347m from Transitional Reserve to cover the continuation of 
Arts Grants to outside bodies within the Heritage and Arts Service.

 Contribution of £0.140m from the Transitional Reserve to cover staff costs within 
Cultural Services Support and Development.

 Contribution of £1.608m from the Transitional Reserve to fund transition costs as 
the County Library Service downsizes.

The forecast also includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding 
from reserves.

 Contribution of £0.010m from the Queen St Engine Repair Fund.
 Contribution of £0.001m from the Lancaster City General Acquisitions Fund.      
 Contribution of £0.011m from the Former Adults Directorate Grant Funded 

Reserve to fund a creative writing programme.
 Contribution of £0.020m from the Former Adults Directorate Grant Funded 

Reserve to fund a Borrowbox scheme.

3.3.5 Public & Integrated Transport

Public and Integrated Transport is forecast to overspend by £0.133m in 2016/17. 

 Public Transport Initiatives is forecast to overspend by £0.879m.  Of this 
overspends of £0.932m relate to lower than originally estimated sales from the 
Todmorden Curve New Rail Scheme.  Whilst demand levels (passenger 

Page 55



17

numbers) appear to be in line with the ramp up period predictions, revenues are 
lower than expected due to discounted fares with student rather than commuter 
full price fares accounting for the bulk of sales.  The forecast is based on current 
levels of fare revenue and reflects the fact that franchised payments to Northern 
Rail are largely fixed.  This is offset by underspends of £0.053m on Heysham 
Park and Ride which opened in November 2016 but for which there is a full year 
budget provision in 2016/17.

 Integrated Transport Travelcare is forecast to overspend by £0.919m.  Savings 
of £2.499m were approved at Full Council in February 2016 in relation to entirely 
ceasing the provision of free travel to day care from September 2016. However, 
it has been possible to redesign the service to continue to provide a free service 
by reconfiguring the transport arrangements and still deliver savings of £1.170m 
in 2016/17 from September 2016 and £2.006m in future years, resulting in a 
partial non-delivery of savings of £0.489m, of which £0.389m relates to staff costs 
and £0.100m to non-staff costs.  Savings of £2.200m approved in previous years 
relate to transport for children and young people with special educational needs 
(SEN).  Of these £0.500m of savings relating to staff cost have been achieved.  
Delivery of the remaining savings of £1.700m is delayed and these will not be 
delivered until September 2017 at the earliest.  However, this is offset by 
additional income of £1.000m which has not been budgeted for in 2016/17 or 
previous years, resulting in an in year underspend.  The budget has been 
adjusted for this additional income in the MTFS from 2017/18.  Underspends of 
£0.320m relates to the impact in 2016/17 of an over accrual in 2015/16, offset by 
overspends of £0.050m relating to a number of other smaller items across the 
service.   

 Public Transport Concessionary Travel is forecast to underspend by £1.027m, 
due to a seasonal decline in passenger numbers and changes in eligibility criteria 
relating to pensionable age (increased from 60 to 65).

 Public Transport School Transport is forecast to underspend by £0.176m.  The 
agreed saving of £0.282m in 2016/17 is not achievable in the way originally 
planned because denominational transport services cannot cease until 
September 2017 at the earliest.  However, the impact of this has been off-set by 
actual price inflation being lower than estimated price inflation applied to the 
2016/17 budget in the MTFS, lower forecast bus operator costs in real terms than 
in 2015/16 and an over accrual that took place at the end of 2015/16.

 Public Transport Bus Stations, Interchanges and Information Centres are 
forecast to underspend by £0.225m.  The forecast underspend is non-recurring 
and relates to Accrington Bus Station.  Whilst there is a budget for Accrington 
Bus Station (Pennine Reach) in 2016/17, this has now been superseded by the 
introduction of departure fees as the service moves towards all bus stations 
operated or supported by the County Council becoming self-financing in order to 
deliver agreed savings and therefore this budget has been removed in the MTFS 
from 2017/18.  The forecast does, however, include the use of £0.587m of Bus 
Service Operators Grant (BSOG) which it was not anticipated the County Council 
would receive in 2016/17 following the cessation of the majority of tendered 
network bus services, to cover the in-year shortfall arising from the phased 
introduction of departure fees at bus stations over a 2 year period from 2016/17.  

Page 56



18

 Community transport and tendered network bus services are forecast to 
underspend by £0.180m, which relates to contracts with bus operators and 
vehicle costs.  

 Forecast underspends of £0.057m relate to other areas including Fleet Services.  

The service reported overspends of £0.594m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to the 
current forecast overspend of £0.133m a decrease in forecast overspends of £0.461m 
which largely relates to Integrated Transport Travelcare and concessionary travel.

The budget for Public and Integrated Transport includes approved budget savings of 
£15.133m in 2016/17, and the forecast reflects the fact it is not anticipated that all 
savings will be made in year (as discussed above) and some savings are offset by the 
application of non-recurrent reserve funding of £0.836m from the Transitional Reserve 
in 2016/17 (see below) to support the service as it transitions and works towards 
delivering these savings.

The forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding from 
reserves.

 Contribution of £0.836m from the Transitional Reserve to fund the cost of 
transport to day centres.

 Contribution of £0.500m from the Transitional Reserve to cover the travel costs 
for young people not in education, employment or training (NEET).

 Contribution of £0.089 from the Transitional Reserve to cover the naval architect  
fees employed to carry out a feasibility study on and valuation of the Knott End 
Ferry and revenue costs in 2016/17 (as approved by Management Team).

 Contribution of £0.977m of Bus Service Operators Grant (BSOG) to transport 
reserves to be used to fund shortfalls in 2017/18 arising from the phased 
introduction of departure charges at bus stations. 

3.3.6 Waste Management

Waste Management is forecast to overspend by £3.854m in 2016/17.

Forecast overspends of £1.841m can be attributed to assumptions made in the MTFS 
which have not materialised.  In addition, an increase in residual waste arisings of 5.4% 
is forecast (compared to increases of 1% previously assumed) resulting in forecast 
overspends of £1.768m, and the forecast one-off cost of landfilling residues from 
emptying of the composting halls, following cessation of processing activities (as 
required to deliver agreed savings), is £0.692m.  These are offset by forecast savings 
of £1.703m from diverting waste from landfill to alternative treatment facilities and 
forecast underspends of £0.328m on green waste such as garden waste composting 
where work with district councils to remove food waste from garden waste collections 
has been completed allowing in year reductions in gate prices.  Forecast overspends of 
£1.584m relate to the high cost of insurance premiums at the waste recovery parks 
which continue to put pressure on the waste budget.

There is no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 
2.

Page 57



19

The budget for Waste Management includes approved budget savings of £20.337m in 
2016/17, and the forecast reflects the fact that some savings are offset by the approved 
application of non-recurrent funding of £10.258m from the Transitional Reserve to cover 
the costs of payments to District Councils under cost sharing arrangements and 
£7.750m also from the Transitional Reserve to cover transition costs associated with 
the transformation of the waste company.

The forecast also includes the planned application of non-recurrent reserves funding of 
£1.071m from the Waste Plant Rectification Reserve to cover part of Blackpool Councils 
contribution to waste costs, £0.100m from the Waste General Reserve for payment of 
a Lendlease invoice which was in dispute at the end of 2015/16 and £0.014m also from 
the Waste General Reserve to cover costs relating to Ingol Reuse Shop.

Page 58



20

3.3 Operations and Delivery – Public Health and Wellbeing Services

Ref HEAD OF SERVICE
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.4.1 PUBLIC HEALTH & WELLBEING -73.727 -71.783 1.944 1.944 -3%

3.4.2 PATIENT SAFETY & QUALITY 
IMPROVEMENT

4.832 4.591 -0.240 -0.241 -5%

3.4.3 HEALTH EQUITY WELFARE & 
PARTNERSHIPS

9.399 9.399 0.000 0.000 0%

3.4.4 WELLBEING PREVENTION & 
EARLY HELP

83.879 82.494 -1.385 0.235 -2%

3.4.5 EMERGENCY PLANNING & 
RESILIENCE

1.224 0.835 -0.389 -0.109 -32%

3.4.6 TRADING STANDARDS & 
SCIENTIFIC SERVICES

2.951 3.160 0.208 0.209 7%

3.4.7 DEPUTY DIR PUBLIC HEALTH & 
CONSULTANTS

0.301 0.170 -0.131 -0.131 -43%

 TOTAL – PUBLIC HEALTH 28.860 28.867 0.007 1.907 0%

The total net revised budget for Public Health & Wellbeing Services in 2016/17 is 
£28.860m.  As at the end of quarter 3, the service is forecast to overspend by £0.007m.

3.4.1 Public Health & Wellbeing

The overspend reported at £1.944m is largely due to a reduction in the Public Health 
grant amounting to £1.925m. These grant reductions continue into 2017/18 and have 
been highlighted and adjusted for within the revised MTFS.

There is no significant change to the forecast overspend reported for Quarter 2.

3.4.2 Patient Safety & Quality Improvement

This service is forecast to underspend by £0.240m as a result of staffing underspends 
and the delayed restructure of the service.

There is no significant change to the forecast underspend reported for Quarter 2.

The budget for Patient Safety & Quality Improvement includes approved budget savings 
of £0.788m in 2016/17 which are on track to be delivered through contract reductions 
and staff restructuring.

The forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding.

 Contribution of £0.165m from the Public Health Reserve in relation to the Steady 
On falls prevention strategy. 

 Contribution of £0.276m from the Health Reserve in relation to building resilience.
 Contribution of £0.153m from the Health Reserve utilising the Section 256 

monies on agreed activities.

Page 59



21

3.4.3 Health Equity, Welfare & Partnerships 

There is no variance forecast against the service budget. There is no change to the 
forecast underspend reported to Cabinet at Quarter 2.

The budget for Health Equity, Welfare & Partnerships includes approved budget savings 
of £2.852m in 2016/17 which are all on track for delivery. 

The forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding.

 Contribution of £0.952m from reserves in relation to the Domestic Abuse strategy 
to continue this service up to the end of March 2017. This is part funded from the 
Crime and Disorder reserve £0.714m and part funded from the Transitional 
reserve £0.238m. 

 Contribution of £1.000m to the Transitional reserve in relation to the Prevention 
& Early Help Fund to facilitate services for care leavers and young people who 
are homeless into 2017/18 from the underspend of this £3.000m fund in 2016/17. 

3.4.4 Wellbeing, Prevention & Early Help

An overall underspend of £1.385m has been forecast for the service.

 The Public Health General budget has experienced a delay in ceasing the 
Homestart contract £0.170m earmarked to end March 2016 as part of the agreed 
savings (BOP 48) however this activity aligns with the 0-19 service 
recommissioning and has therefore been extended to coincide with this full 
reprocurement of services. There has been a delay in the substance misuse 
saving strategy causing an in year pressure of £0.911m. These pressures have 
been partly offset by the early delivery of agreed savings in year of £0.503m in 
Children's services as the service redesign moves forward.

 Further underspends have been highlighted this quarter in relation to the 
recommissioned Sexual Health and Healthy lifestyles contracts which now work 
on a tariff payment mechanism of £1.232m.  Data has now been provided to 
suggest lower uptake than expected in this first year of these new commissions. 

 The Public Health Combined Offer budget is forecasting that the underspend 
seen in 2015/16 will continue into 2016/17 in addition to this as the restructure 
takes shape staff turnover will mean there is no requirement from reserves to 
fund the service in its transition year.  Troubled Families is forecast to exceed its 
original income target, and this has again meant that the in-year requirement 
from reserves to fund the service in its transition year has been eliminated. 
Payment by results income has now been built into the 2016/17 monitoring 
position against 320 families. Providing an additional £0.731m underspend 
overall in the area.

There has been a significant change to the forecast overspend reported to Cabinet in 
Quarter 2 due to early delivery of the revised early help service model and the realisation 
of in year savings on the tariff structured public health contracts.

The budget for Wellbeing, Prevention & Early Help includes budget reductions of 
£9.688m in 2016/17 but offsetting these savings is an approved drawdown from the 
transitional reserve of £4.755m. However due to early delivery of savings of the Public 
Health Combined Offer and the additional troubled families monies the drawn down 

Page 60



22

from the transitional reserve to support the Wellbeing & Prevention Service Offer has 
not been needed. 

The forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding 
amounting to £0.374m.

 Contribution of £0.111m from the Public Health reserve for small grants YPS
 Contribution of £0.263m from the working together with families reserve for 

planned workforce development and transition work.

3.4.5 Emergency Planning & Resilience

An underspend of £0.389m has been forecast for the service.

This is due to the over-delivery of income against current targets for Health & Safety 
work. This income stream has been explored further as part of the services zero based 
budget review to ensure the fees and budget are set at a sustainable level going 
forward. 

There has been a change £0.280m to the forecast underspend reported to Cabinet at 
the end of Quarter 2 as a result of more Schools purchasing the Health & Safety services 
and efficiencies within running costs across the services.

The budget for Emergency Planning & Resilience includes approved budget savings of 
£0.088m as part of the Health and Safety traded service which are on track to be 
delivered. 

3.4.6 Trading Standards & Scientific Services

An overspend of £0.209m has been forecast for the service.

Overall, Scientific Services are reporting £0.195m shortfall on income levels made up 
of: a £0.085m reduction on FSA Foods grant, and £0.070m related to the transfer of the 
asbestos function from Design & Construction where there was no budget provision for 
the related costs of sampling this work.  Design & Construction were able to absorb this 
pressure within their overall budget, however Scientific Services have no capacity to do 
this, and have inherited a pressure on their budget.  The other income targets show a 
£0.040m pressure and the remaining small variance of £0.014m is in relation to 
increased rates at the Laboratory.

There is no significant change to the forecast overspend reported to Cabinet at the end 
of Quarter 2.

The budget for Trading Standards & Scientific Services includes approved budget 
savings of £0.363m to be achieved as part of the current restructure. 

The forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding.

 Contribution of £0.060m from equipment renewal reserve for the purchase of 
food testing/analysis equipment for Scientific Services.

 Contribution of £0.057m from improved outcomes reserve reinvesting crime 
proceeds into local crime reduction initiatives delivered via the service.

Page 61



23

3.4.7 Deputy Dir Public Health & Consultants

This service is forecast to underspend as a result of staffing savings of £0.131m within 
the management structure due to consultant vacancies and delayed utilisation of this 
funding in the service staffing redesign.

There is no significant change to the forecast underspend reported to Cabinet at the 
end of Quarter 2.

Page 62



24

3.5 Development and Corporate Services

Ref HEAD OF SERVICE
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.5.1 DEVELOPMENT AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES
0.171 0.171 0.000 0.000 0%

3.5.2 LANCASHIRE ADULT 
LEARNING

-0.075 -0.105 -0.030 -0.030 40%

3.5.3 CORPORATE SERVICES 0.108 0.108 0.000 0.000 0%
3.5.4 CORE BUSINESS SYSTEMS 

TRANSFORMATION
23.993 23.784 -0.209 -0.090 -1%

3.5.5 FACILITIES MGT 5.625 6.047 0.422 0.868 8%
3.5.6 HUMAN RESOURCES 1.035 0.925 -0.110 -0.110 -11%
3.5.7 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 0.190 0.190 0.000 0.000 0%
3.5.8 BUSINESS GROWTH 0.080 0.080 0.000 0.000 0%
3.5.9 LEP COORDINATION 0.000 0.064 0.064 0.064 100%

3.5.10 STRATEGIC ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

0.235 0.080 -0.155 -0.155 -66%

3.5.11 PROGRAMMES & PROJECT 
MGT

0.119 0.119 0.000 0.000 0%

3.5.12 DESIGN and CONSTRUCTION -2.019 -1.951 0.068 0.069 -3%
3.5.13 ESTATES 1.552 1.552 0.000 0.000 0%
3.5.14 PLANNING AND 

ENVIRONMENT
1.459 1.189 -0.270 -0.270 -19%

3.5.15 PROGRAMME OFFICE -0.073 -0.073 0.000 0.000 -0%
3.5.16 SKILLS LEARNING & 

DEVELOPMENT
3.173 3.228 0.055 -0.147 2%

3.5.17 HEALTH & CARE SYSTEMS 
DEVELOPMENT

0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0%

 TOTAL - DEVELOPMENT 
AND CORPORATE 35.574 35.408 -0.166 0.199 2%

The total net revised budget for Development and Corporate Services in 2016/17 is 
£35.574m.  As at the end of December 2016 the service is forecast to underspend by 
£0.166m.

3.5.2 Lancashire Adult Learning

No significant variance from budget is forecast for Lancashire Adult Learning in 2016/17 
and there is no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of 
Quarter 2.

The forecast includes the planned application of non-recurrent funding of £0.030m from 
the Lancashire Adult Learning Reserve to cover the cost of back dated pay awards for 
lecturer staff, £0.007 to cover the costs of Skills funding Agency grant clawback for ESF 
Programmes from 2007 to 2013 and £0.005m for costs relating to projects dating back 
to 2014/15.

Page 63



25

3.5.4 Core Business Systems/Transformation

Core Systems is forecast to underspend by £0.209m in 2016/17 which largely relates 
to vacancies and staff costs.

The service reported underspends of £0.090m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £0.209m, an increase in forecast underspends of 
£0.119m.

The budget for Core Business Systems/Transformation includes approved budget 
savings of £0.592m.  The forecast reflects the achievement of savings and whilst 
£0.175m of non-recurrent funding from the Transitional Reserve in 2016/17 was 
approved, in year underspends has meant that this will not be required.  

3.5.5 Facilities Management

Facilities Management is forecast to overspend by £0.422m in 2016/17. 

 Forecast overspends of £0.394m relate to delays in delivering savings as a result 
of the impact of the property strategy and a number of properties transferred to 
Facilities Management for which there is insufficient budget. 

 Forecast overspends of £0.404m relate to staff and civic catering which are 
largely due to non-delivery of 2015/16 savings and non-delivery of 2015/16 and 
2016/17 savings on Reflections The financial position of both Woodlands and 
Reflections will need to be considered as part of the combined conferencing and 
catering service at County Hall when Woodlands closes.

 Forecast overspends of £0.077m relate to the non-delivery of service offer 
savings and changes to the opening hours of County Hall which will not now go 
ahead.

 Forecast underspends of £0.331m relating to electricity consumption on retained 
County Buildings.

 Forecast underspend of £0.122m relate to staff costs.

The service reported overspends of £0.868m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to the 
current forecast overspend of £0.422m, a decrease in forecast overspends of £0.446m 
which largely relates to electricity consumption and staffs costs.

The budget for Facilities Management includes approved budget savings of £0.286m 
and progress in delivering savings is referred to above.

3.5.6 Human Resources

Human Resources is forecast to underspend by £0.110m in 2016/17.

Forecast underspends of £0.351m relate to the over recovery of income from schools 
following the transition to operating on a traded basis during 2015/16 and £0.056m to 
staff costs, whilst forecast overspends of £0.008m relate to non-staff costs.  This is 
offset by forecast overspends of £0.289m against budgeted use reserves and reflects 
the fact that in year underspends have reduced the need to draw down reserves.   

There is no change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

Page 64



26

The budget for Human Resources includes approved budget savings of £0.289m.  
Whilst £0.371m of non-recurrent funding from the Transitional Reserve in 2016/17 was 
approved, in year underspends has meant that this will not be required.  

3.5.7     Economic Development

This service is forecast to break-even in 2016/17. This incorporates a saving of £0.650m 
that was approved, however it was also approved that this would be offset by funding 
from the transitional reserve of £0.650m in 2016/17.  

3.5.12 Design and Construction

No significant variance is forecast for Design and Construction in 2016/17 and there is 
no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

The forecast reflects the partial achievement of £0.110m of approved budget savings of 
£0.220m in 2016/17, although it is anticipated that savings will be achieved in 2017/18.  
The forecast includes the planned application of non-recurrent reserves funding of 
£6.210m from the Schools Prop Reserve to cover the cost of schools repairs and 
maintenance.

3.5.13 Estates

No variance from budget is forecast for Estates in 2016/17 and there is no change to 
the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

The forecast reflects the achievement of approved budget savings of £0.067m in 
2016/17. 

3.5.14   Planning and Environment

Planning and Environment is forecast to underspend by £0.270m in 2016/17, which 
relates to over achievement of income by the Master Planning Team.

There is no change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

The budget for Planning and Environment includes approved budget savings of 
£1.016m and the forecast reflects the approved application of non-recurrent funding of 
£0.305m from the Transitional Reserve to cover the cost of the phased reduction in 
countryside services.

The forecast also includes the planned application of non-recurrent funding of £0.022m 
from the Waste General Reserve to recompense Farington residents for odour issues.

3.5.15    Programme Office

No variance from budget is forecast for Programme Office in 2016/17. The forecast 
includes savings of £2.590m with the planned application of non-recurrent reserves 
funding of £0.369m from the Transitional Reserve to cover staff costs. It was originally 
approved that £0.831m would be required to support the 16/17 budget saving, however 
the service only now require the figure stated above. 

Page 65



27

3.5.16 Skills, Learning and Development

No significant variance from budget is forecast for Skills, Learning and Development in 
2016/17 and there is no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the 
end of Quarter 2.

The budget for Skills, Learning and Development includes approved budget savings of 
£0.646m in 2016/17.  Whilst £1.013m of non-recurrent funding from the Transitional 
Reserve in 2016/17 was approved, in year underspends and early deliver of savings 
has meant that this will not be required in 2016/17.  

The forecast includes the following planned application of non-recurrent funding from 
reserves.

 Contribution of £0.287m from the Strategic Investment Reserve to cover the 
costs of the Ex Service Personnel Mentoring in Schools.

 Contribution of £0.304m from the Strategic Investment Reserves to cover the 
costs of promoting sustainable employment for young people.

 Contribution of £0.050m from the Former Adults Directorate Grant Funded 
Reserve relating to North Lancashire Carers.

 Contribution of £0.177m from the Transitional Reserve to cover the cost of 
approved apprentices and graduates programme.   

.

Page 66



28

3.6 Commissioning Services

Ref HEAD OF SERVICE
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.6.1 COMMISSIONING 0.163 0.163 0.000 0.000 0%
3.6.2 CORPORATE 

COMMISSIONING
0.136 0.136 0.000 0.000 0%

3.6.3 ASSET MGT 15.430 14.436 -0.995 -0.037 -6%
3.6.4 POLICY INFO    & 

COMMISSION AGE WELL
0.528 0.527 -0.001 0.000 0%

3.6.5 POLICY  INFO    & 
COMMISSION LIVE WELL

0.513 0.511 -0.002 0.006 0%

3.6.6 POLICY INFO  & COMMISSION 
START WELL

0.432 0.462 0.030 0.018 7%

3.6.7 PROCUREMENT 1.271 1.270 -0.001 0.000 0%
3.6.8 BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE 0.809 0.810 0.001 0.000 0%
3.6.9 FINANCIAL RESOURCES 0.113 0.113 0.000 0.000 0%

3.6.10 EXCHEQUER SERVICES 2.530 2.126 -0.404 -0.300 -16%
3.6.11 FINANCIAL MGT 

(DEVELOPMENT AND 
SCHOOLS)

0.424 0.207 -0.217 -0.100 -51%

3.6.12 FINANCIAL MGT 
(OPERATIONAL)

1.572 1.353 -0.219 -0.050 -14%

3.6.13 OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND 
CRIME COMMISSIONER 

-0.015 -0.015 0.000 0.000 0%

3.6.14 CORPORATE FINANCE 6.374 6.374 0.000 -0.050 0%
3.6.15 GOVERNANCE  FINANCE & 

PUBLIC SERVICES
0.139 0.139 0.000 0.000 0%

3.6.16 CORONER'S SERVICE 2.472 2.714 0.242 0.318 10%
3.6.17 INTERNAL AUDIT 0.623 0.593 -0.031 0.060 -5%
3.6.18 LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES
13.034 12.536 -0.497 -0.700 -4%

3.6.19 LEGAL  DEMOCRATIC & 
GOVERNANCE

0.101 0.101 0.000 0.000 0%

 TOTAL - COMMISSIONING 46.649 44.556 -2.093 -0.835 -4%

The total net revised budget for Commissioning Services in 2016/17 is £46.649m.  As 
at the end of December 2016 the service is forecast to underspend by £2.093m.

3.6.3 Asset Management

Asset Management is forecast to underspend by £0.995m in 2016/17.  

 Forecast underspends of £0.965m relates to street lighting.  The County Council 
contributed a £5.000m of capital investment along with the DfT Challenge Fund 
grant to undertake a large scale replacement of existing less efficient sodium 
vapour lanterns with LED energy efficient lanterns which has resulted in 
reductions in energy consumption.  In addition the MTFS included price and 
volume increases within the street lighting budget which have not materialised.

 Forecast underspends of £0.037m relate to Building Schools for the Future 
(BSF).  

 Forecast overspends of £0.007m relate to non-staff costs.

Page 67



29

The service reported underspends of £0.037m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £0.995m, an increase in forecast underspends of 
£0.958m which largely relates to street lighting costs.

The budget for Asset Management includes approved budget savings of £0.391m in 
2016/17 which is offset by the application of non-recurrent reserve funding of £0.341m 
from the Transitional Reserve.  Whilst use of £0.341m was originally approved, 
vacancies and early delivery of savings has meant that this will not be required in 
2016/17. 

The forecast includes a contribution from the Schools PFI Reserves of £0.070m and a 
contribution to the PFI BSF Reserve of £0.560m to fund BSF PFI costs over the life of 
the PFI contracts and the planned application of £0.727m from the Former OCE General 
Reserve to cover the cost of repairs and maintenance works.

3.6.4 Policy, Information and Commissioning Age Well
3.6.5 Policy, Information and Commissioning Live Well
3.6.6 Policy, Information and Commissioning Start Well

No significant variance from budget is forecast for the Policy, Information and 
Commissioning Teams for Start Well, Live Well and Age Well in 2016/17 and there is 
no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

The budget for Policy, Information and Commissioning includes approved budget 
savings of £1.337m in 2016/17 which is offset by the application of non-recurrent 
reserve funding of £0.856m from the Transitional Reserve.  Whilst use £1.337m was 
originally approved, vacancies and early delivery of savings has meant that only 
£0.856m will be required.

3.6.7 Procurement

No significant variance from budget is forecast for Procurement in 2016/17 and there is 
no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

The budget for Procurement includes approved budget savings of £0.416m in 2016/17, 
which is offset by the application of non-recurrent reserves funding of £0.029m from the 
Transitional Reserve.  Whilst use of £0.416m was originally approved, vacancies and 
early delivery of savings has meant that only £0.029m will be required in 2016/17.

3.6.8 Business Intelligence

No significant variance from budget is forecast for Business Intelligence in 2016/17 and 
there is no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 
2.

The budget for Business Intelligence includes approved budget savings of £0.555m in 
2016/17, which is offset by the application of non-recurrent reserves funding of £0.271m 
from the Transitional Reserve.  Whilst use of £0.472m was originally approved, 
vacancies and early deliver of savings has meant that only £0.271m will be required in 
2016/17.

3.6.9 Financial Resources

Page 68



30

3.6.10 Exchequer Services
3.6.11 Financial Management (Development and Schools)
3.6.12 Financial Management (Operational)
3.6.13 Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Treasurer
3.6.14 Corporate Finance

Financial Resources (covering all of the above services) is forecast to underspend by 
£0.840m in 2016/17, which relates to staff vacancies.

The change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2 of £0.340m is as 
a result of further staff vacancies. 

The forecast reflects the achievement of approved budget savings of £0.911m in 
2016/17 and includes the application of £0.060m from the Former CYP DFM General 
Reserve to cover the cost of ICT developments and £1.830m of from the Former 
Corporate DFM Reserves.

3.6.16 Coroners

Coroners Service is forecast to overspend by £0.242m in 2016/17 which relates to SLA's 
with other Local Authorities, various fees for services provided (toxicology, pathology, 
mortuary fees, etc.) as a result of demand led pressures and coroner related staff costs.
 
There is no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 
2.

3.6.17 Internal Audit

No significant variance from budget is forecast for Internal Audit in 2016/17 and there is 
no significant change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

3.6.18 Legal and Democratic Services

Legal and Democratic Services is forecast to underspend by £0.497m in 2016/17.  

 Member Grants is forecast to underspend by £0.156m which relates to members 
expenses and development.

 Legal Services is forecast to underspend by £0.246m of which £0.526m relates 
to staff costs offset by overspends of £0.113m on non-staff costs including legal 
fees, and £0.166m relating to under recovery of income across a number of 
income streams. 

 Underspends of £0.094m relate to the remainder of the service which includes 
Democratic Services and management staff and largely relates to staff costs.  

The service reported underspends of £0.700m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £0.497m, an decrease in forecast underspends of 
£0.203m which largely relates to an increase in forecast in legal fees and a number of 
other smaller changes across the service.

The budget for Legal and Democratic Services includes approved budget savings of 
£0.286m in 2016/17.  Whilst use of £0.135m in 2016/17 was originally approved, 

Page 69



31

vacancies and early delivery of savings has meant that this will not be required in 
2016/17.

The forecast also includes the application of non-recurrent funding of £0.049m of SEND 
Implementation/Reform Grant held on the Former CYP Directorate Grant Funded 
Reserve to cover the cost of a temporary SEN solicitor and a contribution to the County 
Council Elections reserve of £0.400m to fund the cost of future local elections.

Page 70



32

Chief Executive Services

Ref
Cost Centre Description 

LEVEL D
Approved 

Budget

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Outturn

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

Q2 
Cabinet 
Forecast 
Variance

Current 
Period 

Forecast 
Variance

  £m £m £m £m %
3.7.1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 0.553 -0.567 -1.120 -3.160 -202%
3.7.2 SERVICE 

COMMUNICATIONS
0.791 0.790 -0.001 0.000 0%

3.7.3 LARGE SPECIFIC GRANTS 
TO SUPPORT THE 
AUTHORITY

-14.589 -14.589 0.000 0.000 0%

3.7.4 NON SERVICE ISSUES 
CORPORATE BUDGETS

43.848 13.937 -29.911 -30.308 -68%

3.7.5 BUSINESS SUPPORT 0.000 0.019 0.019 0.013 0%
 TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVE 30.603 -0.410 -31.013 -33.456 -101%

The total net revised budget for Chief Executive in 2016/17 is £30.603m.  As at the end 
of December 2016 the service is forecast to underspend by £31.013m. 

The budget includes approved budget savings of £0.065m which has reduced the 
former contingencies budget to nil and is therefore not shown in the table above.

3.7.1 Chief Executive

Chief Executive is forecast to underspend by £1.120m in 2016/17 which relates to staff 
costs. 

The service reported underspends of £3.160m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to the 
current forecast underspend of £1.120m, an increase in forecast of £2.040m as a result 
of cleansing of staffing budgets and forecasts.

The budget for Chief Executive includes approved budget savings of £0.930m in 
2016/17, which is offset by the approved application of non-recurrent reserves funding 
of £0.930m from the Transitional Reserve to cover staff costs (specifically Executive 
Directors, Directors and Executive Support).

The forecast also includes the application of non-recurrent funding of £1.033m from the 
Transitional Reserve to cover the cost of work being undertaken by PwC. 

3.7.2 Service Communications

No significant variance from budget is forecast for Service Communications and there 
is no change to the forecast reported to Cabinet at the end of Quarter 2.

The budget for Service Communications includes approved budget savings of £0.829m 
in 2016/17, which is offset by the approved application of non-recurrent reserves funding 
of £0.434m from the Transitional Reserve. Whilst use £0.760m was originally approved, 
early delivery of savings has meant that only £0.434m will be required in 2016/17.

3.7.4 Non Service Issues Corporate Budgets 

Page 71



33

Non Service Issues Corporate Budgets is forecast to underspend by £29.911m in 
2016/17.  

 The inherited liabilities provision and centralised employers liability have been 
reviewed and as a result are forecast to underspend by £0.283m which is 0.9% 
of the total budget.

 Strategic is forecast to underspend by £2.915m.  This service area was 
previously forecast to underspend by £1.620m with the movement in forecast in 
this report being as a result of borrowing for the annual contribution to the City 
Deal of £1.295m rather than charging this amount to the revenue budget. This 
was identified as a saving as part of the zero based budget review. 

 Projects is forecast to overspend by £0.043m relating to school closure costs for 
which there is no budget.  Budget of £0.060m has been added in the MTFS from 
2017/18.

 Treasury Management is forecast to underspend by £26.756m.  Of this £0.572m 
relates to MRP resulting from changes in the 2016/17 capital programme, 
£1.954m relates to forecast interest payable being lower than budgeted and the 
level of borrowings (net of shared investment scheme) reducing along with more 
favourable interest rates which has thereby reduced interest payable.  A further 
£24.974m relates to a forecast surplus on interest receivable largely due to gains 
incurred for the sale of core bonds and the volatility of markets since BREXIT, 
offsetting the reduction in interest receivable on sold bonds which was reflected 
in the budget.  The ability to make a surplus on the sale of bonds generally arises 
as bond prices rise in reaction to economic uncertainty and monetary policy.  

The impact of external events can be shown by the weekly gains with some £15m of 
the gains coming in just three weeks as follows.

 Some £9.2m of the gains arose in 2 weeks in early August. This followed the 
Bank of England announcing a package of measures to stimulate the economy 
based on concerns around the impact on the economy of BREXIT. These 
measures include the purchase of UK corporate and government bonds thereby 
increasing the price of GILTS in particular.

 A further £5.5m was generated in early October when markets reacted to 
Government announcements on the BREXIT timetable and the potential of a so 
called hard exit which may involve not having free access to trade.

The forecast only includes those gains actually realised. This is a prudent approach 
because there is no guarantee that market movement will provide the opportunity for 
future gains.  It must also be taken into account that there is actually a potential for some 
loss. Although the level of investments are kept within approved levels there is a 
possibility that some of them will need to be sold for liquidity purposes.  If this was to be 
the case then any gain or loss generated would be dependent upon the market at the 
time of sale.

The gains achieved in recent years may indicate that the budget should include an 
additional estimated level of gain. However, in addition to the difficulty in predicting 
future market conditions there are a couple of other factors which need to be 
considered.  Firstly, the ability for the County Council to have an investment portfolio is 

Page 72



34

based on holding reserves and other cash backed accounts on the Balance Sheet.  It 
has been well documented that it is estimated that the County Council is anticipating a 
significant reduction in these balances over the next two years. The Investment Strategy 
will need to be altered to meet the changes and it is reasonable to assume that the 
investment portfolio will then be much smaller. This significantly reduces the ability to 
generate gains.

The service reported underspends of £30.308m at the end of Quarter 2 compared to 
the current forecast underspend of £29.911m a decrease in forecast underspends of 
£0.397m which relates to pension costs and the strategic budget.

The forecast includes the planned application of non-recurrent of £18.286m from the 
Transitional Reserve and relates to the agreed application funds to support the shortfall 
in the County Council's revenue budget.  This forecast also includes an agreed 
contribution from capital receipts of £5.000m under new flexibilities to support the 
revenue budget.

Page 73



Page 74



Appendix B

Money Matters
Financial Outlook for the County Council
Medium Term Financial Strategy as at 
31st December 2016

Page 75



2

2

Contents Page

1 Executive Summary 3

2 Resources 7

3 Net Spending Pressures 15

4 Future Risks 19

Page 76



3

3

Financial Outlook for the County Council: Medium Term Financial Strategy

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Introduction
This report outlines the financial position facing Lancashire County Council over the 
period 2017/18 to 2020/21. The County Council is experiencing an ongoing period of 
unprecedented financial pressure as a result of the Government's extended 
programme of austerity combined with significant increases in demand for public 
services. 

In December 2016 Cabinet received a report outlining the latest financial position 
facing Lancashire Council which covered the period 2017/18 – 2020/21 and estimated 
an estimated in year funding gap of £146.133m by the end of the 4 year period. The 
Council being forecast to have a cumulative deficit of £411.209m by the end of 
2020/21. 

This report provides an updated position following a review of the existing assumptions 
to reflect the most current information available. As a result of these reviews the 
funding gap has increased to £153.389m, however the cumulative gap has however 
decreased to £407.988m as a result of a reduced gap in earlier years. The increase in 
the financial gap is primarily due the announcement within the provisional financial 
settlement that the 2% Adults Social Care Precept could not be applied in 2020/21, 
which had previously been assumed in the MTFS. 

1.2 Financial Overview 2017/18 – 2020/21

Under a separate Money Matters report the County Council's financial position for 
2016/17 as at 31st December has been outlined (£15.298m forecast underspend). 
This is a slightly improved variance reported compared to Cabinet in December , but 
it is important to note that the underspend is primarily the result of Treasury 
Management activities and the underlying position still contains significant pressures 
on demand led budgets, particularly Children's Social Care.   

The assumptions made in the original MTFS have been reviewed and been updated 
to reflect the latest information available.

Page 77



4

4

The table below provides a detailed analysis and movements between the previously 
reported financial gap and the revised financial gap:

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Total 
£m

Spending Gap as reported 
to Cabinet December 2016 60.350 26.497 31.032 28.254 146.133

Add change to forecast of 
spending:

Pay and Pensions 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Price Inflation and Cost 
Changes 0.502 0.179 0.009 0.115 0.805
Service Demand and Volume 
Pressures -0.606 -0.536 -0.140 0.030 -1.252
Adjustments to Savings 
Programme -0.414 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.414
Total change to forecast of 
spending -0.518 -0.357 -0.131 0.145 -0.861

Funding -5.787 4.977 -0.671 9.598 8.117
Total change to forecast of 
resources -5.787 4.977 -0.671 9.598 8.117

Revised funding gap 54.045 31.117 30.230 37.997 153.389

Aggregated Funding Gap Total 
£m

2017/18 (£m) 54.045 54.045 54.405 54.405 216.180

2018/19 (£m) 31.117 31.117 31.117 93.351

2019/20 (£m) 30.230 30.230 60.460

2020/21 (£m) 37.997 37.997

Total 54.045 85.162 115.392 153.389 407.988

Page 78



5

5

1.3 Conclusion

Lancashire County Council continues to face, as previously stated, an unprecedented 
period of financial constraint through to at least 2020/21.

The Statutory Services Budget Review undertaken by PwC and reported to Cabinet in 
October validated the financial position as reported through the MTFS and confirmed 
that even should the County Council reduce its expenditure to the median of lowest 
quartile by 2020/21 an in-year deficit of £79m would remain.  

One of the considerations raised within the report was whether the current funding 
model of the Council is disproportionately contributing to the Lancashire funding gap.  
The County Council has continued to lobby Central Government and relevant 
stakeholders regarding the extreme challenges being faced as a result of the local 
government finance system.

Whilst the principle has been agreed of reviewing each and every continuing service 
using a zero based approach, with reference to our benchmark unit costs and moving 
towards the lowest quartile of the most appropriate comparator group, this will need to 
make early progress during 2017/18 to meet the 2018/19 shortfall and consider 
whether a sustainable financial position will be achievable over a longer period.  Whilst 
the Lancashire Public Service Deliver Model Business Case produced by PwC 
includes a level of estimated financial benefits along with requirement for transitional 
funding, at this stage it remains a proposal to go out to consultation with key partners 
and stakeholders and has not therefore been factored into any of the MTFS 
assumptions.   

It is important to note that the report prepared by PwC and presented at this meeting 
has been based on the MTFS position as at 30th June 2016 which was presented to 
Cabinet in September 2016.

As part of the process of redesigning its services the County Council has previously 
explicitly recognised that it will need to utilise its reserves. Details on the reserves are 
detailed in the Money Matters report Appendix C.  In this report it is noted that as at 1 
April 2016 the County Council had £314.647m of reserves, some of which are already 
committed. Including the Funding Gap identified in this report, it has been identified 
that there is an estimated reserves requirement of £54.045m to support the revenue 
budget in 2017/18.  Consequently, by 31st March 2018 it is anticipated that there will 
only be the £36.000m County Fund and a residual £91.699m of service reserves which 
includes £8.354m school PFI expenditure and £4.944m which is not LCC money, 
meaning in effect the available balance of £78.401m. All other reserves will have been 
spent. If the additional contribution from revenue is available of £15.298m (budget 
monitoring forecast underspend), this will result in a revised balance of service 
reserves being available as at 31st March 2018 of £93.699m.

When reviewing the County Council's reserves in conjunction with the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (Appendix C) the funding requirement to bridge the financial gap in 
2018/19 would total £85.162m. Although there are reserves available at 31st March 
2018 of £93.699m (if the currently forecast underspend is achieved) there are 
commitments in 2018/19 of £10.450m (excluding non LCC commitments) therefore 

Page 79



6

6

the available balance to support the 2018/19 budget is £83.249m resulting in there not 
being sufficient funds within reserves to support the 2018/19 budget. The table in 
Section 3 (Appendix C) clearly demonstrates that there are not sufficient reserves to 
fully meet the budget gap in 2018/19. 

This position is a forecast dependent upon a number of key factors that are detailed 
within Appendix C. 

Page 80



7

7

2. Resources  

The MTFS includes government funding based on the Secretary of State's proposed 
allocations up to 2019/20. 

The MTFS approved by Cabinet in December 2016 included the following forecast 
resources:

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Revenue Support Grant 81.508 56.979 32.894 26.928

Business Rates 180.861 186.141 192.038 197.255

Council Tax 430.627 452.288 475.036 498.932

New Homes Bonus 5.530 3.475 3.334 3.334

Better Care Fund 3.210 22.656 40.014 40.014

Transitional Grant 1.154 0.000 0.000 0.000

Capital receipts 12.500 5.000 0.000 0.000

Total 715.390 726.539 743.316 766.463

The figures above were based on a number of assumptions which have been revisited 
as part of this report. This report has been updated to include information from the 
Provisional Finance Settlement announced in December 2016. It is important to note 
that Council Tax had been increased by 3.99%, however this would have been a Full 
Council decision when setting the budget for each financial year.

Page 81



8

8

The revised resources position incorporating the details set out below is as follows:

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Revenue Support Grant 81.508 56.979 32.894 26.928

Business Rates 181.391 186.747 193.323 198.540

Council Tax 430.627 452.288 475.036 489.334

New Homes Bonus 5.244 3.679 3.530 3.530

Better Care Fund 3.210 22.656 40.014 40.014

Adult Care Support Grant 5.543 0.000 0.000 0.000

Transitional Grant 1.154 0.000 0.000 0.000

Capital receipts 12.500 5.000 0.000 0.000

Total 721.177 727.349 744.797 758.346

2.1 Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement

The Secretary of State announced the Provisional Local Government Finance 
Settlement on 15th December 2016. This has resulted in some amendments to the 
finance assumptions as outlined below. It is important to note that the Settlement only 
covers the period up to 2019/20. It is currently anticipated that a new system of local 
government finance will be in place in 2020/21 which involves local government 
retaining all of the business rates and the impact of a review of the funding formula. 
(However, details of the scheme and the impact on Lancashire are not known.) 

Page 82



9

9

2.2 Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA)

The Secretary of State announces a Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) for each 
authority. This is an indication of the level of resources required by an authority which 
is to be met from business rates and Revenue Support Grant (RSG). On 15th 
December 2016 the Secretary of State announced details of proposed support for the 
next 3 years, i.e. up to 2019/20 and the MTFS has been based on this Settlement.  
These were:

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

Settlement Funding Assessment 
(SFA) 292.249 258.456 239.621 222.032

Funded by:

Revenue Support Grant 81.508 56.979 32.894

Business Rate Baseline 176.948 182.642 189.138

Total 258.456 239.621 222.032

Reduction in SFA -33.793 -18.835 -17.589

The Settlement for 2017/18 to 2020/21 is provisional, however the Secretary of State 
offered local authorities the opportunity to apply for a four year finance settlement 
covering the Revenue Support Grant, Rural Services Delivery Grant and Transitional 
Grant. 
In order to accept the four year settlement the County Council would have been 
required to provide an efficiency plan that could deliver a balanced budget. However  
as it has been evidenced by work completed on the base budget review and regular 
reviews of the MTFS, and validated by PwC, there are not sufficient funds within the 
proposed settlement to support the Council's statutory services. This has resulted in 
the County Council declining the offer of a four year settlement. 

Although the Revenue Support Grant has been confirmed for 2017/18 the decision not 
to take the four year settlement could result in future years grant being subject to 
change. As part of this forecast Revenue Support Grant is assumed to reduce each 
year until ultimately it is phased out completely by April 2021 at the latest.   

A further significant risk associated with the figures included in the table above relates 
to growth. At the time of the Autumn Statement the Chancellor indicated that that the 
economy was still resilient but forecasted a fall in future economic growth.  The 
forecast of economic growth at the time of the Autumn Statement was 2.1% for 2016 
but estimated a worsening position in 2017 (1.4%) and 2018 (1.7%). There is currently 

Page 83



10

10

still uncertainty both at home and in the world economy, particularly following the 
United Kingdom's decision to leave the European Union. This will have an impact on 
Government finances and could potentially result in further public sector expenditure 
reductions although the Chancellor has announced that the aim to generate a surplus 
by the end of parliament is no longer sustainable. 

Business Rates 

The business rates budget consists of:
 Business rate top up grant
 Business rate income from District Councils
 Section 31 grants

As shown in the table above detailing the SFA the business rate income is a significant 
portion of funding to local authorities. The baseline is an assessment of the business 
rate income required to meet service needs. For the County Council the amount 
anticipated to be received from the business rates collected in the area is less than its 
assessed need, therefore it receives a top up grant. 

The MTFS that was reported to December Cabinet consisted of: 

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Top Up grant 142.827 147.041 151.741 156.441

Funding from Districts at baseline 33.991 34.994 36.112 36.542

S31 Grants 4.043 4.106 4.185 4.272

Total 180.861 186.141 192.038 197.255

Note: 2020/21 does not form part of the indicative settlement announced by the Secretary of State.

Unless there is change in the SFA due to the economic uncertainties referred to above; 
the level of the top up grant between 2017/18 and 2020/21 is the best basis of the 
forecast available for business rates figures in the MTFS. There is however some 
degree of discretion over the locally raised amounts.

It is also possible that business rate income could fall, although there is a safety net 
within the business rates retention system which ensures that no authority’s income 
will fall by more than a set percentage of their original baseline funding level (and this 
level will be increased by RPI every year). The Safety Net percentage has been set at 
-7.5%. 

In terms of the MTFS, whether or not to add additional income is difficult to assess. 
There is little local information and much will depend on the general economic 
performance of local areas. In addition, there are valuation appeals outstanding, some 
of which are on large value properties.  If successful these will have a negative impact 
on the ability to generate business rates.

Page 84



11

11

The baseline data already assumes an increase in income derived from local business 
rates. Therefore given the economic uncertainty, forecast income has been 
maintained at the baseline funding level.

In 2015/16 the Government compensated authorities for the cost of a number of 
measures introduced by the Government. These were the multiplier cap, the 
temporary doubling of small business rates relief, the temporary maintenance of small 
business rate relief when a second property is occupied, relief given to newly built 
properties whilst they are empty (herein after referred to as “new empty” property 
relief), relief given to long-term empty property brought into occupation (“long-term 
empty relief”), retail relief, flooding relief and payments made in lieu of transitional 
relief. Compensation is provided by means of a grant paid under Section 31 of the 
Local Government Act 2003 and the County Council has been notified that its S31 
grant in 2016/17 is £3.992m. There is no information in respect of future years but the 
main elements of the grant relate to the multiplier cap and the doubling of the small 
business rate relief. 

Assuming that the reliefs continue the impact of the multiplier cap is likely to rise with 
inflation as without the cap the income would have increased. Other reliefs are more 
likely to relate to the change in the business rate base. It has been assumed that the 
level of S31 grants is maintained at the current level.

The final aspect of the business rate forecast is the pooling arrangement. The 2017/18 
budget now includes an additional £0.400m due to the continuation of the pooling 
arrangement that is in place for 2016/17. This is agreed on an annual basis and was 
not included in the previous MTFS reported to Cabinet as a continuation had not been 
confirmed at that point. The pool is a one year arrangement, therefore the additional 
income has not been included past 2017/18. 

The impact of changes are as follows:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£m £m £m £m

Increase in income 0.530 0.606 1.285 1.285
Impact on Funding Gap -0.530 -0.076 -0.679 0.000

Council Tax

The MTFS presented to Cabinet in December included the assumption that Council 
Tax would increase by 3.99% per annum which is the current referendum limit; 
although at that time it was important to note that this had not been confirmed for future 
years. 

The MTFS last presented to Cabinet also assumed an increase to the tax base year 
on year of 1%, as this level of growth would seem to be reasonable given the economy 
is growing, and also with the City Deal impacting on the number of households that 
will be paying Council Tax. 

Page 85



12

12

In the provisional settlement issued on 15th December 2016 one of the significant 
changes confirmed by the Secretary of State was in relation to the referendum limit for 
the Adult Social Care Precept. When it was introduced in 2016/17 the limit was a 2% 
increase. However, in recognition of the pressures facing Local Authorities responsible 
for Adult Social Care it was announced that Local Authorities could bring forward the 
additional precept (with a cap of 3% rather than 2% each year) but could still only 
increase Council Tax by a maximum of  6% over the financial years 2017/18 – 
2019/20. The settlement also announced that there would be no Adult Social Care 
Precept in 2020/21.  

On reviewing the flexibility given by the secretary of state the impact is minimal on the 
impact on the financial gap over the 4 years despite the different levels of increases 
available in in each year:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Previous MTFS (2% 2017/18 - 
2020/21)

430.627 452.288 475.036 498.932 1,856.882

Current Position (2% 2017/18 - 
2019/20, 0% 2020/21) 430.627 452.288 475.036 489.334  1,847.284
Increase/decrease in income 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.598
Impact on financial gap 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.598  9.598

Scenario A (3% 2017/18 - 
2018/19, 0% 2019/20 -2020/21) 434.768 461.027 474.903 489.196  1,859.894
Increase/decrease in income 4.142 8.740 -0.133 -9.736
Impact on Funding Gap -4.142 -4.598 8.873 9.603  9.736

*includes 1% increase in tax base and 1.99% council tax increase

This MTFS currently contains an Adult Social Care precept increase of 2% for 
2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20. The significant impact on this MTFS is that it can no 
longer be forecast that a 2% Adult Social Care Precept can be applied in 2020/21 and 
this has therefore been reflected. 

Page 86



13

13

The estimated impact of not being able to include the Adult Social Care Precept in 
2020/21 is as follows:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£m £m £m £m

Council Tax following 
settlement (3.99% 2017/18, 
2018/19, 2019/20 and 
1.99% in 2020/21)

430.627 452.288 475.036 489.334

Council Tax – Previous 
MTFS (3.99% each year)

430.627 452.288 475.036 498.932

Difference 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.598
Impact on funding gap 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.598

New Homes Bonus

The operation of the New Homes Bonus (NHB) has recently been subject to 
consultation, with one area for consideration being the number of years for which NHB 
will be paid. As part of the provisional settlement the Secretary of State announced 
that payments would be received for 5 years from 2017/18 and 4 years in future years. 
In addition no NHB will be given for the first 0.4% of growth. These changes have been 
made to wholly fund the 2017/18 Adult Care Support Grant which has resulted in a 
new gain for Lancashire overall (County Council, District Council and Unitary Councils)  
benefitting by £4.033m.

The impact on the previously reported MTFS is shown below:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£m £m £m £m

New Homes Bonus – 
provisional settlement

5.244 3.679 3.530 3.530

New Homes Bonus – 
previous MTFS

5.530 3.475 3.334 3.334

Difference -0.286 0.204 0.196 0.196
Impact on funding gap 0.286 -0.490 0.008 0.000

  
Better Care Fund

Last year the Government announced a new Better Care Fund with an additional 
£1.5bn being provided by 2019/20 to support the cost of social care. The first allocation 
was due in 2017/18 with allocations increasing up to 2019/20. The provisional 
allocations within the provisional settlement remained unchanged. 

Page 87



14

14

Adult Care Support Grant

A key announcement by the Secretary of State as part of the provisional settlement 
was a new £240m Adult Care Support Grant for 2017/18 only with Lancashire County 
Council's indicative allocation being £5.543m. This has been wholly funded by the 
changes that the Secretary of State announced in relation to New Homes Bonus 
allocations.  As this is new funding this has not previously been included in the MTFS, 
with the impact on the financial gap shown below:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£m £m £m £m

Adult Care Support Grant – 
provisional settlement

5.543 0.000 0.000 0.000

Adult Care Support Grant -  
previous MTFS

0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Difference 5.543 0.000 0.000 0.000
Impact on funding gap -5.543 5.543 0.000 0.000

Capital Receipts

As part of the 2015 Autumn Statement the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced 
that the rules for the use of capital receipts, which is the income received from the sale 
of the County Council's fixed assets, were to be amended to help local authorities 
deliver more efficient and sustainable services. Previously the use of capital receipts 
has been restricted to the funding of capital expenditure or the repayment of debt. 
From 1 April 2016 capital receipts can be used to fund revenue expenditure which 
meets qualifying criteria, which is that the revenue expenditure needs to be on any 
project which is designed to generate ongoing revenue savings or to transform the 
service so as to make savings or improve the quality of service provision.

Local authorities will only be able to use capital receipts from the sale of property, plant 
and equipment received in the years in which this flexibility is offered. They may not 
use their existing stock of capital receipts to finance the revenue costs of reform. 

Current estimates of the capital receipts to be generated are:

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

Capital receipts 
generated 5.000 12.500 5.000

 
An estimated £22.500m has previously been agreed to be applied to the revenue 
budget. It should be noted that the receipts are one-off resources and there is a 
possibility that the level of receipts to be generated from the sale of assets will not be 
maintained at these levels for a sustained period of time. The actual receipts received 
in any one year will fluctuate in line with local property markets and the type of asset 
available for sale. Therefore, there is a risk that in any given year the receipts actually 

Page 88



15

15

received will be less than assumed and therefore the situation will be monitored 
closely.  This report does not assume any variation from the existing assumptions. 
However, receipts received in the year to date total £7.269m with capital receipts over 
£5.000m being able to be carried forward to support the £12.500m target in 2017/18. 

The funding gap shown in section 1.1 already assumes the use of these receipts in 
supporting the revenue budget under the new flexibilities which Councils can apply

3. Net Spending Pressures

The MTFS covers spending pressures including pay increases, contractual inflation, 
increased demand for services and the impact of previously agreed savings measures 
that are either no longer achievable at all or not to the scale or in the timeframes 
originally planned.

3.1 Pay

In the July 2015 Budget the Chancellor announced a 4 year restriction on public sector 
pay increases at 1% per year. This assumption was built into the current MTFS and 
remains unchanged, however a full review of the current staffing cohort and future 
savings that may impact on staffing has been included. This also incorporates a 
separate calculation for the National Living Wage which the County Council is 
committed to paying its employees as an accredited member of the Living Wage 
Foundation. The pay requirement also includes a provisional amount for additional 
holiday pay to staff. 

As part of the review of the MTFS a resource requirement has been built in to fund the 
cost of increments that will be paid to staff as they progress up their respective grades. 
The staffing budgets have undergone a full realignment in 2016/17 with budgets being 
allocated on specific grade points at the start of 2016/17, with the staffing data being 
regularly reviewed as changes occur, particularly in relation to service restructures. 

The pension's element of the pay budget is also included in the MTFS based on the 
latest information in relation to the County Council's estimated contribution rate and 
deficit contributions. 

The Chancellor has previously announced that an apprenticeship levy would be 
introduced to help fund employer apprenticeship schemes and "invest in Britain's 
future." The levy will be introduced in April 2017 at a rate of 0.5% of an employer’s pay 
bill, therefore an estimate of £1.500m has been included in the MTFS. 

The pay estimates in this MTFS have not changed since those reported to December 
Cabinet as there is no new information available.

Page 89



16

16

The table below presents the amounts built into the MTFS for pay:

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Total
£m

Revised Pay Budget 
Requirement 9.837 5.851 6.018 5.672 27.378

3.2 Price Inflation and Cost Changes

Contractual price increases represent a significant cost pressure to the County 
Council. The assumptions have been subject to regular review by services with an 
increase of £5.212m identified over the 4 year period.  

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Total
£m

Price inflation – 
previous MTFS 19.784 14.288 16.552 17.955 68.579

Revised price inflation 
requirements 20.286 14.467 16.561 18.070 69.384

Impact on Financial 
Gap 0.502 0.179 0.009 0.115 0.805

Some of the key areas of price pressure are:

 A significant part of the price pressures shown in the above table relate to 
inflationary pressures within Adults Services. This is calculated using a model 
designed by Laing and Buisson which is commonly used to estimate inflation 
within social care. It is forecast that a budget requirement of £46.224m over the 
MTFS period is required for payments to external providers of social care 
(excluding the impact of the National Living Wage) and it is important that the 
County Council keeps up with increases in the price of resources for suppliers 
to ensure the required service provision is delivered. 

The price inflation included in the MTFS for Adults Service is profiled as follows:
o 2017/18 – £14.734m
o 2018/19 - £9.847m
o 2019/20 - £10.404m
o 2020/21 - £11.239m

The inflationary pressures included in this MTFS for Adults Services reflects an 
increase of £0.805m following updated inflationary information figures based 
on the most up to date information available. The County Council has a legal 

Page 90



17

17

responsibility to demonstrate that suppliers are able to deliver services with the 
fees paid to them. This figure also incorporates recent fee increases of £5.200m 
that were agreed by the Cabinet Member which is the main reason behind the 
additional requirement in 2017/18. 

 Waste Disposal continues to require significant budget to meet inflationary 
commitments over the next four years. In total the budget requirement for the 
service is £9.055m. This requirement has not changed since the previous 
MTFS presented to Cabinet. 

 Children's Social Care is the final significant area that requires price inflation 
within its budget. In the previous MTFS a total of £7.344m was included for 
items that will inflate such as agency payments, residence orders, foster and 
other allowances and payments to health and this has remained unchanged for 
this iteration of the MTFS. 

 Other smaller areas of price inflation include transport costs, concessionary 
travel, highways, winter maintenance, energy and legal fees. 

3.3 Demand Pressures

All services have reviewed the demand pressures faced by the County Council in 
future years. The impact of this review has been identified and is reflected in the 
revised MTFS and it can be seen that a significant proportion of the funding gap that 
has been identified is due to demand pressures.

In total it is estimated that the demand pressures are now £91.005m. This is a 
decrease of £1.251m from the previous MTFS over this time period.

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Total
£m

Demand – previous 
MTFS 37.883 15.180 18.068 21.126 92.257

Revised Demand 
Requirements 37.277 14.644 17.928 21.156 91.005

Impact on Financial 
Gap -0.606 -0.536 -0.140 0.030 -1.252

Adult Social Care represents a large proportion of the demand pressures.  Adult Social 
Care has long seen annual increases in the demand for services and the MTFS 
attempts to predict growth in future years largely based on reviewing current and past 
activity trends but also taking into account future population changes. From "a social 
care perspective" demand covers both increasing numbers of people eligible for 

Page 91



18

18

support and the increasing complexity of those supported reflected in higher average 
costs per service user. 

In deriving the estimated cost of demand the following projections have been used:

 Older People – population projections from the ONS for the aged over 85 
population.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Total Older People 
Population Projection 
Growth

1.92% 2.52% 3.07% 3.57%

 
The percentages presented above are those that were used within the previous 
MTFS, and still reflect the best estimate of population increases and have 
therefore continued to be used within this MTFS. 

All other demand assumptions contained within this revised MTFS regarding 
Adult Social Care have been reviewed based on the most up-to-date trend 
analysis and also incorporated budget realignments that are reflected within the 
revenue monitoring report. The previous MTFS contained £56.493m additional 
budget requirement for demand over the next four years, whereas this MTFS now 
contains £52.354m. The reduction of £4.140m primarily relates to a detailed 
review of actual activity in the year to date which supports a lower increase in 
those demand assumptions reflected in the previous MTFS. 

The demand included in the MTFS for Adults Service is profiled as follows:
o 2017/18 – £9.456m
o 2018/19 - £11.369m
o 2019/20 - £14.476m
o 2020/21 - £17.053m

 The cost of Children's Social Care continues to experience increasing demand 
and has been significantly increased again as part of this iteration of the MTFS 
(and can be linked to the budget monitoring positon for Children's Social Care). 
The forecast continues to be £21.420m. This is in addition to significant additional 
budget that the service has been given to support improvements following the 
Ofsted inspection. Both previous MTFS' reported to Cabinet in 2016/17 included 
significant increases to the Children's Social Care budget. However, as part of 
this MTFS there is not a further additional requirement as previous increases are 
currently deemed sufficient based on the most recent activity information 
available.

The particular area of concern is in relation to Agency Residential placements as 
demand seems to be particularly high in this area. The forecast is based on 
available financial and activity information and assumes that placements will 
continue to increase by 3.4% (the current average monthly increase in the 
number of children placed in Agency Residential) until the end of the financial 
year and then after that will increase as per child population increases. Work is 

Page 92



19

19

underway to review the underlying reasons for increases in numbers of 
placements and is an area that is being kept closely under review by the 0-25 
Board. 

A Finance Sub-Group has been established to specifically focus on the cost 
drivers, unit costs and financial analysis of the costs and demand levels being 
experienced in Children's Social Care, with their findings being reported back to 
the 0-25 Board. This analysis and action is vital as the current demand levels 
represent a significant risk to the MTFS assumptions, as there are only currently 
population increases (c£0.300m - £0.400m) included in each year from 2018/19 
– 2020/21 which are significantly below the current demand levels. 

 The revised MTFS for 2017/18 continues to include a significant amount in 
relation to Waste Services demand pressures as a result of increases in residual 
waste arisings with 5.4% currently being forecast (compared to a previously 
assumed 1%) and some additional green waste costs. The budget requirement 
for waste was previously £11.204m and has now increased to £14.092m as a 
result of increased projections for waste arisings based on the most recent 
information available. 

3.4 Other

There are no adjustments to this section as part of this revised MTFS.

3.5 Adjustments to Savings Programme

The positive adjustment relates to the planned savings in Highways as a result of a 
combination of extra savings identified from implementing the new Highways Asset 
Management System that will be in place by the start of 2017/18, and additional 
income that it is anticipated the service will receive for pre-application advice. 

4. Future Risks 

In addition to the economic uncertainty post-Brexit outlined earlier in the report, the 
following are key future risks, the full impact of which is not yet known at this stage:

4.1 Agreed Savings Plans Delivery

The scale of agreed savings is hugely significant given both the scale and areas 
covered, and there are inherent risks in their delivery (2016/17 – c£100m, 2017/18 – 
2020/21 c£54m).  Any significant under-delivery of agreed savings will create an 
additional funding gap and impact on the ongoing and longer-term financial health of 
the Council.  This has been identified as one of the highest level risks in the Risk and 
Opportunity Register.  There are comprehensive arrangements in place to track 
delivery of financial savings and take corrective actions where required.

Page 93



20

20

4.2 Identification of Further Savings Opportunities

Cabinet has previously agreed a financial strategy based on:

 Setting an expenditure target for service expenditure levels to move in line with 
the lower quartile of the most appropriate group of local authorities for individual 
services.

 Stage 3 of the base budget review being the zero base with a fundamental review 
of all expenditure within services to ensure the best value for money.  The 
outcome of this work was presented as part of the Money Matters reports at the 
December Cabinet with the impact included within the MTFS.  

 PwC are assisting the council in scoping and undertaking the review prioritising 
development of a public services operating strategy for the County Council to 
enable it to be sustainable within its forecast financial resource envelope by 
2020/21.  This is ongoing with the outcomes from this work to be presented at 
the same Cabinet meeting as this report. Whilst the Lancashire Public Service 
Deliver Model Business Case produced by PwC includes a level of estimated 
financial benefits along with requirement for transitional funding, at this stage it 
remains a proposal to go out to consultation with key partners and stakeholders 
and has not therefore been factored into any of the MTFS assumptions.

 Transformational work across Adult Social Care aimed at both improving 
systems and processes and delivering significant financial savings.  The overall 
scale and phasing of benefits from the review has now been finalised and 
included in the revised position within this report.

4.3 Business Rates Retention / Changes to Funding Formula

In 2015 the Chancellor announced that local government as a whole would be able to 
keep 100% of business rates by 2020.  Using Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) 
forecasts the Government has estimated that additional business rates kept by 
councils will be c£13bn by 2020/21 with the intention to transfer new responsibilities 
to local government to ensure cost neutrality overall of the funding changes.  There is 
currently a system of redistribution (top-ups and tariffs) to reflect there are councils 
with relatively higher needs but lower income from business rates and vice versa.  The 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has also announced a full 
review of needs and redistribution which will be used as the starting point for the new 
system when it comes into force.  

The County Council currently receives a top-up grant, primarily as a result of having 
Adult Social Care responsibilities, and there is insufficient information currently, 
although work is progressing nationally with a number of complete and planned 
consultations regarding the changes, to model what the financial impact of the 
changes will be and the financial impact on the County Council.

Page 94



21

21

4.4 STP

Since 2015 the County Council has been a partner organisation in the Better Care 
Fund planning and pooled budget arrangements with Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCG's).  Building on this is the requirement for every part of the NHS to have a locally 
led Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) in place by 2017.  This is within the 
context of the substantial financial challenges for the health and social care system in 
Lancashire and will necessarily involve the development of new delivery models and 
ways of working to minimise the impact of funding reductions and provide a better offer 
for patients and service users.

4.5 Children's Social Care

Children's Social Care is currently reporting an overspend of £19.706m with demand 
levels continuing to increase, particularly within agency residential placements. The 
establishment of the 0-25 Programme Board in addition to a supporting Finance Sub 
Group are critical in analysing the current and future levels of demand and working to 
develop demand management across the service. However if demand levels are not 
controlled then there will be substantial additional costs to the County Council that are 
not currently reflected within this MTFS. 

4.6 Procurement 

The MTFS includes general inflationary price increases across impacted areas which 
are generally based around national statistics such as RPI. It also includes any 
contractual or other price pressures that are known about. However, there are a 
number of significant procurement exercises that the County Council (e.g. homecare) 
will be undertaking over the timeframe of the MTFS (with some over the next 12 
months) and any additional price increases will be built into future MTFS revisions. 

4.7 Education Services Grant

The Local Authority received £14.5m revenue funding in 2016/17 from this grant.  This 
funding stream will cease in its current form in September 2017 with transitional 
funding being provided for 2017/18.  The exact level of this funding is still to be 
announced but a reduction in overall funding is anticipated.  This will be reviewed as 
further information becomes available.  Generally there is a shift towards LAs being 
funded for "Central Duties" via a new smaller grant and "Retained Duties being funded 
out of the Dedicated Schools Grant which will require Schools approval.  New 
regulations and rates are still awaited. The MTFS does not currently reflect a reduction 
in this grant. 

Page 95



Page 96



Appendix C

Money Matters
Update on the County Council's Reserves 
Position as at 31st December 2016

Page 97



2

Contents Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Reserves 5

3. Impact of 2016/17 Outturn Forecast 8

4. Transfers between Reserves 9

Annex A – Strategic Investment Reserve 10

Annex B – Downsizing and Risk Management Reserve 11

Annex C – Transitional Reserve & Transition of Services 
Reserve 12

Annex D – Service Reserves 13

Page 98



3

Money Matters – Update on the County Council's Reserves Position 
for 2016/17

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Introduction 

As at 1st April 2016 the County Council had total reserves of £400.669m. Of this, 
£86.022m was held for schools and its use is restricted. 

This report sets out the reserves position in line with the current budget monitoring report.

1.2 Summary

As part of the process of redesigning its services the County Council has previously 
explicitly recognised that it will need to significantly utilise its reserves over the next 2 
financial years. 

At Full Council in February 2016 the revenue budget included an approved commitment 
from the Transitional Reserve of £46.518m in 2017/18 to support the reported financial 
gap at that time. However, following a review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) for Cabinet in December 2016 (as at 30th September 2016) it was identified that 
a revised value of £60.350m was required in 2017/18 which resulted in an additional 
£13.832m added into the MTFS in total. 

A further quarterly review of the MTFS has taken place as at 31st December 2016 
(Appendix B) it is now identified that £54.045m is required in 2017/18 (a reduction of 
£6.305m compared to the figures reported to Cabinet in December). The reduction has 
been included within the reserves forecast detailed within this report. 

The budget monitoring position for the financial year 2016/17 (Appendix A) is reporting 
a forecast underspend of £15.298m. Please note that this is not currently included 
within the forecast reserves position in this report.

In summary, by 31st March 2018 it is expected that there will only be the £36.000m 
County Fund and a residual £91.699m of service reserves which includes £8.354m 
school PFI expenditure and £4.944m which is not LCC money, meaning in effect the 
available balance of £78.401m. All other reserves will have been spent. If the additional 
contribution from revenue is available of £15.298m (budget monitoring forecast 
underspend), this will result in a revised balance of service reserves being available as 
at 31st March 2018 of £93.699m.

When reviewing the County Council's reserves in conjunction with the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (Appendix B) the funding requirement to bridge the financial gap in 
2018/19 would total £85.162m. Although there are reserves available at 31st March 2018 
of £93.699m (if the currently forecast underspend is achieved) there are commitments in 
2018/19 of £10.450m (excluding non LCC commitments) therefore the available balance 
to support the 2018/19 budget is £83.249m resulting in there not being sufficient funds 
within reserves to support the 2018/19 budget. The table in Section 2 clearly 

Page 99



4

demonstrates that there are not sufficient funds to support the budget gap in 2018/19. In 
order to set a legal budget therefore further savings will need to be made. 

In summary, this report indicates that there are sufficient funds within the Transitional 
Reserve to deliver a balanced budget in 2017/18 as per the agreed financial strategy. 
However this is dependent upon a number of key factors and risks which are as follows:

 All values within reserves that are currently reported to be available funds are 
transferred into the transitional reserves with no further commitments emerging in 
these areas now that the transfer has taken place. 

 There is limited slippage on the agreed savings programme for 2017/18 and 
2018/19. Any slippage will result in a requirement for funding from reserves. 

Page 100



5

2. Reserves  

The table below illustrates the summary forecast position in respect of the Council's 
reserves:

Reserve Name
Opening 

Balance as at 
1 April 2016

2016-17 
Forecast 

Spend

2016-17 
Transfers 
to / from 

other 
reserves

2016-17 
Forecast 
Closing 
Balance

2017-18 
Forecast 

Spend

2018-19 
Forecast 

Spend

2019-20 
Forecast 

Spend

Total as 
at               
31 

March 
2020

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

County Fund (3.1) -36.000 0.000 0.000 -36.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -36.000

Strategic Investment Reserve 
(3.2) -10.971 2.351 5.194 -3.426 1.543 0.883 0.060 -0.940

Downsizing Reserve (3.3.1) -64.841 14.171 28.062 -22.608 13.548 9.060 0.000 0.000

Risk Management Reserve (3.3.2) -15.784 3.155 4.872 -7.757 7.757 0.000 0.000 0.000

Transitional Reserve (3.4.1) -141.837 59.863 -54.712 -136.685 74.125 0.530 0.000 -62.031

To facilitate the transition of 
services  (3.4.2) 0.000 0.000 -3.000 -3.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -3.000

Service Reserves  (3.5) -45.214 8.893 10.800 -25.521 10.325 -0.340 -0.683 -16.219

TOTAL -314.647 88.434 -8.784 -234.997 107.298 10.133 -0.623 -118.189

Forecast underspend 2016/17 0.000 0.000 -15.298 -15.298 0.000 0.000 0.000 -15.298

MTFS Funding Gap (for 
information)      85.162 115.392 200.554

Available reserves to support 
financial gap 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 83.249 0.000 83.249

TOTAL (not including MTFS 
Funding Gap included above 
for  information)

-314.648 88.434 -24.082 -250.295 107.298 93.382 -0.623 -50.238

Note 1: the Service Reserves reflect the inclusion of the actual income and committed expenditure for the 
Growth Deal of £52.825m. This cannot be seen in the table above as these are funds that come into reserves 
and are spent during the year and therefore have a net nil impact. 

Note 2: £0.415m has transferred from Service Reserves to Schools Reserves which are not included in this 
report. 

The above table demonstrates that following the application of the remaining available 
reserves of £83.249m to support the financial gap/shortfall within the 2018/19 budget the 
only remaining balance on reserves are County Fund (£36.000m), non LCC reserves 
(£13.898m) and 2019/20 commitments (-£0.340m). This draw down from reserves in 
2018/19 is not sufficient to cover the whole financial gap in this financial year and provides 
confirmation that there are no reserves left to support the financial gap in future years.

Page 101



6

2.1 County Fund Balance

The County Fund is the balance set aside to cover the authority against a serious 
emergency situation (e.g. widespread flooding); a critical and unexpected loss of income 
to the authority and for general cash flow purposes.  In considering these various factors 
the County Council holds a County Fund balance at £36.000m. It is proposed this balance 
is retained as a prudent safeguard against any unexpected financial pressures.

2.2 Strategic Investment Reserve

This reserve is held to fund an agreed programme of investment in areas including 
economic development, increasing employment opportunities and green energy.

On 1st April 2016 this reserve held a balance of £10.971m. £2.351m is forecast to be 
spent in 2016/17, £5.194m is being transferred to the Transitional Reserve and another 
£2.486m is forecast to be spent by 2019/20 leaving a balance of £0.940m.

Details of the commitments are shown in Annex A.

2.3 Reserves held to deliver Organisational Change 

The County Council currently has two reserves to deliver organisational change: the 
Downsizing Reserve and the Risk Management Reserve.

2.3.1 Downsizing Reserve

The Downsizing Reserve is predominantly used to fund voluntary redundancies arising 
from the reduction in the size of the organisation. 

On 1st April 2016 this reserve held a balance of £64.841m.  In 2016/17 spend against the 
reserve is forecast to be £14.171m of which £8.210m is committed for estimated 
redundancy costs. In the previous report to Cabinet in December 2016 the profile of 
redundancy payments was revised resulting in revised commitment estimates of 
£12.109m in 2017/18 and £9.060m in 2018/19, resulting in £21.470m being transferred 
to the Transitional Reserve as it was no longer required.  

In addition, as part of the review of this reserve a further uncommitted amount of £6.992m 
has been transferred to the Transitional Reserve, with an additional £0.400m transferred 
to into the Downsizing Reserve. Expenditure of £1.439m is forecast to be spent in 
2017/18 leaving a nil balance on the reserve.

Details of the commitments are shown in Annex B.

2.3.2 Risk Management Reserve

The Risk Management Reserve was created as a result of extraordinary Treasury 
Management performance during 2014/15 and previous years.  This reserve is available 
to help the authority manage risks to funding and service delivery going forward.  

Page 102



7

This reserve had a balance of £15.784m on 1st April 2016. It is forecast that £3.155m will 
be spent in 2016/17 in addition to £4.872m uncommitted reserves transferring to the 
Transitional Reserve. It is forecast that a further £7.757m is committed in 2017/18 leaving 
a nil balance at the end of 2019/20.

Details of the commitments are shown in Annex B.

2.4 Transitional Reserve 

The plans announced at 26th November Cabinet for the period 1st April 2016 until 31st 
March 2018 are heavily supported by reserves.  A Transitional Reserve has been created 
to provide a source of funding for these plans and the balance at the 1st April 2016 was 
£141.837m. Cabinet plans have specifically identified £134.519m use of reserves during 
the period which includes the funding gap identified in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) for 2016/17 and 2017/18 of £72.331m.  Additional net transfers in from 
other reserves and transfer in of surplus balances on the 2015/16 council tax, business 
rates, new homes bonus, a Clayton Park Conference centre saving, a Prevention and 
Early Help underspend and a VAT repayment this totals £54.712m.  The forecast balance 
on the reserve at the end of 2019/20 is a surplus of £62.031m. However this will not be 
available if the balance is utilised in 2018/19 to support the revenue budget gap. 

Details of the commitments are shown in Annex C.

2.4.1 Reserve to facilitate the transition of services

At Full Council on 11th February 2016 a budget amendment was approved that requested 
a £3.000m contingency be made available from reserves to facilitate the transition of 
services. This has been set aside from the Transitional Reserve because of this specific 
nature of the approval. 

Details are shown in Annex C.

2.5 Service Reserves

The County Council holds numerous reserves for specific service provision.

As at 1st April 2016 service reserves totalled £45.214m. There are forecast costs of 
£8.893m in 2016/17, transfers to the Transitional Reserve of £10.929m, and a transfer to 
the schools reserve of £0.415m, in addition to an offsetting transfer into a non- LCC 
reserve in relation to Health monies of £0.544m. There is forecast spend from these 
reserves of £9.303m in later years to leave a balance of £16.219m at the end of 2019/20.  
£9.064m of this balance relates to long term PFI programmes and £4.834m is not LCC 
money. 

Details of the Service Reserves are shown in Annex D.

2.6 Schools

Under statute schools have delegated budgets.  It is the responsibility of the individual 
schools to maintain reserves to cover risks and meet future plans.  As schools make their 

Page 103



8

own delegated decisions on when to use reserves, no forecast is made. School reserves 
cannot be used for any other purpose. The current status of schools' reserves is as follows

Reserve Name
Opening 

Balance as 
at 1 April 

2016

YTD actual 
2016/17

Forecast Closing Balance 
as at 31st March 2017

   
 £m £m £m

School Reserves -86.022 3.196 -82.826

3. Impact of 2016/17 Outturn Forecast

The current monitoring report is showing an underspend of £15.298m. Any underspend 
at the year-end can be transferred to the Transitional Reserve.

Page 104



9

4. Transfers between Reserves

In the previous reports to Cabinet in September and December the transfers below were 
agreed between reserves:

TRANSFERS BETWEEN RESERVES £m Transfer from Transfer To Reason

Young Person's Travel -0.194 Strategic Investment Reserve Transitional Reserve Additional spend needed

School Crossing Patrols -1.500 Risk Management Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Delay in Wellbeing & Prevention Service Offer -3.000 Risk Management Reserve Transitional Reserve Additional spend needed

Unallocated surplus -4.664 Dow nsizing Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Schools Forum money -0.415 Service Reserves 1093306  Schools DSG Reserve  Surplus transferred back to Schools

Schools Forum money -0.884 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Unused

Adult fee increases -1.365 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve
Uncommitted balance in Adult Social Care for 
w ork being funded from Transitional Reserve

To facilitate the transition of services -3.000 Transitional Reserve Facilitate of transition of services To keep separate from Transitional Reserve

Green Energy Fund -5.000 Strategic Investment Reserve Transitional Reserve Capital expenditure to be funded from 
borrow ing

Transitional costs associated w ith 
Transformation Programme

-2.328 Dow nsizing Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Redundancy Provision -21.470 Dow nsizing Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Occupational Health 0.003 Risk Management Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Liquid Logic - Children's Services -0.125 Risk Management Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Liquid Logic - Adult Social Care -0.250 Risk Management Reserve Transitional Reserve Not needed

Children's Services Reserve -2.143 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Troubled families reserve not needed

Mvs Acc Purcexh Fund            -0.002 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Lancashire Adult Learning Reserve -0.350 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve
Not needed - includes some capital 
expenditure that w ill be funded from 

borrow ing
Former Adults Directorate Grant Fund  -0.072 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

UK & Ireland Civinet Netw ork -0.013 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Waste PFI Comp Payments Reserve -0.312 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Equipment Renew al Reserve     -0.271 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Parking Reserve Fund          -0.144 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed
Building Design & Construction Reserve                    -0.020 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Energy Surveys Reserve        -0.066 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Priorities Contingencies Reserve -0.010 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Waste  Plant Rectif ication    -5.000 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed - capital expenditure that w ill be 
funded from borrow ing

Finance & Information Dfm -0.060 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

Cap Funding Reserve - Resou   -0.147 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

NoWCard Renew al Reserve       -0.100 Service Reserves Transitional Reserve Not needed

A further review of reserves held has identified additional transfer between reserves has 
been included in this report:

TRANSFERS BETWEEN RESERVES £m Transfer from Transfer To Reason

Repayment of funds held for East Lancs CCG 0.544 Transitional Reserve 1293756  Health Services - Earmarked Balance not LCC money

Adults - New tons 0.400 Transitional Reserve Dow nsizing Reserve Additional commitment

Farrington Fund Commitments 0.031 Transitional Reserve Waste PFI Comp Payments Reserve
Commitments made - funds 

transferred in error

Page 105



10

 Annex A – Strategic Investment Reserve

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT RESERVE Opening Balance 
as at 1 April 2016

2016-17 
Forecast 

Spend

2016-17 
Transfers to / 

from other 
reserves

2016-17 
Forecast 
Closing 
Balance

2017-18 
Forecast 

Spend

2018-19 
Forecast 

Spend

2019-20 
Forecast 

Spend

Total as at               
31 March 

2020

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Promoting Sustainable Employment for Young 
People -0.304 0.304 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Young Person's Travel -0.194 0.000 0.194 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Economic Development - GAMMA -0.017 0.017 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Economic Enterprise Zone Strategic 
Development -0.500 0.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Economic Development - Exertis -0.500 0.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Economic Development - Boost Continuation -1.929 0.643 0.000 -1.286 0.643 0.643 0.000 0.000

Armed Forces Apprentice Costs -1.770 0.287 0.000 -1.483 0.243 0.240 0.060 -0.940

Early Action /Early Response -0.100 0.100 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Green Energy Fund -5.000 0.000 5.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Core Systems Transformation -0.657 0.000 0.000 -0.657 0.657 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total on Strategic Investment Reserve -10.971 2.351 5.194 -3.426 1.543 0.883 0.060 -0.940

P
age 106



11

Annex B – Downsizing and Risk Management Reserves

DOWNSIZING & RISK MANAGEMENT RESERVES Opening Balance as 
at 1 April 2016

2016-17 
Forecast 

Spend

2016-17 
Transfers to / 

from other 
reserves

2016-17 
Forecast 
Closing 
Balance

2017-18 
Forecast 

Spend

2018-19 
Forecast 

Spend

2019-20 
Forecast 

Spend
Total as at               

31 March 2020

Downsizing Reserve £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Redundancy provision -50.849 8.210 21.470 -21.169 12.109 9.060 0.000 0.000

Transitional costs associated with Transformation 
Programme -2.328 0.000 2.328 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Review for Adult Social Care (Newtons) -7.000 5.961 -0.400 -1.439 1.439 0.000 0.000 0.000

Unallocated surplus -4.664 0.000 4.664 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total on Downsizing Reserve -64.841 14.171 28.062 -22.608 13.548 9.060 0.000 0.000

Risk Management Reserve £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Occupational Health 0.003 0.000 -0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Adults LD Remodelling Reserve -0.784 0.000 0.000 -0.784 0.784 0.000 0.000 0.000

Provision  to mitigate against risk DoLS- Deprivation 
of Liberty Safeguards -2.900 0.424 0.000 -2.476 2.476 0.000 0.000 0.000

Impact of Fairness Commission Report
Council Welfare Provision and the Care and Urgent 
Needs

-3.000 0.000 0.000 -3.000 3.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

School Crossing Patrols -1.500 0.000 1.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Social Work Dedicated Review Team -2.653 1.156 0.000 -1.497 1.497 0.000 0.000 0.000

Liquid Logic - Children's Services -0.400 0.275 0.125 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Liquid Logic - Adult Social Care -0.250 0.000 0.250 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Payment of additional allowances when staff are on 
leave -1.300 1.300 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Transfer to Transitional Reserve for Wellbeing -3.000 0.000 3.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total on Risk Management Reserve -15.784 3.155 4.872 -7.757 7.757 0.000 0.000 0.000

P
age 107



12

Annex C – Transitional Reserve & Transition of Services Reserve

TRANSITIONAL RESERVE
Approved 
at 1st April 

2016

2016-17 
Forecast 

Spend

2016-17 
transfers 
to / from 

other 
reserves

2016-17 
Forecast 
Closing 
Balance

2017-18 
Forecast 

Spend

2018-19 
Forecast 

Spend

2019-20 
Forecast 

Spend

Total as 
at               

31 March 
2020

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

SPEND FROM THE TRANSITIONAL RESERVE
Use of reserves in future years as 
per 26th Nov Cabinet paper - 
revised in Feb 16 (BoP) 16/17 & 
17/18 spend

-65.856 34.231 0.000 -31.625 16.331 0.000 0.000 -15.294

Use of reserves in future years to 
cover revenue shortfall

-64.804 18.286 0.000 -46.518 54.045 0.000 0.000 7.527

Delay in Wellbeing & Prevention 
Service Offer

-4.755 0.000 0.000 -4.755 0.000 0.000 0.000 -4.755

Children's New tons + Skylake -0.200 0.200 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

To fund shortfall on domestic abuse 
contracts (C&D)

-0.238 0.238 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

To facilitate the transition of 
services

-3.000 0.000 3.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Pw C Consultancy packages 0.000 1.033 0.000 1.033 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.033

Older People's Residential & Nursing 
Homes

0.000 1.700 0.000 1.700 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.700

Repayment of funds held for East 
Lancs CCG

0.000 0.000 0.544 0.544 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.544

Supported Living and Domiciliary 
Care Fees for 2016/17

0.000 3.500 0.000 3.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 3.500

Apprentices & Graduate salaries 0.000 0.177 0.000 0.177 2.248 0.530 0.000 2.955

Young Person's Travel 0.000 0.500 0.000 0.500 0.500 0.000 0.000 1.000

Prevention and Early Help Fund 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.000 0.000 0.000 1.000

New tons - Adults 0.000 0.000 0.400 0.400 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.400

Unallocated Balance on Transitional 
Reserve

-2.984 0.000 0.000 -2.984 0.000 0.000 0.000 -2.984

TRANSFERS INTO THE TRANSITIONAL RESERVE
Council Tax Collection Fund surplus 
2015-16

0.000 0.000 -7.037 -7.037 0.000 0.000 0.000 -7.037

Returned New  Homes Bonus 2015-
16

0.000 0.000 -0.399 -0.399 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.399

Business Rates Collection Fund 
Deficit 2015-16

0.000 0.000 2.334 2.334 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.334

Clayton Park Conference Centre 
Limited

0.000 0.000 -0.542 -0.542 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.542

VAT Repayment 0.000 0.000 -2.556 -2.556 0.000 0.000 0.000 -2.556

Prevention and Early Help 
Underspend

0.000 0.000 -1.000 -1.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -1.000

Transfer to / from other Reserves 0.000 0.000 -49.457 -49.457 0.000 0.000 0.000 -49.457

Total on Transitional Reserve -141.837 59.863 -54.712 -136.685 74.125 0.530 0.000 -62.030

TRANSITION OF SERVICES RESERVE
Approved 
at 1st April 

2016

2016-17 
Forecast 

Spend

2016-17 
transfers 
to / from 

other 
reserves

2016-17 
Forecast 
Closing 
Balance

2017-18 
Forecast 

Spend

2018-19 
Forecast 

Spend

2019-20 
Forecast 

Spend

Total as 
at               

31 March 
2020

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
To facilitate the transition of 
services 0.000 0.000 -3.000 -3.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -3.000

Page 108



13

Annex D – Service Reserves

Reserve Name
Opening 

Balance as at 
1 April 2016

2016-17 
Forecast 

Spend

2016-17 
transfers 
to / from 

other 
reserves

2016-17 
Forecast 
Closing 
Balance

2017-18 
Forecast 

Spend

2018-19 
Forecast 

Spend

2019-20 
Forecast 

Spend

Total as at               
31 March 

2020

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Children's Services Reserve -5.902 0.914 3.442 -1.546 1.249 0.000 0.000 -0.297
SEN Reform/Implementation Grant -1.852 0.049 0.000 -1.803 1.803 0.000 0.000 0.000
C&D Domestic Abuse              -0.714 0.714 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Mvs Acc Purcexh Fund            -0.002 0.000 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Lancashire Adult Learning Reserve -0.429 0.042 0.350 -0.037 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.037
Former Adults Directorate Grant Fund  -0.537 0.051 0.072 -0.415 0.415 0.000 0.000 0.000
Adult Social Care - Transitional Res    -4.004 0.050 1.365 -2.589 2.589 0.000 0.000 0.000
Better Care Fund Reserve        -1.368 0.000 0.000 -1.368 1.368 0.000 0.000 0.000
Bus Stations Reserve 0.000 -0.977 0.000 -0.977 0.600 0.377 0.000 0.000
Roundabout Sponsorship Inco    -0.048 0.048 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Improved Outcomes Partnership -0.057 0.057 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
UK & Ireland Civinet Netw ork -0.030 0.017 0.013 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Waste PFI Comp Payments Reserve -0.482 0.167 0.282 -0.033 0.033 0.000 0.000 0.000
Equipment Renew al Reserve     -0.331 0.055 0.271 -0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.005
Parking Reserve Fund          -0.144 0.000 0.144 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Building Design & Construction 
Reserve                             

-0.020 0.000 0.020 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Energy Surveys Reserve        -0.066 0.000 0.066 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Priorities Contingencies Reserve -0.010 0.000 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Waste  Plant Rectif ication    -7.500 1.071 5.000 -1.429 0.491 0.000 0.000 -0.938

Finance & Information Dfm -0.060 0.000 0.060 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

R&M Planned Property Review  Works -0.727 0.727 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Economic Development          -0.027 0.027 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Grow th Deal Reserve           0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Champions Funds               -0.003 0.000 0.000 -0.003 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000
Local Member & Gatew ay Gran             -0.083 0.000 0.000 -0.083 0.083 0.000 0.000 0.000
Cap Funding Reserve - Resou   -0.147 0.000 0.147 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
NoWCard Renew al Reserve       -0.400 0.000 0.100 -0.300 0.300 0.000 0.000 0.000
CC Election Reserve                     -1.251 -0.400 0.000 -1.651 1.651 -0.400 -0.400 -0.800
Public Health Grant -0.628 0.276 0.000 -0.352 0.108 0.000 0.000 -0.244
School PFI 
Schools - Fleetw ood High School PFI 
Earmarked  

-1.014 0.070 0.000 -0.944 0.060 0.070 0.080 -0.734

Schools – Private Finance Initiative - 
Building Schools for the Future Phases 1, 
2, 2a & 3    

-6.311 -0.560 0.000 -6.871 -0.600 -0.490 -0.370 -8.331

Not LCC Reserves
Youth Offending Team Reserve -1.024 0.131 0.000 -0.893 0.172 0.103 0.000 -0.618
Lancs Safeguarding Children Board 
Reserve    

-0.449 0.089 0.000 -0.361 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.361

Queen St Engine Repair Fund -0.204 0.010 0.000 -0.194 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.194

Lancaster City Gen Acqsts Fund -0.008 0.001 0.000 -0.007 0.000 0.000 0.007 0.000
Health Services - Earmarked     -4.100 4.644 -0.544 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

LEP reserve                             -1.553 0.000 0.000 -1.553 0.000 0.000 0.000 -1.553

DfT Funding for P/Ship (not LCC monies) -1.830 1.830 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

School Catering Repair And    -1.743 -0.210 0.000 -1.953 0.000 0.000 0.000 -1.953

JSNA reserve                            -0.104 0.000 0.000 -0.104 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.104

MADE reserve                           -0.051 0.000 0.000 -0.051 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.051
TOTALS -45.214 8.893 10.800 -25.521 10.325 -0.340 -0.683 -16.219

Note: included in the LCC Waste Plant Rectification reserve at 31st March 2017 is a forecast £0.491m held 
for Blackpool Borough Council.

Page 109



Page 110



Appendix D

Money Matters - 
Capital Monitoring and Financing 
Position as at 30th November 2016

Page 111



1

Contents Page

1. Executive Summary 2

2. Quarter 3 Monitoring (as at November 2016) 3

3. Analysis of Quarter 3 (as at November 2016) spend 4
4. Delivery of Outputs on larger projects 4

Page 112



2

Money Matters – Capital Monitoring and Financing Position as at 
30th November 2016

1. Executive Summary

Cabinet on 8th December 2016 approved a report entitled "Capital Monitoring and 
Financing Position" as at 30th September 2016. The Quarter 2 capital monitoring position 
presented in that report showed forecast spend for 2016/17 of £150.264m against a re-
profiled budget of £151.510m, a forecast spend less than budget of £1.246m, equating 
to a variance of 0.8%.  This means that 99.2% of the budget is forecast to be spent.

This report sets out the capital monitoring position at the end of November 2016 against 
the re-profiled capital programme 2016/17 budget approved by Cabinet on 6th October 
2016.  It does not include any additions to the capital programme in October and 
November 2016, which were immaterial.

Table 1 shows that the forecast spend for 2016/17 is unchanged from the 8th December 
report.

Table 1 also shows the cumulative spend to 30 November 2016 and compares it with the 
equivalent position in 2015/16 in order to give an understanding of the progress being 
made to date with regard to overall spend level.

In addition, Table 2 contains an analysis of spend between spend on actual project 
delivery, as distinguished from spend on purely financial matters e.g. passporting of a 
grant or payment of a final invoice.

Details of progress on some of the larger projects within the programme are provided 
(Table 3). The full delivery schedule of projects was presented within the 6th October 
Cabinet report appendices.

Page 113



3

2. Quarter 3 Monitoring (as at November 2016)

Table 1 below shows capital expenditure up to the end of November 2016 on the major 
blocks of the capital programme, with the equivalent 2015/16 figures for comparison.

2015/16  NOV ACTUALS 2016/17 NOV 
ACTUALS

2016/17 full 
year  re-
profiled 

approved 
budget

2016/17 full 
year 

Forecast 
out turn

Forecast 
Variance
(under 

budget)/ over 
budget

Forecast 
Variance as a 
percentage of 

budget

2015/16 
spend to 
end Nov

% of 
budget 
spent at 

Nov

2016/17 
spend to 
end Nov

% of 
budget 
spent at 

Nov

Table 1

£m £m £m £m % £m

Schools 
(excluding 
Devolved 
Formula 
Capital DFC)

27.318 27.407 0.089 0.33% 13.850 67.8% 20.001 73.2%

Schools DFC 2.545 2.545 0.000 0.00% 1.913 60.3% 1.189 46.7%
Children and 
Young 
People

1.491 1.491 0.000 0.0% 3.594 78.7% 0.217 14.5%

Waste and 
Other 6.091 6.091 0.000 0.00% 0.409 46.5% 1.635 26.8%

Adult Social 
Care 12.537 12.537 0.000 0.00% 1.137 14.3% 11.500 91.7%

Corporate 13.251 13.251 0.000 0.00% 8.511 46.2% 7.874 59.4%
Vehicle 
Replacement 1.934 1.884 -0.050 -2.59% 2.347 53.1% 0.063 3.2%

Transport 35.280 35.125 -0.155 -0.44% 32.094 63.4% 23.444 66.4%

Highways 51.063 50.093 -0.970 -1.89% 23.122 57.1% 16.928 33.2%

Total 151.510 150.424 -1.086 -0.72% 86.977 57.6% 82.851 54.6%

Direct comparison between one year and another is difficult given that capital projects 
and their profiles of expenditure will vary to some degree from year to year. Spend in the 
year to date is comparable with the same point last year and 2015/16 outturn was very 
similar in scale to the size of the 2016/17 programme.  
.
Forecast variances in excess of £0.1m are analysed below:

 Transport block forecast spend less than budget £0.155m mainly due to delay in 
Ormskirk Town Centre scheme now to be slipped into 2017/18.

 Highways block forecast spend less than budget £0.970m due to 3 schemes 
potential underspend, 2 schemes retention monies re-profiled, 2 schemes 
slippage due to bad weather, 5 s106 schemes slippage due to resource issues, 1 
scheme delay due to ongoing cost negotiations.

Page 114



4

3. Analysis of Quarter 3 (as at November 2016) spend total between project 
delivery and financial transactions only

Table 2 below shows the analysis of spend in each block between project delivery and 
financial transactions such as grants passported to third parties, or payment of final 
invoices:

2016/17 
spend to 
end Nov 

16

Passported 
grant

Non –delivery 
costs eg. final 

invoice payments 

Project delivery 
as at November 

2016Table 2

£m £m £m £m
Schools (excluding 
Devolved Formula 
Capital DFC)

20.001 0.000 0.000 20.001

Schools DFC (Bank 
account schools only-
other schools 
reimbursed at year 
end) 

1.189 1.189 0.000 0.000

Children and Young 
People 0.217 0.000 0.000 0.217

Waste and Other 1.635 0.000 0.000 1.635

Adult Social Care 11.500 11.477 0.000 0.023

Corporate 7.874 0.000 0.000 7.874

Vehicle Replacement 0.063 0.000 0.000 0.063

Transport 23.444 0.000 0.610 22.834

Highways 16.928 0.000 1.662 15.266

Total 82.851 12.666 2.272 67.913

At the end of November 2016, the percentage of spend comprised of project delivery 
was 82%. 

4. Delivery of Outputs on larger projects

Table 3 below illustrates progress on some of the larger projects within the re-profiled 
2016/17 capital programme.

*Figures for the budget are simply 66% of the full year budget, (representing eight months 
to 30th November 2016 out of twelve months) which in some cases may not be a relevant 
comparator.

Page 115



5

Full Year 
Budget 
2016/17

Budget  
2016/17*

Spend to 
end of 

Nov 2016Table 3 Projects

£m £m £m

Actual physical delivery

Schools 
(excluding 
DFC)

15/16 Condition 

15/16 Basic 
Need  

Pre-15/16  Basic 
Need 

8.297

9.981

9.486

5.531

6.654

6.324

5.291

4.390

9.481

88 projects of which 41 are 
complete, 25 are on site and 22 
are in design/ tender stage.

21 projects of which 12 are 
operationally complete, 4 are on 
site and 5 are in design.

16 projects of which 13 are 
complete, 1 is on site, and 2 are 
partial possession and are 
phased. 

Schools DFC 15/16 DFC 2.545 1.696 1.189

Children and 
Young 
People

Chorley Youth 
Zone 

Overnight short 
breaks Lynhurst

The Bungalow, 
Fulwood

1.000

0.065

0.000

n/a

0.043

0.000

0.000

0.033

0.000

Contribution agreed in principle 
but not paid by end of Nov due to 
Cabinet report decision due Jan 
2017.

The re-profiled budget for 2017/18 
and 2018/19 contains £2.242m 
and £0.560m respectively to 
provide 2 further facilities.  

Cabinet Member report being 
prepared to approve use of 
£0.105m of unallocated CYP 
budget to provide residential 
placements for young people with 
complex needs.

Waste and 
Other

Fire suppression 
upgrade 

Asset 
preservation 

2.268

3.492

1.512

2.328

0.000

1.351

Works due to commence late 
November 2016.

Waste company has profiled full 
budget to be spent by 31.3.17. 

Adult Social 
Care

16/17 Disabled 
Facilities Grant 

Chorley Extra 
Care 

11.477

1.000

n/a

n/a

11.477

0.000

Passported to Districts in full in 
April 2016.

Contribution agreed but not paid 
by end of November. (Cabinet 
report approved 13/9/16.)

Corporate

Superfast 
Broadband

Brierfield Mill
/ (Northlight)  

Core Systems 

3.470

1.280

2.078

2.313

0.853

1.385

0.469

0.094

0.719

BT delivery on track but delay in 
BT evidencing claims for payment.

New programme.

Delay in Highways Asset 
Management system 

Page 116



6

Customer 
Access Core 
Systems 

County Hall 
refurb  

1.419

3.000

0.946

2.000

0.936

1.969

implementation.

Vehicle 
Replacement

Ongoing vehicle 
replacement

1.934 1.289 0.063 A new procurement framework 
has resulted in vehicle orders 
being placed in the latter part of the 
year. Projected 16/17 spend is 
£1.884m.

Transport

Heysham to M6 
Link

Blackpool 
Tramway 

Burnley Pendle 
Growth Corridor

Pennine Reach 

Burnley Town 
Centre

East Lancs 
Strategic Cycle 
Network

20.800

2.681

3.166

1.327

1.522

2.668

13.800

1.787

2.111

0.885

1.015

1.779

18.500 

0.610

1.932

0.762

0.770

0.160

Road opening took place on 31 
October 2016, with outstanding 
work on landscaping and 
motorway communications 
scheduled for completion by Mar 
17. 

Final Invoice expected in 16/17.

Substantive programme to be 
completed by Mar 2018, but one 
project has been delayed due land 
acquisition issues, so this may not 
complete until Mar 2019.

Majority of work completed. A bus 
lane, off road parking and 
Statutory Quality Bus Partnership 
to be completed.

Scheme delivery on programme. 
Manchester Road complete. The 
Mall and Curzon Street south 
substantially complete and St 
James's Street started. Advanced 
preparation work ahead of 
programme.

Delivery has been delayed due to 
five factors:

 Objection to tarmac 
surfacing.

 Negotiations with land 
owners re: route.

 Objections to upgrade 
from PROW to 
Bridleways.

 Resolution of issues 
raised by flooding last 
December.

 Awaiting decision re 
Highways England 
potential delivery of 4 

Page 117



7

Contribution to 
City Deal

2.500 0.000 0.000

sections. 

Annual contribution at year end

Highways

Asset 
maintenance 
several years 
starts excluding 
Bridges and 
Local Priorities 
Response 
Fund(LPRF)

LPRF

Bridges

Rawtenstall Bus 
Station

DfT grant funded 
Flood projects

DfT Street 
Lighting 
Challenge Fund

23.574

2.500

2.000

3.910

3.796

6.750

15.716

1.666

1.333

2.606

2.530

4.500

9.172

0.325

1.136

0.000

1.316

4.247

WIP not included

Planning permission secured. 
Commuted sum approved to fund 
future maintenance. A legal 
agreement is being drawn up 
which will enable a transfer of 
monies to Rossendale Borough 
Council in 16/17.

The total DfT grant received in 
15/16 was £5m, of which £0.293m 
was spent in 15/16, £3.796m is 
forecast to be spent in 16/17 and 
£0.911 is phased to be spent in 
17/18. 65 projects have been 
completed to date and 27 are due 
to be completed in 17/18 due to 
issues re site investigation, land 
access and underwater surveys. 
Nb. In their capacity as Risk 
Management Authorities, Districts 
are able to submit business cases 
for submission to EA / DEFRA re 
further flood related schemes. 

To ensure the optimum balance 
between reduction in revenue 
energy cost and minimum 
contractor price, procurement was 
delayed in order to secure a 25% 
procurement saving. 

Page 118



Appendix E

Money Matters - 
Capital Programme 2017/18 – 2020/21

Page 119



1

Contents Page

1. Introduction 2

2. Proposed Programme and Funding 2

3. Capital Finance Charges 4

Page 120



2

Money Matters – Capital Monitoring Programme 2017/18 – 
2020/21

1. Introduction

Cabinet on 6th October 2016 approved a re-profiled programme for 2016/17 to 2018/19 
and beyond, totalling £390.967m, of which £151.510m related to 2016/17. This report 
restates and updates the 2017/18 onwards element of that re-profiled programme

2. Proposed Programme and Funding

Table 1 below details the re-profiled capital programme for the period 2017/18 to 
2019/20 and 20/21, as approved as part of the 2016/17 and beyond re-profiled 
programme at Cabinet on 6th October 2016, and the funding thereof including an 
addition to the programme totalling £1.428m added to the Corporate block of the 
programme. The addition of £1.428m will be spent partly on White Cross Education 
Centre-Mill 14, Lancaster, and partly on County Hall Old Building essential capital 
works.

City Deal is included only where LCC make a direct contribution to it or where the County 
Council is supporting the cash flow requirements of the project in the early years. City 
Deal and other Lancashire Economic Partnership activity is reported separately via the 
existing LEP reporting and performance framework. LCC is the accountable body for 
the LEP.

It should also be noted that the programme below does not include any estimate of 
spend carried forward from 2016/17, which will be quantified in the 2016/17 outturn 
report. 

TABLE 1 2017/18
(£m)

2018/19
(£m)

2019/20 & 
2020/21

(£m)
Total
(£m)

Schools (excluding Devolved Formula 
Capital) 29.686 28.562 2.580 60.828

Schools Devolved Formula Capital 2.634 2.634 0.000 5.268

Children and Young People 3.014 4.560 3.586 11.160

Waste and Other 2.023 0.100 1.665 3.788

Adult Social Care 0.562 7.808 6.061 14.431

Corporate 12.276 13.661 11.349 37.286

Vehicle Replacement 3.930 3.460 0.000 7.390

Transport 26.082 14.641 0.840 41.563

Highways 39.604 19.567 0.000 59.171

TOTAL 119.811 94.993 26.081 240.885

Page 121



3

FUNDED BY:
2017/18

(£m)
2018/19

(£m)
2019/20 & 
2020/21

(£m)
Total
(£m)

GRANTS RECEIVABLE (shown in 
year to be received)

DfT Street Lighting Challenge Fund -4.800 0.000 0.000 -4.800

DfT Annual Highways Maintenance 
Grant -20.514 -18.567 0.000 -39.081

DfT Highways Maintenance Incentive 
Funding 2017/18 to be determined TBC TBC TBC TBC

DfT LTP/Integrated Transport Block 
annual grant -6.054 -6.054 0.000 -12.108

DfE School Basic Need annual grant -29.006 -2.580 0.000 -31.586

DfE Schools Condition annual grant -11.209 0.000 0.000 -11.209

Schools Devolved Formula Capital -2.634 -2.634 0.000 -5.268

Growing Places 0.000 0.000 -2.479 -2.479

Sub Total -74.217 -29.835 -2.479 -106.531

GRANTS UNAPPLIED BALANCES as 
at 31st March 2016

DfT  Flood Damage  Funding received 
in 2015/16 -0.911 0.000 0.000 -0.911

Adult Social Care grant -2.386 0.000 0.000 -2.386

School DfE grants brought forward -11.690 0.000 0.000 -11.690

Sub Total -14.987 0.000 0.000 -14.987

GROWTH DEAL FUNDING

Burnley Pendle Growth Corridor -4.000 -4.000 0.000 -8.000

East Lancs Cycle Network 0.000 -1.550 0.000 -1.550

Sub Total -4.000 -5.550 0.000 -9.550

DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

Burnley Town Centre -0.550 0.000 0.000 -0.550

Burnley Pendle Growth Corridor 0.000 -0.485 0.000 -0.485

Blackpool Borough Council 
contribution to  Waste projects (held in 
designated reserve) 

-0.194 0.000 0.000 -0.194

Sub Total -0.744 -0.485 0.000 -1.229

CONTRIBUTIONS FROM OTHER 

Page 122



4

EXTERNAL BODIES

BDUK re SFBB Phase 2 -0.965 0.000 0.000 -0.965

Sub Total -0.965 0.000 0.000 -0.965

USE OF RESERVES

Asset maintenance earmarked reserve -0.727 0.000 0.000 -0.727

Sub Total -0.727 0.000 0.000 -0.727

CAPITAL RECEIPTS

Funding for School Playing Field 
programme from sale of school 
approved via Cabinet report

-1.036 0.000 0.000 -1.036

Sub Total -1.036 0.000 0.000 -0.965

TOTAL FUNDING -96.676 -35.870 -2.479 -135.025

NET BORROWING REQUIREMENT 23.135 59.123 23.602 105.860

Table 1 above shows that the total borrowing requirement over the life of the programme 
is expected to be £105.860m. These figures exclude cashflow support to City Deal. 
It should be noted however that the mix of borrowing and external funding in each 
individual year is subject to change in line with factors such as changes in awards from 
funding bodies, changes in timing of external funding, and changes to programmed 
spend.  
The grants receivable section includes both confirmed and indicative amounts in the 
year for which they are allocated and paid to the authority by national government. 
There is currently no indication from the Education Funding Authority (EFA) of any 
allocation for 2018/19, hence for prudence, no estimate for this year is included in the 
funding table below, and no expenditure for this allocation is included in the Schools 
profiled spend.

3. Capital Finance Charges

The County Council has a current debt level of approximately £1bn which has been 
incurred over a number of years and consists of debt incurred under the current 
Prudential System as well as under the previous credit control system.  Prior to the 
introduction of the Prudential Code in April 2004 the County Council were given credit 
approvals from central government. This was a limit on the amount the County Council 
could borrow and the government included provision for the financing of the debt within 
the RSG settlements. Traditionally the County Council borrowed up to the maximum 
permitted. The introduction of the Prudential Code removed these limits enabling 
authorities to borrow at a level they deem as affordable. It is accepted that all authorities 

Page 123



5

would have a different basis on the concept of affordability based on their differing 
priorities and the need for capital expenditure. 

As at the 31/3/2016 since the inception of the Prudential Code the County Council has 
incurred £135m of capital expenditure funded from borrowing to meet its capital 
priorities    These prior decisions mean that there is a long term budget commitment in 
terms of both Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), which is effectively a charge for the 
principal repayment, and interest charges. Under the current MRP policy the charge for 
the debt prior to the introduction of the Prudential Code is £8.887m per annum. In 
addition, the MRP to cover since the implementation of the Prudential Code is in the 
region of £11m. This is forecast to rise to £11.7m by 2020/21.

The loans, and therefore interest charges, are not tied to specific expenditure but are 
managed as a pool. To fund the outstanding debt the interest charges are in the region 
of £18m per annum although this will vary as interest rates and MRP payments change. 
Therefore without any additional borrowing being incurred there is a commitment in 
future years' budgets of some £37.7m by 2020/21.  In addition the re-profiled Capital 
Programme for 2016/17 onwards approved at 6th October 2016 Cabinet included 
borrowing of £158m over the period of the Programme. By 2020/21 the additional 
borrowing cost will depend on the estimated economic life of the assets, and the timing 
of the borrowing. It is currently estimated that by 2020/21, the additional MRP charge 
will be £4.4m and interest charges £2.4m. The current MTFS includes the estimated 
impact of the Programme.

Table 2 below shows the borrowing costs for the existing programme and new re-
profiled programme, totalling £44.5m.

TABLE 2
Borrowing costs of existing and new re-
profiled capital programme

2017/18

£m

2018/19

£m

2019/20

£m

20/21

£m
MRP
Current Debt 19.986 19.788 20.188 20.603
New Capital Programme 1.397 2.040 3.683 4.431

Interest
Current Debt 18.135 17.809 17.458 17.076
New Capital Programme 0.953 1.565 2.186 2.363

Total
Current Debt 38.121 37.597 37.646 37.679
New Capital Programme 2.350 3.605 5.869 6.794
Grand total borrowing costs old and 
new programmes 40.471 41.202 43.515 44.473

Page 124



6

Under the CIPFA Prudential Code consideration must be given as to the affordability of 
the Capital Programme.   A budget of £44.5m represents approximately 6.4% of the 
estimated resources available to the County Council in 2020/21 (excluding potential 
Council Tax increases); although once investment income is taken into account the net 
budget represents 5.6% of revenue. There is no guidance on what is considered to be 
a reasonable proportion of the revenue budget is used for capital financing purposes. 
This is a matter for individual authorities and reflects their different aims. It should be 
noted that financing capital expenditure from borrowing does represent a long term 
commitment in the revenue budget. If the revenue budgets were to fall then the 
percentage committed to capital financing would increase.  

The National Audit Office produced a report in June 2016 which expressed concern 
about the levels of debt currently serviced by local authorities. The NAO said: “If 
authorities cannot reduce their debt servicing costs, this will place further pressure on 
revenue spending.” It added that minimising the revenue cost of capital programmes is 
the “primary challenge facing authorities.” The NAO report does not refer to individual 
authorities' data however the DCLG has recently published information on borrowing at 
31/3/16 which shows that Lancashire has the second highest level of borrowing of all 
the shire Counties. By head of population Lancashire has the highest level of borrowing. 
There is currently little information on the financing costs. The CIPFA 2014/15 actuals 
show that the principal repayment and interest charges represent on an average of 8.5% 
of the budget requirement. Lancashire's figure was shown as 9.8%, which was the 8th 
highest.
 
It should be noted that the figures quoted for 2019/20 show that capital financing budget 
represents a lower proportion of the budget than shown by the CIPFA statistics.  This is 
the result of the change in MRP policy in 2015/16 which has seen significantly lower 
MRP charges. Excluding any potential Council Tax increases it is estimated that the net 
capital financing charges will increase to 5.6% of the budget in 2020/21 from 4.33% in 
2016/17. Therefore the available statistics suggest that the County Council is facing an 
increase in financing and that it is starting from a relatively high debt base. It is therefore 
potentially one of those authorities who face the problem identified by the National Audit 
Office and future borrowing requirements should be subject to scrutiny.

Page 125



Page 126



Report to the Cabinet 
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 19 January 2017

Report of the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000: Annual Report to Cabinet
(Appendices A, B, C and D refer)

Contact for further information: 
Ian Young, (01772) 533531, Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services 
ian.young@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a framework for
certain public bodies, including local authorities, to use "covert surveillance" to
gather information about individuals without their knowledge for the purposes of
undertaking statutory functions in connection with the prevention or detection of 
crime.  The use of RIPA by a public authority provides protection against a claim of 
infringement of the right to respect for a private and family life, home and 
correspondence.

RIPA activity and authorisations are governed by Home Office Codes of Practice 
and Guidance issued by the Office for Surveillance Commissioners (OSC). 

Local authorities are subject to regular inspections from the OSC. 

Members are required to review the use of RIPA and set the policy (attached as 
Appendix A) at least once a year.  Elected members cannot be involved in decisions 
on specific authorisations, but have oversight of the process via the reporting 
requirement to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

This year three additional policies linked to the use of covert surveillance are 
submitted for approval, in relation to non RIPA surveillance (Appendix B); the use of 
social media and the internet in investigations (Appendix C); and a new draft CCTV 
Policy incorporating the codes of practice issued by the Surveillance camera 
Commissioner and the Information Commissioner (Appendix D). 

Recommendation

The Cabinet is asked to 
i. note the content of this report 
ii. approve, with immediate effect, the updated corporate policies on:

a. Non-RIPA surveillance

Page 127

Agenda Item 4c

mailto:ian.young@lancashire.gov.uk


b. The use of Social Media and the Internet in investigations
c. Use of CCTV 

iii. Agree  that the role of CCTV Manager be undertaken by the Head of Service, 
Legal and Democratic Services

Background and Advice 

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a framework for 
certain public bodies, including local authorities, to use "covert surveillance" to 
gather certain information about individuals without their knowledge for the purposes 
of undertaking statutory functions in connection with the prevention or detection of 
crime.

RIPA is permissive legislation, that is to say that it is not mandatory for a local 
authority to authorise covert surveillance under RIPA but if it does so then 
authorisation of surveillance in accordance with the RIPA regime, provides the local 
authority with a defence if the individual brings a claim against the local authority 
alleging that the surveillance breaches their human rights, specifically Article 8, the 
right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence.

RIPA  covers directed surveillance, for example the use of recording devices, 
photography or video to record persons suspected of being engaged in criminal 
activity, where there is a possibility of gaining of private information, and the use of a 
Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS), for example an informant, where the 
surveillance involves developing a relationship in order to obtain information.

Within the County Council, covert surveillance authorised pursuant to RIPA is used 
very infrequently and only in connection with Trading Standards activities, typically 
against rogue traders, counterfeiters or individuals engaged in selling tobacco or 
alcohol products to children. It is used in cases where it is important to obtain 
information to support potential criminal proceedings, and only where that 
information cannot be obtained by any other means.  

RIPA activity and authorisations are governed by Codes of Practice and Guidance
Issued by the Office for Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) and the Home Office.

Applications for authorisation of covert surveillance are submitted using standard 
home office forms, to designated authorising officers, currently the Head of Trading 
Standards and three Trading Standards Managers. The managers assess the 
information provided and need to be satisfied that the surveillance is both necessary 
for the prevention of crime, and proportionate – i.e. not a sledgehammer to crack a 
nut.  If authorised, the application must then be put before a magistrate for approval 
before the activity can take place.

Directed surveillance authorisations last for 3 months and apply where there is a 
possibility that private information may be obtained as a result of the activity.

CHIS authorisations last for 12 months, and cover activity where a relationship may 
be built up by a source in order to gain information.

Page 128



Both need to be regularly reviewed to ensure that the surveillance remains 
necessary and proportionate.

The OSC inspect local authorities every 3 years and examine a sample of 
authorisations which have been granted in the period since the last inspection.  The 
OSC are due to inspect the authority on 28 February 2017. 

Members are expected to oversee the use of RIPA and set the policy at least 
annually.  A copy of the Corporate Policy and Guidance on the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act is attached as Appendix 'A'.

RIPA Activity

Since the last cabinet report in February 2016 there have been 6 authorisations for 
the use of surveillance.  4 of these were for the use of a CHIS in connection with the 
supply of counterfeit goods over the internet, and two were for directed surveillance: 
one in connection with unsafe goods and one into motor vehicle fraud. 

Non RIPA Surveillance

Although the focus of the OSC inspection is primarily on covert surveillance 
undertaken to prevent or detect crime, the authority may also be involved in 
surveillance activity for other purposes, for which authorisation is not permitted to be 
sought under the RIPA regime.  

Such surveillance could leave the authority open to a claim of infringement of the 
right to privacy and family life, and therefore in such cases the approach of the 
authority has been to utilise what are called "shadow authorisations", to be put 
before the Director of Legal and Democratic Services for approval.  

Such activity may include surveillance in relation to child protection work, and use of 
social media to obtain information, both in relation to internal investigations and 
those involving clients.  Shadow surveillance may also be thought necessary where 
serious allegations of employee misconduct are received – for example employees 
carrying out inappropriate activity in work's time.  

Shadow authorisations are rare. Brief reference is already made in the Corporate 
Policy and Guidance on the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act to the potential 
need to use the principles of RIPA when surveillance not for the purposes of the 
prevention and detection of crime is being undertaken. However, it is believed that a 
more detailed separate policy will provide valuable guidance for employees who may 
need to seek shadow authorisations for covert surveillance. The draft policy 
submitted for approval recommends that these should only be approved by the 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services. 

A copy of the Shadow RIPA Surveillance Corporate Policy is attached as Appendix 
B.

Page 129



Shadow RIPA Activity

One authorisation has been granted, in September 2016, in relation to covert 
surveillance carried out by the Trading Standards Service, for the purposes of 
conducting a social experiment in relation to public attitudes to the proxy sales of 
alcohol.

Social Media and Covert Surveillance Policy

Increasingly the use of social media means that a wide range of personal information 
posted by individuals is available online.  Some of this is available as "open source" 
material, some can only be accessed once the individual has accepted a "friend" 
request.  

Individuals posting such material may be considered to have no or a reduced 
expectation of privacy in respect of the information they have posted.  However, 
where the authority intends to search for information and use it in connection with 
either the prevention or detection of crime, or for the purpose of other investigations 
connected with employee misconduct or child protection matters for example, it is 
important that regard is given to guidance issued by the Home Office and by the 
Office of Surveillance Commissioners.  

Accordingly a Covert Social Networking Checks and Surveillance Policy has been 
drafted which Cabinet are asked to note and approve   A copy of this is attached as 
Appendix C.

CCTV Policy

The Information Commissioner issued its first code of practice governing the use of 
CCTV in 2000.  This was updated in 2008.

In the past the Council has employed CCTV cameras to monitor its premises to 
prevent theft and vandalism, although use of such technology has not been as 
extensive as by district councils who help with the policing town centres through 
sophisticated CCTV systems.

The technology itself has developed significantly since first introduced.  CCTV is no 
longer a simple camera device that records images to video.  Most CCTV devices 
currently in use by the Council are digital and used both inside and outside Council 
premises to monitor activity.  In addition, the Council uses Automatic Number Plate 
Recognition (ANPR) systems to enforce traffic and parking regulation and this 
includes body worn cameras that record both the images of and audible interactions 
with members of the public.  The Council has on occasion also employed unmanned 
aerial devices (drones)  to carry out building surveys to limit danger and disruption.   

Reference to "CCTV systems" extends to all devices that capture images or sounds 
of either individuals or which are used for the purpose identifying individuals.

Page 130



The increased use of such systems which either deliberately or inadvertently monitor 
the conduct of individuals has led to heightened concern as to the extent of 
surveillance, the use to which it is put and whether or not it is justified.  Local 
authorities have been a particular target of media criticism highlighting surveillance 
being used, for example, to check whether applicants for school places live in the 
relevant area, capturing dog owners who do not pick up faeces and using camera 
devices embedded in wheelie bins to monitor waste.

The perceived unwarranted use of surveillance systems has led to the strengthening 
of the regulatory landscape through the introduction of the Protection of Freedoms 
Act 2012.  The first Surveillance Camera Commissioner was appointed under this 
Act alongside the introduction of a new surveillance camera code. As surveillance 
activities record personal data, the Information Commissioner also strengthened its 
stance on surveillance by publishing "A data protection code for surveillance 
cameras and personal information" in 2015.   

The surveillance camera code established twelve basic principles that apply when 
any CCTV system is used.  These are repeated in the data protection code.

The twelve principles are as follows:

1. Use of a surveillance camera system must always be for a specified purpose 
which is in pursuit of a legitimate aim and necessary to meet an identified 
pressing need.

2. The use of a surveillance camera system must take into account its effect on 
individuals and their privacy, with regular reviews to ensure its use remains 
justified.

3. There must be as much transparency in the use of a surveillance camera 
system as possible, including a published contact point for access to 
information and complaints.

4. There must be clear responsibility and accountability for all surveillance 
camera system activities including images and information collected, held and 
used.

5. Clear rules, policies and procedures must be in place before a surveillance 
camera system is used, and these must be communicated to all who need to 
comply with them.

6. No more images and information should be stored than that which is strictly 
required for the stated purpose of a surveillance camera system, and such 
images and information should be deleted once their purposes have been 
discharged.

7. Access to retained images and information should be restricted and there 
must be clearly defined rules on who can gain access and for what purpose 
such access is granted; the disclosure of images and information should only 

Page 131



take place when it is necessary for such a purpose or for law enforcement 
purposes.

8. Surveillance camera system operators should consider any approved 
operational, technical and competency standards relevant to a system and its 
purpose and work to meet and maintain those standards.

9. Surveillance camera system images and information should be subject to 
appropriate security measures to safeguard against unauthorised access and 
use.

10.There should be effective review and audit mechanisms to ensure legal 
requirements, policies and standards are complied with in practice, and 
regular reports should be published

11.When the use of a surveillance camera system is in pursuit of a legitimate 
aim, and there is a pressing need for its use, it should then be used in the 
most effective way to support public safety and law enforcement with the aim 
of processing images and information of evidential value.

12.Any information used to support a surveillance camera system which 
compares against a reference database for matching purposes should be 
accurate and kept up to date.

The present Council policy on the use of CCTV does not take account of the recent 
expansion of regulation and codes of practice and fails to address any of the twelve 
principles set out above; it simply refers to earlier guidance offered by the 
Information Commissioner.  

Whilst a Surveillance Camera Commissioner has been appointed, he does not play 
any direct role in the enforcement of the guidance.  Contraventions of the code(s) 
which amount to breaches of the Data Protection Act 1998 would be enforced by the 
Information Commissioner.  However, the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner 
(OSC) has been given a role in the general overview of CCTV systems and this now 
forms part of the three yearly inspection carried out by that office.  The Council's 
inspection of its RIPA actions by the OSC is due to take place on 28 February 2017 
and the Inspector has asked to see our CCTV policy.

The current policy is not fit for purpose against the existing regulatory framework and 
what is expected of local authorities.  A group was formed in September 2016 with a 
remit to review and update the Council's CCTV policy to ensure that it embraces the 
twelve principles.  Representatives of Facilities Management, Information 
Governance, Legal and Democratic Services and Audit have therefore produced a 
new draft policy which is attached to this report at Appendix D.

This draft policy addresses each of the twelve principles and seeks to ensure that 
those services responsible for introducing and operating CCTV systems give due 
consideration and weight to the matters set out in the code(s) particularly privacy, 
security, technical competence and accuracy and information governance.

Page 132



Further work is required to identify all relevant CCTV systems, to compile a central 
register, to ensure that those operating CCTV systems are aware of the new policy 
and what is required of them thereunder.  It is proposed that the Head of Service for 
Legal and Democratic Services act as the CCTV Manager under the policy as part of 
his role and further meetings of the group will be held to plan how the policy will be 
rolled out.  

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

The use of RIPA, where permitted, provides a defence to a local authority where an 
individual alleges that their human rights have been contravened.  

Non RIPA surveillance is subject to a similar process within LCC, which will enable 
the authority to show that it has appropriately considered necessity and 
proportionality in any case where there is an allegation that human rights have been 
breached in a situation not involving the prevention and detection of crime.

Guidance on the use of social media in investigations will ensure that an individual's 
human rights are considered in the context of the use of information published by the 
individual online.

The current CCTV policy is out of date and requires updating in line with current 
regulations and guidance and to ensure it is in line with the technology available and 
in use.  

Financial

If challenged, the Council could be liable to pay a financial penalty in respect of 
actions held to be an infringement of an individual's right to a private and family life, 
home and correspondence.

Legal

There is a possibility of legal action against the authority if covert surveillance is held 
to have breached an individual's human rights.

Equality and Cohesion

The use of RIPA principles requires consideration of the necessity and 
proportionality of surveillance and as part of this, equality and cohesion issues would 
be considered.

Page 133



Human Rights

The use of RIPA and associated principles is recommended in the context of 
consideration of the impact of surveillance activities on the right to privacy, a family 
life, home and correspondence.

Crime and Disorder

LCC Trading Standards Service has a statutory duty to investigate criminal offences 
committed under a wide range of public protection legislation.  In a small minority of 
cases the use of covert surveillance may be the only means of progressing the 
investigation.  

Personnel

All activities are risk assessed to ensure the health and safety of individuals is 
considered and any mitigating measures are implemented. 

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 134



Corporate Policy and Guidance 
On 
The Regulation 
Of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 

Appendix 'A'

Page 135



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 2 •

Contents 
1. Corporate Guidance 

1.1 Forward 
1.2 Employee or Non-RIPA Surveillance 
1.3 CCTV Use 
1.4 Lancashire County Council Auditing 

2. Definitions 

2.1 Definitions 
2.2 Communications Data 

3. Covert Surveillance 

3.1 Introduction 
3.2 Collateral Intrusion 
3.3 Records of Authorisations 
3.4 Authorisation of Directed Surveillance 
3.5 Covert Video Camera and Audio Recording Equipment 
3.6 Grounds for granting Authorisation 
3.7 Duration of authorisation 
3.8 Renewal 
3.9 Cancellation 
3.10 Records 
3.11 Handling Product from Surveillance Activities 
3.12 Storage of Product 
3.13 Disposal of Product 

4. Guidance Notes for the Authorisation of Directed Surveillance 

4.1 Activity Involved 
4.2 Directed Surveillance via Recording of telephone conversations 
4.3 Test purchasing of age restricted products

5. Covert Human Intelligence Sources (C.H.I.S.) 

5.1 Introduction 
5.2 Further Guidance on the C.H.I.S. Process 
5.3 Management of Sources 
5.4 Designated handlers and Controllers for the use of Covert Human Intelligence 
5.5 Security and Welfare Sources 
5.6 The Application for Authorisation 
5.7 Duration of Authorisation 
5.8 Renewals and Reviews 
5.9 Cancellations 
5.10 Source Records 

6. Risk Assessments for all RIPA Surveillance Activities 

Page 136



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 3 •

7. Communications Data 

7.1 Accessing Communications Data 
7.2 What is Communications Data? 
7.3 Who are Communication Service Providers? 
7.4 What information can be obtained from Communications Service Providers? 
7.5 How can this information be obtained 
7.6 Contact with the Communications Industry 
7.7 The Role of the Single Point of Contact (SPOC) 
7.8 The Role of the Authorising Officer 
7.9 The Application Process 
7.10. Records and Errors 
7.11 Further Relevant Documentation 

8. Seeking JP approval for authorisations

9. Lancashire County Council Auditing of Authorisations and Records 

10. Inspections by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner and the 

Interception of Communications Commissioner 

11. Complaints 

12. Management Records 

Page 137



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 4 •

General Statement of Policy 

This policy document relates to use by Lancashire County Council officers of 
directed surveillance, covert human intelligence sources and access to 
telecommunications information, for the prevention and detection of crime.

 The County Council is committed to upholding human rights 

 As a public body and responsible employer, the County Council wants to conform 
to the letter and spirit of the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 and associated regulations and draft codes of practice relating to the use 
of covert surveillance, the use of covert human intelligence sources, and 
interception 

 County Council officers will only undertake surveillance work when it is both 
necessary and proportionate to the ends it seeks to achieve 

 From 1 November 2012 local authorities have been required to obtain judicial 
approval prior to using covert techniques. Local authority authorisations and 
notices under RIPA are only be given effect once an order has been granted by a 
justice of the peace in England and Wales, a sheriff in Scotland and a district judge 
(magistrates’ court) in Northern Ireland.

 Additionally, from this date local authority use of directed surveillance under RIPA 
will be limited to the investigation of crimes which attract a 6 month or more 
custodial sentence, with the exception of offences relating to the underage sale of 
alcohol and tobacco.

Page 138



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 5 •

Corporate Guidance 

1.1 Foreword 

1.1.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a framework for 
certain bodies (including local authorities) to undertake their duties aimed at preventing or 
detecting crime, which may interfere with a citizens normal human rights in respect of privacy 
by the use of ‘covert surveillance’, Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS) i.e. undercover 
officers/informants and to obtain certain limited communications data. 

1.1.2 The use of these techniques must be "necessary" and "proportionate" to the investigation 
i.e. simple, overt methods of gathering information are not available and the matter under 
investigation should not be trivial. 

1.1.3 RIPA establishes detailed requirements in respect of the seniority, training awareness 
of Authorising Officers (referred to as ‘Designated Officers’ in the Act) and also the formal 
assessment and recording processes before undertaking any surveillance activity. 

1.1.4 The Authorising Officer is required to be an officer at least at the following level within 
the authority: 

Director
Head of Service
Service Manager or equivalent

The Authorising Officers for the Council are The Head of Trading Standards and Trading 
Standards Managers within Trading Standards as authorised by the Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services.

1.1.5 This guidance addresses the detailed requirements of RIPA and its codes of practice in 
relation to: 

♦ the covert surveillance of individuals, 
♦ the use of covert human intelligence sources, including undercover 

officers/agents/informants, 
♦ the recording of telephone conversations 
♦ for obtaining communications data. 

This guidance provides a summary and overview of the legislation and codes of 
practice. DO NOT seek to rely on it alone. In the event of any doubt, any senior 
managers, or applicants, should refer to the relevant legislation or code and consult 
the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services, the Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services or the Head of Trading Standards before any action is taken. 

1.1.6 The Act and relevant Codes of Practice (as amended in December 2014) had effect from 
1 October 2000 and impose requirements as regards authorisation, procedures and records, 
which must be followed by Public Authorities undertaking investigations which fall within the 
scope of the Act 

1.1.7 Appropriate staff should familiarise themselves with the guidance and procedures, the 
legislation and the Codes of Practice. If in any doubt advice and guidance should be sought 
from an appropriate officer before undertaking any enforcement activities which may fall within 
the scope of the Act. 

Page 139



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 6 •

1.1.8 Lancashire County Council is committed to carrying out its enforcement functions in an 
equitable, practical and consistent manner. We are committed to these aims and to 
maintaining a fair and safe environment. This guidance demonstrates our desire to carry out 
our criminal investigations in a fair and equitable manner that respects all human rights and 
contributing to this commitment. 

1.1.9 Enforcement activities of the Council that fall within the remit of the RIPA are subject to 
monitoring and oversight by the Surveillance Commissioner and the Interception 
Commissioner. 

1.1.10 Complaints made regarding activities of the Council, which are within the scope of 
RIPA, can be investigated by the Investigatory Powers Tribunal. 

1.1.11 The Council may be liable to claims alleging breaches of an individual's rights under 
the Human Rights Act 1998 if officers fail to follow the requirements of RIPA and Codes of 
Practice. 

1.1.12 Failure to follow RIPA and Codes may also adversely affect the admissibility of any 
evidence obtained using methods covered by RIPA. The safety of members of the public 
supplying information to the Council may also be compromised where an authorisation is not 
in place. 

1.1.13 When undertaking any covert investigation, officers should have regard to the health 
and safety of persons affected by the activity. This may include themselves, colleagues and 
members of the public and the person you are being asked to observe. A risk assessment of 
the investigation technique being proposed should be undertaken, having regard to Corporate 
Health and Safety Policy and any supplemental guidance issued. 

1.1.14 The monitoring of Internet and e-mail use is regulated by the Telecommunications 
(Lawful Business Practice) (Interception of Communications) Regulations 2000, made under 
RIPA. 

1.2 Employee or Non-RIPA Surveillance 

1.2.1 RIPA does not apply where surveillance is undertaken otherwise than for ‘the detection 
or prevention of crime’ for example as part of an internal investigation into possible employee 
misconduct where the investigation is not primarily aimed at detecting criminal offences. 
However, as such surveillance may infringe an individual's Human Rights in respect of privacy, 
then similarly to RIPA, the procedures of authorisation and assessment should be followed 
with the Authorising Officer using RIPA criteria in considering the surveillance request. 
Assessment and Approval forms, similar to RIPA, must be used in considering surveillance 
activity. 

1.2.2 Similarly, child custody/protection investigations requiring surveillance should follow the 
same principles and use the non-RIPA Application forms. Copies of appropriately completed 
forms should be kept with the investigation file and the original sent to the Central Register in 
Trading Standards, but these will not be logged on the corporate RIPA database. 

1.2.3 Where surveillance is undertaken otherwise than for the prevention or detection of crime, 
reference should be made to the corporate policy on shadow RIPA authorisations.

Page 140



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 7 •

1.3 CCTV Use 

1.3.1 CCTV surveillance systems are not normally caught by the Act where signs or cameras 
are visible or members of the public are aware that such systems are in use. However there 
may be occasions when public authorities use CCTV systems for the purposes of a specific 
directed investigation or operation. In such cases, authorisation for directed surveillance may 
be necessary. A protocol has been produced to protect those officers responsible for such 
systems from being pressured into carrying out directed surveillance without an appropriate 
authorisation. 

1.4 Lancashire County Council Auditing 

1.4.1 For appropriate corporate reporting and auditing of activities to ensure awareness and 
ongoing compliance with RIPA policies. Contact: Director of Legal and Democratic Services 

2 Definitions 

2.1 Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources 

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 

Authorising Officer Means the person(s) designated under Sections 28 and 29 of the Act to 
grant authorisations for directed surveillance and the use and conduct of a Covert Human 
Intelligence Source, respectively. The Head of Trading Standards and Trading Standards 
Managers in Trading Standards are designated as authorising officers by the Director of 
Governance, Finance and Public Services. 

Conduct of a Source - Any action of that source falling within the terms of the Act or action 
incidental to it. (ie what they do) 

Confidential Material Matters of legal privilege, confidential personal 
Includes: information (eg medical records), confidential journalistic material 

Controller - Means the person or designated managerial officer responsible for overseeing the 
use of the source. 

Covert Human Intelligence Sources Commonly known as Agents, Informants, Undercover 
Officers. (NB. See RIPA and the Codes of (CHIS) Practice for the definition) 

Covert Surveillance Means surveillance carried out in a manner calculated to ensure that the 
persons subject to the surveillance are unaware that it is taking place. 

Directed Surveillance - Surveillance is directed if it is covert but not intrusive and is undertaken: 

a) for the purpose of a specific investigation/operation 
b) is likely to result in the obtaining private information about a 

person (whether or not one specifically identified for the 
purposes of the investigation or operation) 

c) Otherwise than by way of an immediate response to events or 
circumstances and it would not be reasonably practicable for 
an authorisation to be sought for the carrying out of the 
surveillance. 

Handler An investigating officer having day to day responsibility for: 

Page 141



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 8 •

- dealing with the source on behalf of the authority 
- directing the day to day activities of the source 
- recording the information supplied by the source 
- monitoring the security and welfare of the source. 

Intrusive Surveillance Means Covert Surveillance that is carried out in relation to anything 
taking place on any residential premises or in any private vehicle and involves the presence 
of any individual on the premises or in the vehicle or is carried out by means of a surveillance 
device. 

Private Information In relation to a person or business, this includes any information relating 
to an individual's private, business or family life. 

Senior Responsible Officer (Surveillance) 
An officer responsible for the integrity of RIPA processes for the authority and compliance with 
Part II of the Act. The Senior Responsible Officer for Surveillance and CHIS is the Director of 
Governance, Finance and Public Services. 
(Note: See Senior Responsible Officer for Communications Data) 

Surveillance includes: - monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their movements, their 
conversations, or their activities or communications. 

- recording anything monitored, observed or listened to in the 
course of surveillance. 

- Surveillance by or with the assistance of a surveillance device 
(any apparatus designed or adapted for use in surveillance eg 
cameras and microphones. 

2.2 Communications Data 

Communications Service Provider (CSP) 
These include telecommunications, Internet (including e-mail) and postal service providers. 

Designated Person 
This is the authorising officer for the purposes of obtaining communications data, currently 
the two Trading Standards Managers. 

Senior responsible Officer (Communications Data) 

An officer responsible for the integrity of RIPA processes in relation to the Acquisition of 
Communications data under the Act, currently the Head of Trading Standards. 

Single Point of Contact (SPOC) 

This is a nominated officer within a public authority who has completed a training course and 
is accredited by the Home Office to make enquiries with communication service providers. 
SPOC’s will oversee the forwarding and receipt of notices and authorisations sent to and 
returned by CSPs. 
(CSPs will not deal with enquires to obtain communications data from an officer who is not 
listed with them as being a nominated SPOC). 

SPOCs:  The SPOC role is carried out by the National Anti Fraud Network (NAFN) on behalf 
of Lancashire County Council, and access can be arranged by approaching the Head of 
Trading Standards. 

Page 142



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 9 •

3. Covert Surveillance Policy and Procedures 

3.1 Introduction 

3.1.1 Covert Surveillance means surveillance which is carried out in a manner calculated 
to ensure that the persons subject to the surveillance are unaware that it is or may be 
taking place. 

3.1.2 An authorisation provides lawful authority for a Public Authority to carry out covert 
surveillance. 

3.1.3 Any /Service seeking to use covert surveillance techniques must seek authorisation from 
the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services or nominated deputy using the 
appropriate forms. 

3.1.4 Whenever surveillance takes place and is for the purpose of obtaining, or is likely to 
obtain private information about a person (whether or not they are the target of the operation) 
an authorisation should be obtained. 

3.1.5 By obtaining an authorisation, the surveillance operation is carried out in accordance 
with the law and the safeguards that exist. 

3.1.6 Prior to granting an authorisation the Authorising Officer must be satisfied that the 
proposed surveillance is necessary on specific grounds and is proportionate to what it seeks 
to achieve. 

3.1.7 Careful consideration must also be given to any Community sensitivities that may be 
exacerbated by any individual surveillance operation. 

3.1.8 Before applying for an authorisation, the Investigating Officer should consider whether 
or not the evidence sought could be obtained by alternative possibly non covert methods. 

3.1.9 The Authorising Officer must also believe that the surveillance is proportionate to what 
it seeks to achieve and is not excessive. 

Note for All Applications for Authorisations 

Necessity 

For interference with an individual’s private, family or business life to be necessary, the action 
must be for the purpose of detecting crime or prevention of disorder, be necessary to secure 
best evidence and that less covert or intrusive action would not serve the appropriate purpose. 

Proportionality 

The test for proportionality goes far beyond selecting the least intrusive method of 
investigation. The activity to be observed must not be trivial and must warrant the surveillance 
to be instigated 

The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of the case or if 
the information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other less intrusive means. 
All such activity should be carefully managed to meet the objective in question and must not 
be arbitrary or unfair. Proportionality should contain a consideration of four elements: 

Page 143



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 10 •

• balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and extent of the 
perceived crime or offence;
• explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least possible intrusion 
on the subject and others
• Considering whether the activity is an appropriate use of the legislation and a reasonable 
way, having considered all reasonable alternatives of obtaining the necessary result
• evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods had been considered and 
why they were not implemented

3.2 Collateral Intrusion 

3.2.1 The officer seeking the authorisation should also consider the possibility of collateral 
intrusion (this is where interference with the privacy of others not subject to the original 
surveillance may occur). Steps should be taken to assess the risk and where possible reduce 
the risk of collateral intrusion. Where unforeseen collateral intrusion occurs during an 
operation, the Authorising Officer must be notified and consideration given to amending the 
authorisation following a review. A separate Lancashire County Council CCTV protocol exists 
which also refers to avoiding collateral intrusion. 

3.2.2 Consideration must also be given as to whether or not the surveillance activities of the 
Service take place where similar activities are also being undertaken by another agency eg 
the Police, Benefits Agency, Environment Agency and liaison with other enforcement agencies 
should be considered where appropriate. 

3.3 Records of Authorisations 

3.3.1 A record of all authorisations must be maintained for five years following the end of the 
authorisation for Covert Surveillance and CHIS. Records relating to Communications Data 
should be retained until they have been inspected by the Interception of Communications 
Commissioner. The record should include not only those authorisations granted, but also 
those which are refused. 

3.3.2 All CHIS and Directed Surveillance records including JP authorisations must be supplied 
electronically by email to the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services for the 
Central Record of authorisations. For the Acquisition of Communications data the record is 
maintained by the National Anti Fraud Network (NAFN). Nominated Authorising Officers may 
retain copy records for their own reference. Copies of all relevant documents should be 
returned electronically to the applying officer. An officer from the central record will advise 
Authorising Officers of the status of authorisations when renewals, cancellation etc are 
required. 

3.3.3 Due to the sensitive nature of all documentation covered by the Act, consideration 
must be given to the means by which copies are forwarded to the central record to ensure 
confidentiality. Records of authorisations, renewals and cancellations should be forwarded by 
email to the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services.  

3.4 Authorisations for Directed Surveillance 

3.4.1 An authorisation is required for covert surveillance undertaken: 

(a) for a specific investigation or operation; and 

(b) where the surveillance is likely to result in obtaining private information about any 
person (whether or not they are the subject of the surveillance). 

Page 144



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 11 •

3.4.2 Directed surveillance is conducted where the observation is for the purpose of gathering 
private information to produce a detailed picture of a person’s life, activities and associations. 

3.4.3 An authorisation is not required for covert surveillance carried out as an immediate 
response to events or circumstances which could not be foreseen. However, if this 
surveillance continues for a substantial period of time, or is recommenced after some time has 
elapsed, an authorisation may be required. 

3.4.4 Local Authorities cannot undertake intrusive surveillance. Therefore Authorisations 
will not be granted for cover covert surveillance on residential premises or in any private 
vehicles where an individual or surveillance device is present on such premises or vehicle. 

3.4.5 Where the surveillance activity is likely to result in confidential material being obtained, 
the Authorising Officer within Lancashire County council will be the Chief Executive, 
or in his absence the person acting as Head of Paid Service (see paragraph 4.3 
of the Code of Practice on Covert Surveillance). In practice, advice should be sought 
from the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services. 

3.5 Covert Video Camera and Audio Recording Equipment 

3.5.1 This type of equipment may be considered for the purpose of recording the 
transaction/activity and obtaining photographic evidence of individuals or activities eg Trading 
Standards test purchases etc. Concealed cameras and voice recorders may be used to record 
activities and conversations without the knowledge of the other party. 

3.5.2 The deployment of such equipment clearly has the potential for not only obtaining 
personal information in relation to the suspect, but also collateral intrusion into the activities of 
other persons in the vicinity of the operation. 

3.5.3 Whilst the use of such equipment does not automatically require an authorisation, 
consideration should be given to safeguard against any challenge as to Human Rights 
infringements. The manner in which such equipment is used may also invoke the 
requirements relating to Covert Human Intelligence Sources. Prior to such covert 
use of equipment, advice should always be sought from an Authorising Officer or the 
Head of Trading Standards. 

3.6 Grounds For Granting Authorisations 

3.6.1 Surveillance must be shown to be necessary on specific grounds. Investigations 
undertaken by Local Authorities can only be authorised: 

For the purposes of preventing and detecting crime 

3.6.2 The Council operates parallel procedures for Non-RIPA investigations/surveillance (Ref 
paragraph 1.2) 

3.6.3 Local Authorities are not able to issue urgent authorisations. 

3.6.4 Officers should normally be able to prepare applications in advance to enable a written 
authorisation to be obtained. 

3.7 Duration of Authorisation 

3.7.1 An authorisation is valid for three months, unless cancelled. 

Page 145



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 12 •

This begins on the day on which the Authorising Officer grants the application, the expiry date 
will be considered to be three months minus one day (authorisation ceases at 23:59) from the 
date of signature by the Authorising Officer. 

3.7.2 The Authorising Officer should ensure that a system is in place to review authorisations 
before it ceases to have effect. It is a matter for the Authorising Officer to determine how 
frequently a review is necessary and practicable. This is stated within the authorisation as a 
control measure. The authorisation should also be reviewed prior to expiry to determine 
whether or not a renewal is required and can be justified. It is a requirement that review forms 
are maintained by the Central Record.

3.8 Renewal 

3.8.1 An authorisation may be renewed for a further period of three months. It may be renewed 
more than once provided that the renewal continues to meet the criteria for authorisation. The 
number of occasions it has been renewed should be recorded. 

3.8.2 A record should also be made of the following: 

- Any significant changes to the previous authorisation 

- Why it is necessary to continue the surveillance 

- The value to the investigation of the information obtained so far by surveillance 

- An indication of the length of time further surveillance may be necessary 

3.9 Cancellations 

3.9.1 The Authorising Officer who granted or who last renewed the authorisation must cancel 
it if satisfied that the directed surveillance no longer satisfies the criteria outlined in this 
procedure. 

3.9.2 An authorisation should also be cancelled once the activity which was the subject of the 
authorisation has been completed. The authorisation should not be left to lapse as a result 
of the time limit expiring. 

3.9.3 The reason for cancellation of the authorisation must be detailed on the cancellation 
form. The cancellation form should be sent to the Central Record by the Authorising Officer. 

3.10 Records 

3.10.1 Material obtained as a result of surveillance activities should be recorded on the 
“Record of Product obtained by Directed Surveillance Form”. 

3.10.2 A copy of this form should be forwarded to the Authorising Officer to be filed with the 
Authorisation form. The original should be retained by the Investigating Officer as part of the 
case file. Internal procedures within some services may require that all authorisations and 
case materials are held within a specific secure location. A copy should be retained on the 
case file. 

3.10.3 A record must also be maintained of the period over which surveillance has taken place. 

3.11 Handling Product from Surveillance Activities 

Page 146



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 13 •

3.11.1 "Product" from Covert Surveillance activities may consist of: 

- Photographs 

- Video film 

- Voice recordings 

- Surveillance log 

- Officer’s notes 

3.11.2 The above may be required as evidence in current or future criminal proceedings. 
Officers must have regard to the provisions of the Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 
1996 in relation to unused material. Product obtained via an authorisation may be used by the 
authority in other investigations. 

3.11.3 Although specific legislation and the Data Protection Act 1998 provide for the disclosure 
of information in certain circumstances, additional controls are introduced by RIPA. 

3.11.4 The use of any product obtained by authorised surveillance activities outside of the 
local authority or the Courts should only be authorised in the most exceptional circumstances. 
This requirement seeks to prevent product from being used for grounds other than that for 
which it was obtained. Joint operations should make reference to the potential use of 
evidence by each agency. 

3.11.5 Officers may receive requests from other agencies for product, which may include 
photographs of suspects, descriptions and vehicle details. Where this information has been 
obtained under an authorisation, further guidance should be sought from the Authorising 
Officer since disclosure may not be permitted under the provisions of the Code of Practice. 

3.12 Storage of Product 

3.12.1 Officers should ensure that evidential protocols are observed to ensure the integrity, 
security and confidentiality of material. This will ensure that the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act are addressed. 

3.13 Disposal of Product 

3.13.1 Officers should ensure that personal data is not kept for longer than necessary for the 
purpose for which it was obtained as follows: 
Product which is not required as evidence should not be retained any longer than necessary. 
It will be necessary to retain product for a sufficient time to safeguard the Council against any 
civil claims against infringement of an individual’s Human Rights. A period of five years 
ensures that all of the retention period requirements are addressed. 

3.13.2 Product which has been destroyed should have this fact recorded on the record of 
product obtained by Directed Surveillance and be signed by the officer 

3.13.3 An amended copy of this Record form should be forwarded to the Authorising Officer 
indicating destruction of the product obtained from the surveillance activity. 

4 Guidance Notes for the Authorisation of Directed Surveillance 

4.1 Activity Involved 

Page 147



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 14 •

Does the activity involve: 

The necessary and proportionate systematic covert surveillance of an individual which is likely 
to gather private information?

If so, an authorisation is required

4.1.1 Low-level activity for example, to determine whether a premise is still trading, will not 
require authorisation. Surveillance carried out in response to immediate events will also not 
require authorisation. However, if the surveillance activity continues for any period of time, 
an authorisation will be required. 

4.1.2 The Authorising Officer must be satisfied that: 
The authorisation is: 

Necessary for the purposes of preventing and detecting crime or is pursuant to 
Council Policy for Non-RIPA surveillance (Ref Paragraph 1.2) 

4.1.3 The Authorising Officer must also believe that the surveillance is proportionate 
to what it seeks to achieve, and is not excessive. 

Where the identity of the subject is known to the officer, measures should also be taken to 
verify (where appropriate) the address under surveillance (eg electoral register, business 
rates, utility suppliers). The Authorising Officer must include some control measures within the 
authorisation eg reviews, circumstances in which the surveillance must be stopped. 

4.1.4 The application should provide the background to the investigation and details of other 
methods which have failed to provide the information being sought or why other methods are 
not appropriate. 

4.1.5 The description of the activity to be undertaken should be as comprehensive as possible 
describing how the surveillance will be undertaken, where it will occur and any equipment (eg 
cameras, video camera) which will be used. The investigating officers must not employ 
techniques which are not permitted by the authorisation. 

4.1.6 The information being sought should be described and how this may provide evidence 
of the offence or other matter being investigated. The potential for collateral intrusion should 
be identified and plans to avoid/minimise such intrusion. 

4.1.7 A statement must also be included as to the likelihood of obtaining confidential 
material/religious material eg the premises are a residential property, not located near any 
medical, religious or legal establishments, therefore there is no likelihood of obtaining any 
confidential/religious material. 

4.1.8 If confidential material is being sought, or is likely to be obtained, a higher level of 
authorisation is required. This authorisation can only be given by the Chief Executive (or in 
their absence by the Head of Paid Service). Further guidance should be sought from the 
Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services if confidential material becomes relevant 
to the investigation. 

4.1.9 Where applications for authorisations are refused, records of the refused application 
must also be maintained stating the reasons for the refusal and a service number. Copies of 
these refusals must be sent for inclusion in the central record. 

Page 148



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 15 •

4.2 Directed Surveillance via Recording of Telephone Conversations 

4.2.1 The interception of communications sent by post or public telecommunications systems 
or private telecommunications systems attached to the public network may only be authorised 
by the Secretary of State (Part I RIPA). 

4.2.2. The attachment of a general surveillance device eg "wiretapping" to a 
telecommunications system can only be undertaken under a warrant issued under Section 5 
of RIPA (this is not available to the Council). 

4.2.3 However an exception to the rule requiring a warrant exists, where one party to a 
telephone conversation consents and where an authorisation for directed surveillance is 
obtained. See Section 48(4) of RIPA. 

4.2.4 For example, a member of the public may consent to the recording of a telephone 
conversation made by or to him/her. An officer may seek to record such a conversation to 
assist with an investigation into another person's activities. 

4.2.5 An officer may also request a colleague to telephone another person as part of an 
investigation or may make the call himself or herself. These situations may require an 
authorisation to be granted depending on the nature of the information to be obtained.  Where 
the call is a simple call to enquire about the availability or description of goods or services on 
offer for supply as any consumer would enquire, an authorisation will not be required. 

4.2.6 Where the person giving consent is not present and a recording made, this activity is 
deemed to be intrusive surveillance and is beyond the scope of activities authorised for the 
Council. 

4.2.7 Where the Officer acts in an overt capacity, ie clearly identifying the fact that they 
represent the Council, the activity will not require a directed surveillance authorisation. 

4.2.8 Where the Officer makes/receives the call acting covertly, with the possibility of private 
information being obtained and a relationship being entered into, both a directed surveillance 
and CHIS authorisation will be required. 

4.2.9 Similarly if a member of the public or another person acting as a covert source is asked 
to record a telephone conversation made/received by them, both authorisations will be 
required to be in place. 

4.3 Test purchasing of age restricted products

4.3.1 Juveniles may only be authorised as a CHIS by the Head of Paid Service.

4.3.2 Officers should have regard to the Better Regulation Delivery Office code of Practice in 
determining whether directed surveillance authorisation will be necessary in the context of the 
planned operations.

4.3.3 Where the information obtained relates only to whether a sale is made or not, and no 
other information is likely to be obtained which is not already known to the officer directed 
surveillance authorisation is not necessary.

5 Covert Human Intelligence Sources (C.H.I.S.) 

5.1 Introduction 

Page 149



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 16 •

5.1.1 This section of the guidance document deals with Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
(CHIS), more commonly known as: 
Undercover Officers 
Informants/Agents 
Authorisation is a two-stage process: 

(a) to use a source 
(b) an authority for the conduct of a source 

NB Juvenile surveillance CHIS – normally no-one under 18 years or any vulnerable individual 
should be considered as a CHIS (see 5.6 – 8) 

5.1.2 A CHIS is a person who establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship with 
another person for the covert purpose of: 

(a) Using such a relationship to obtain information or to provide access to information 
to another person, or 

(b) Disclosing information obtained by the use of such a relationship or as a 
consequence of such a relationship. 

In addition, a person who covertly provides information to a public authority is potentially a 
CHIS if he has obtained that information in the course of or as a consequence of the existence 
of a personal or other relationship, whether or not the relationship has been established or 
maintained for that purpose.  A repeat informant if and when it becomes apparent that he 
obtains his information in that way is a CHIS to whom a duty of care is owed, if the information 
is acted upon. Legal advice should be taken before acting on the information provided by such 
a source.

5.1.3 The relationship is used covertly if, and only if, it is conducted in a manner calculated to 
ensure that the person is unaware of its purpose. 

5.1.4 The Council receives complaints/information routinely from the public and traders 
regarding the alleged activities of individuals. The actions of these complainants do not 
generally fall within the definition of a covert source since they are a one off provision of 
information. However, a person may become a covert source if an ongoing relationship with 
the Council develops and activities described in paragraph 5.1.2 above are carried out. 

5.1.5 Where the nature of the complaint relates to a matter where an officer requests the 
complainant to obtain further information covertly via a relationship with another individual, 
this activity is likely to fall within the scope of RIPA. An authorisation will therefore be required 
before seeking such information. By following the authorisation procedures, the Council will 
also be in a position to seek to safeguard the identity of the source in any subsequent legal 
proceedings. Further guidance should be sought from the Director of Governance, Finance 
and Public Services Group on this issue to ensure that the identities of any such individuals 
are safeguarded in the event of any legal proceedings, tribunals or disciplinary hearings. 

5.1.6 The Code of Practice on Covert Human Intelligence Sources relates not only to sources 
(which may commonly be referred to as informants) but also the activities of sources, which 
consist of undercover officers who establish or maintain a covert relationship to obtain 
information and evidence. 

5.1.7 Before a source may be engaged or an undercover officer deployed the use must be 
authorised. A separate authorisation for the conduct is also required. The use authorisation 

Page 150



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 17 •

effectively registers the source with the Council. The conduct will address each separate 
operation/investigation in which that source may be involved. 

5.1.8 In most cases, the use and conduct of a source will be restricted to a single investigation. 
However, situations may arise where different conducts are required which can be done once 
the use authorisation is in place. An example would be officers of a Service who undertake 
investigations which require different undercover stories to be adopted. The use authorisation 
enables them to undertake such covert activities. The conduct authorisation addresses each 
different cover story and activity within a different investigation/operation. 

5.1.9 The same authorisation form is used for both use and conduct, with the deletion of 
Use*/Conduct* as appropriate. A conduct authorisation should be traceable back to the 
original use authority. A handler and controller must also be designated as part of the 
authorisation process and detailed records of the use, conduct and tasking of the source 
maintained. 

5.1.10 An Authorising Officer is a person entitled to give an authorisation for the use or conduct 
of a source in accordance with Section 29 of the RIPA. Trading Standards Managers have 
been designated as authorising officers.

5.1.11 The use of a CHIS should be necessary and proportionate to the matter being 
investigated (see para 3.1.9). 

5.1.12 Failure to obtain an authorisation may render the Council liable to a claim of infringing 
the human rights of an individual and may adversely affect the admissibility of any evidence 
obtained by the use of covert methods employed by a source. It is also established that a 
public authority owes a duty of care to a CHIS. Failure to undertake a robust risk assessment 
and authorisation may also adversely affect the position of the Council in the source suffering 
any harm as a result of the activity in which they have been engaged. 

5.1.13 Careful consideration must be given to any potential sensitivities which may exist 
before deciding whether to use a CHIS in a particular community or against a particular 
individual. 

5.1.14 A separate directed surveillance authorisation is not required where any surveillance 
device (technical equipment) is used in the presence of the covert source. 

5.1.15 A CHIS carrying surveillance equipment can be invited to enter residential premises or 
a private vehicle. However the CHIS cannot install surveillance equipment in residential 
premises or a private vehicle since this activity constitutes intrusive surveillance and is not 
available for use by local authorities. 

5.2 Further Guidance on the C.H.I.S Process. 

5.2.1 When seeking an authorisation for an individual to act as a CHIS, consideration needs 
to be made of their potential role in the investigation. Are they prepared to be a witness? Do 
they need to be given protection as a result of providing information? The source may also be 
in a position to provide information relating to a number of different matters worthy of 
investigation. 

5.2.2 The motives of potential sources need to be considered as part of the evaluation 
process. Could they be motivated by possible rewards or revenge? The aim could be to deflect 
attention away from themselves towards other individuals. 

Page 151



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 18 •

5.2.3 Has consideration been given to building up a detailed profile of the potential source and 
their associates? In all cases, a face-to-face meeting with the complainant or any other person 
considered as a potential source should take place. Please be aware that the individual may 
have needs in respect of language, hearing or sight. 

5.2.4 Directed surveillance may be needed to evaluate the source. Consideration should be 
given in certain circumstances to carrying out checks on the source with the Police. A thorough 
risk assessment must be carried out on the potential source and the proposed conduct. 

5.3 Management of Sources 

5.3.1 Tasking is the assignment given to the source by the handler/controller asking him/her 
to obtain information or to take action to obtain information. 

5.3.2 All authorisations should be in writing and in place before tasking a source. Every source 
must have a designated handler and controller. 

5.4 Designated Handlers and Controllers for the Use of Covert Human Intelligence 
Sources 

5.4.1 Where the CHIS is a complainant or an informant, the Handler will be the Investigating 
Officer and the Controller will be their line manager. Where the CHIS is employed by the 
Council acting in an undercover capacity, the Handler will be the officer's line manager and 
the Controller will be another manager within the Service. This arrangement will ensure that 
an officer does not act as a Controller and Authorising Officer thereby ensuring a level of 
independent scrutiny. 

5.5 Security and Welfare of Sources 

5.5.1 A source has no licence to commit crime. In certain circumstances it may be advisable 
to provide written guidance to the source explaining what is being requested of them and the 
limits of the tasking. The source should be asked to sign such a document to confirm that they 
understand the terms of reference. 

5.5.2 A public authority deploying a source should take into account the safety and welfare of 
the source when carrying out any actions in relation to the authorisation or tasking. The 
foreseeable consequences of the tasking should also be considered. 

5.5.3 A Risk Assessment should be undertaken to evaluate the source and to determine the 
risk to the source of any tasking and the likely consequences should the identity and role of 
the source become known to the subject or others involved with the subject. 

5.5.4 The handler should draw to the attention of the controller: 
The Risk Assessment 
The Conduct of the Source 
The Safety and Welfare of the Source 
A Handler is responsible for: 
Dealing with the source on behalf of the Council 
Directing the day to day activities of the source 
Recording the information supplied by the source 
Monitoring the security and welfare of the source 

5.5.5 Where a source is known or suspected of being involved in crime, consideration should 
be given to their motives in supplying information. It may also be a prudent step in the 
management of such a source to have two officers present during any meetings with the 

Page 152



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 19 •

source. Background checks on the potential source via the Police Local Intelligence Officer 
should also be considered. 

5.5.6 Special provisions exist for the conduct in use of juvenile sources (Under 18). 
A source under 16 cannot be engaged to use a relationship with any person having parental 
responsibility for them. A source under 16 must have an appropriate adult present during any 
meetings and a risk assessment must also take place before granting or renewing an 
authorisation for the conduct and use of a source under 18. This will take account of physical 
and psychological risks. 
See the Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Juveniles) Order 2000 for detailed guidance. 

5.5.7 Special consideration should also be given to the use of vulnerable individuals as a 
source. This will require the highest level of Authorising Officer (see the code of practice for 
further guidance). 

5.5.8 Authorisations for juvenile sources ie a source under the age of 18, when the 
authorisation is granted, have effect for one month. Juvenile and vulnerable source 
authorisations can only be issued with the authorisation of the Head of Paid Service.

5.6 The Application for Authorisation 

Must include: 

5.6.1 The ground on which the authorisation is sought: 

- Preventing or detecting crime (or other Lancashire County Council Non-Ripa policy 
circumstances) 

- An explanation of the necessity and proportionality of the Use/Conduct. 

- Where the matter relates to a specific investigation, details of that investigation or 
operation. 

- Details of the purpose for which the source will be tasked. 

- Details of what the source will be tasked to do. 

- Details of the level of authority required having regard to any confidential material 
that might be obtained as a consequence of the authorisation. (This will invoke the 
requirement to be authorised by the Chief Executive if confidential material is being 
sought or is likely to be obtained). 

- Details of who will be affected and plans to avoid/minimise collateral intrusion. 
Where this changes, the Authorising Officer must be informed and the authorisation 
reviewed. 

- A detailed Risk Assessment must have been undertaken. A review may also be 
required if the assessment is not current. 

- The Authorising Officer may wish to impose control measures on the authorisation 
that is granted. 

5.6.2 Unless renewed or cancelled, an authorisation remains in force for: 

Page 153



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 20 •

12 months from the date of issue (Juveniles - one month). The authorisation should be given 
a unique operation reference number and be recorded in management record file. Conduct 
authorisations should be referenced to the original use authorisation. 

A duplicate/copy of the authorisation should be issued to the officer. This will ensure that the 
officer has a record of the scope of the activity authorised. 

5.6.3 Applications which are refused should also be recorded together with the reasons for 
the refusal and a service number. Copies of these refusals must be sent for inclusion in the 
central record. 

5.7 Duration of Authorisations 

5.7.1 Authorisations have effect for a period of twelve months. It is suggested that the 
authorisation to use the source has effect for up to 12 months (other than juveniles, see 
above), however the conduct may be restricted to a shorter period or be made subject to 
reviews set as a control measure by the Authorising Officer. 

5.7.2 Records of authorisations to be retained for a minimum period of five years. 

5.7.3 Destruction of the authorisation form should be documented in the Authorising Officers 
Management Record file. 

5.8 Renewals and Reviews 

5.8.1 An authorisation may be renewed after the Authorising Officer reviews the use made of 
the source having regard to: 

a) The tasks given to the source 
b) The information obtained from the source. 

If satisfied that the original authorisation criteria are met, a renewal may be granted. 

5.8.2 Since an authorisation for a CHIS may remain in force for a period of twelve months, 
regular reviews should be undertaken to ensure the ongoing validity of the activity and the 
ongoing welfare and security of the source. Any changes to circumstances may require that 
further risk assessments are undertaken. 

5.8.3 The reviews should be undertaken at intervals of no longer than three months and 
documented. Additional control measures may also be introduced as a result of a review. The 
Authorising Officer should implement a system to identify appropriate review dates. 

5.9 Cancellations 

5.9.1 An Authorising Officer must cancel an authorisation where: 

The use or conduct of the source no longer meets the original authorisation criteria. 

The procedures for managing the source are no longer in place. 

Where possible the source should be informed of the cancellation, and this fact noted on the 
cancellation. The authorising officer should give directions on the handling, storage or 
destruction of the product of surveillance.

Page 154



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 21 •

5.9.2 Where an investigation no longer requires the authorisation to be in place eg the 
evidence has been obtained, it should be cancelled promptly rather than allowed to expire 
through time, and the reason for cancellation documented. 

5.10 Source Records 

5.10.1 Records of Use of the source and the product provided by the source should be 
maintained by the service for a period of five years. Records should not be destroyed without 
the authority of the Authorising Officer. Destruction of records should be documented in the 
Central Records file. 

5.10.2 The following information must be recorded: 

- Authorisation Reference Number 

- Authorising Officer 

- Identity used by Source (If any) 

- Identity of Source 

- Reference used in the authority to refer to Source (If any) 

- Information relating to security and welfare of Source 

- A record that any risks to the security and welfare of the Source have been 
explained to and understood by the Source 

- Records of reviews conducted on the continuing use and welfare of the Source 

- The date when the Source was recruited 

- The circumstances of the recruitment 

- Identity of the Handler and Controller (and details of any changes) 

- A record of the tasks and activities given to the Source 

- A record of all contacts or communications between the Source and a person 
representing the Council 

- The information obtained through the Source 

- How the information is used 

- A statement as to whether any payment, benefit or reward is provided by or on 
behalf of any investigating authority and details of it*. 

- Reasons for cancelling/not renewing the authorisation and the date and the time of 
such a decision. 

*(Please seek guidance regarding any payment, benefit or reward you may wish consider 
from an Authorising Officer). 

Page 155



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 22 •

Notes: 

Necessity 
For interference with an individual’s private, family or business life to be necessary, the action 
must be for the purposes of preventing and detecting crime or of preventing disorder, be 
necessary to secure best evidence and that less covert or intrusive action would not serve the 
appropriate purpose. 

Proportionality 

The test for proportionality goes far beyond selecting the least intrusive method of 
investigation. The activity to be observed must not be trivial and must warrant the surveillance 
to be instigated. 

The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of the case or if the 
information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other less intrusive means. All 
such activity should be carefully managed to meet the objective in question and must not be 
arbitrary or unfair. Proportionality should contain a consideration of three elements:      
a) that the proposed covert surveillance is proportional to the mischief under investigation; (b) 
that it is proportionate to the degree of anticipated intrusion on the target and others and  (c) 
it is the only option, other overt means having been considered and discounted

6 Risk Assessments for All RIPA/Surveillance Activities 

6.1 Whenever undertaking covert directed surveillance or engaging in the conduct and use of 
a CHIS, the proposed activity must be the subject of a risk assessment and evaluation of the 
proposed Source. 

6.2 Directed Surveillance activities clearly have the potential to expose staff to hazards should 
their activities become known to the subject or even to others during the operation. The use 
of a CHIS has the potential to expose handlers, undercover officers, agents/informants and 
the public to health and safety risks. A duty of care may also lie with officers and the Council 
in managing sources. 

6.3 Authorising Officers, Controllers, Handlers Undercover Officers and Investigating Officers 
must all have regard to the Council's Corporate Policy on Health and Safety. This addresses 
issues such as lone working and violence to staff. 

6.4 It is a matter for each Service to determine the training required to ensure that staff are 
competent to undertake risk assessments of proposed operations/use of covert sources. All 
incidents/dangerous occurrences during the course of operations should be reported in 
accordance with the relevant Health and Safety Procedures. 

6.5 Consideration should also be given to staff training requirements to engage in covert 
activities, surveillance and acting in an undercover capacity. 

6.6 This section of this guidance document is intended to provide an overview which must be 
borne in mind when undertaking activities within the scope of RIPA. 

6.7. Further Guidance on Health and Safety issues is available from Corporate HR/ Health 
and Safety sources. 

6.8 Risk assessments for directed surveillance operations should be undertaken by the officer 
in charge of the proposed activity and submitted with the authorisation application. 

Page 156



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 23 •

6.9 Risk assessments for the use of a CHIS should be undertaken by the Handler and 
considered by the Controller as part of a risk management process. The assessment should 
then be forwarded to the Authorising Officer with the application. The assessment should 
consider the Ethical, Personal and Operational Risks of the proposed activity. The evaluation 
of a potential source is an important part of the application process. 

6.10 Risk assessment is not a one off activity but an ongoing process throughout the operation 
and use of the source, since circumstances may change and a review may be required. 

6.11 The nature of the risks surrounding the deployment and management of individual 
sources, handlers and operational activities will vary according to a wide range of factors on 
a case by case basis. Risk assessment allows the handler and controller to advise the 
Authorising Officer of the plan for managing the risks. 

6.12 Authorising Officers will not authorise a Directed Surveillance operation or the use of a 
source without the evidence that the risks have been considered and a plan for their 
management exists. 

7 Communications Data 

7.1 Accessing Communications Data 

7.1.1 The relevant provisions of Part I Chapter II of RIPA 2000 came into force on 5 January 
2004. This established a formal legal framework, by which public authorities can obtain 
communications data by a lawful method, consistent with article 8 of the Human Rights Act 
1998. 

7.1.2 This section of the guidance document details the systems in place to ensure compliance 
with RIPA when an investigating officer seeks to obtain communications data within the scope 
of their enquiries. 

7.1.3 In a similar manner to the existing provisions of RIPA relating to directed surveillance 
and the use of a CHIS, a process of submitting an application and securing an authorisation 
is established by the legislation and code of practice. 
For this part of the Act the lead Service for the Authority is the Trading Standards Service. The 
Senior Responsible Officer for this Part of the Act is the Head of Service for Trading Standards. 

7.1.4 Under Section 22(2) of RIPA, communications data which local authorities are entitled 
to access can only be sought for the purpose of: 

The prevention and detection of crime or preventing disorder Section 22(2)(b) 

The application is also put to the two tests under RIPA of necessity and proportionality. 

7.1.5 This activity cannot be undertaken by an officer as communications service providers 
will only accept requests for information form accredited officers registered with the Home 
Office and termed Single Points of Contact (SPOC). 

7.1.6 The National Anti Fraud Network acts as the SPOC on behalf of Lancashire County 
Council.  Applications are made by officers via a secure network, and forwarded to the 
designated persons in the Trading Standards Service for authorisation by means of this 
network. 

Page 157



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 24 •

7.1.7 Records of all applications, authorisations, notices, cancellations and refusals are 
maintained by NAFN. These are subject to periodic inspection by the body appointed to have 
an overview of this Part of the Act, the Interception Commissioner. As with other parts of RIPA 
there is a Central Record. For this part of the Act it is maintained by NAFN on behalf of 
Lancashire County Council. 

7.2 What is Communications Data 

7.2.1 Communications data is information held by communication service providers such as 
telecom, Internet and postal companies relating to the communications made by their 
customers. 

7.2.2 Communications data includes the detail of the user, the use and the content (Traffic) of 
the communication. (Note: Local Authorities do not have the right to access traffic information). 

7.3 Who are Communication Service Providers 

7.3.1 Communications data is obtained from Communications Service Providers (CSPs) 
These include: 

Telecommunications Providers 

• Mobile Phone service providers eg Orange, Vodafone, T Mobile, O2 
• Landline telephone service providers eg BT, NTL, Cable and Wireless 
• International Simple Voice Resellers eg One-Tel 

Internet Service Providers (ISPs) 

Examples: AOL, BT, NTL 

Virtual ISP’s: Freeserve 

Portals: Hotmail, Yahoo, Lycos 

Postal Providers 
Royal Mail, Parcelforce, DHL 
Small parcel courier services 
Accommodation agencies, which forward mail to clients 

7.4 What Information can be obtained from Communications Service Providers 

7.4.1 Information about communications service users 
Section 21(4)(c) 

This category mainly includes personal records supplied to the CSP by the 
customer/subscriber. For example, their name and address, payment method, contact number 
etc. 

• Name of account holder/subscriber 
• Installation and billing address 
• Method of payment/billing arrangements
• Collection/delivery arrangements for PO Box (but not where from or to)
• Other customer information such as any account notes, demographic information or 

sign up data (not passwords or personalised access information) 

Page 158



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 25 •

7.4.2 Information about the use of the Communications Service 
Section 21(4)(b) 

This category mainly includes everyday data collected relating to the customer’s use of their 
communications system. For example, details of the dates and times they have made calls 
and which telephone numbers they have called. 

• Outgoing calls on landline or contract or prepay mobile 
• Timing and duration of service usage 
• Itemised connection records 
• Internet log on history 
• Emails log (sent) 
• Information on connection, disconnection and reconnection of services 
• Information on the provision of conference calling, call messaging, call waiting and 

call barring 
• Information about the provision and use of forwarding/redirection services (postal 

and telecom) 
• Records of postal items, such as records of registered, recorded or special delivery 

postal items, records of parcel consignments, delivery and collection 

7.4.3 Information about Communications (Traffic Data) 
Section 21(4)(a) 

Local authorities are not permitted to obtain ‘traffic’ data (ie the actual content of the 
communication or more detailed information or tracking) 

This category mainly includes data generated by the CSP (network data) relating to a 
customer’s use of their communication system (that the customer may not be aware of) for 
example, cell site data and routing information. 

• Information identifying the sender and recipient (including copy recipients) of a 
communication 

• Information identifying any location of a communication (such as mobile phone cell 
site locations data) 

• Routing information identifying or selecting any apparatus through which a 
communication is transmitted – for example dynamic IP address allocation, web 
postings and e-mail headers

• Call detail records for specific calls (such as calling line identity – incoming calls) 
• Web browsing information (only the web site name is disclosed and not the pages 

visited on the web site) 
• Information written on the outside of a postal item (such as a letter or parcel) 
• Online tracking of communications (including postal) 
• Signalling information and dialling sequences that affects the routing of a 

communication (but not the delivery of information) in the investigation of “dial thru” 
fraud 

Please note that these lists are not exhaustive and the CSPs cannot all provide the 
same information. 

7.5 How can this Information be Obtained 

7.5.1 Under Section 22(2) of RIPA, communications data which local authorities are entitled 
to access can only be sought if it for the purpose of: 

The prevention and detection of crime or preventing disorder Section 22(2)(b) 

Page 159



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 26 •

7.5.2 The application is also put to the two tests under RIPA of necessity and proportionality. 

7.5.3 RIPA establishes two methods by which communications data may be obtained: 

Notices 
Authorisations 

7.5.4 A Notice under Section 22(4) of RIPA requires the CSP to collect or disclose the data 
on behalf of the public authority. 

7.5.5 An authorisation under permits the public authority to collect the information. This may 
be where the CSP is not capable of colleting the data or a prior agreement is in place to allow 
the authority to access the data. 

7.5.6 A CSP only has to provide the data in a reasonable time and if practical to do so. Different 
CSPs will have different types of data and differing retention periods. 

7.5.7 When it becomes clear that a witness statement is required to formally produce the data 
which has been provided by the CSP, it should be requested without undue delay. 

7.5.8 CPSs are entitled to recover reasonable costs incurred in providing the data and 
supplying witness statements. These vary from one CSP to another. 

7.5.9 Where the notice or authorisation is approved by the Designated Person (Authorising 
Officer), it remains in force for a period of one month. 

7.5.10 Notices and authorisations which are no longer required are no longer necessary or 
proportionate and must be cancelled. 

7.6 Contact with the Communications Industry 

7.6.1 Notices and, where appropriate, authorisations for communications data can only be 
channelled through single points of contact officers (SPOCs) within each public authority. 

7.6.2 Similarly, requests for a witness statement following receipt of data from a CSP should 
also be via a SPOC. 

7.6.3 SPOCs have been trained via a course accredited by the Home Office and the details 
of nominated SPOCs within each public authority are held by each CSP. 

A CSP will therefore not deal with any request received from another un-accredited source of 
enquiry. 

7.7 The Role of the SPOC 

7.7.1 SPOCs will enable a more efficient regime to be developed as they will deal with CSPs 
and become aware of the data which they hold. 

7.7.2 The SPOC plays an important role in the self-regulation and internal quality control of a 
public authority in ensuring that the requirements of RIPA are adhered to in requesting and 
obtaining communications data. 

7.7.3 SPOCs reduce the demands upon CSPs from a great number of sources within a public 
authority. 

Page 160



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 27 •

7.7.4 A SPOC will be able to advise the applicant officer of the nature and practicalities of 
obtaining the data which is being requested. 

7.7.5 The SPOC will advise the applicant on the content of the application request prior to 
submission to the Authorising Officer and where necessary refuse the application at that point 
for stated reasons. 

7.7.6 The SPOC provides a safeguard for CSPs in ensuring that applications and notices are 
genuine. 

7.7.7 SPOCs will retain a list of contact points with relevant CSPs. 

7.7.8 NAFN provide a SPOC service on behalf of Lancashire County Council, and access 
details are maintained within the Trading Standards Service.

7.8 The Role of the Authorising Officers 

7.8.1 This officer considers the necessity and proportionality of any application for 
communications data (see earlier sections of this Guidance Document which provide further 
information on these tests). 

7.8.2 Consideration should also be given to the issue of collateral intrusion where other 
persons may be affected by the granting of the notice or authorisation. 

7.8.3 The Authorising Officer is required to be an officer at least at the following level within 
the authority: 

Director 
Head of Service 
Service Manager or equivalent 

An Authorising Officer should have the necessary training and experience to be competent 
to authorise activity. A record of Authorising Officers will be kept within the Trading 
Standards Service. 

7.9 The Application Process 

7.9.1 The investigating officer should log in to NAFN and complete the relevant online form. 

7.9.2 The application should then be submitted to the SPOC via NAFN who will give 
consideration to the following: 

• Whether the data being requested is capable of being provided by the CSP 

• The reasons for the data being required in terms of the investigation being conducted 
and the offence being investigated 

• The grounds for necessity and proportionality being addressed 

• Should the application be deemed satisfactory, a Notice or authorisation form will be 
completed, this together with the application form will be submitted to the 
Authorising Officer for authorisation or refusal. 

Page 161



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 28 •

Should the SPOC, however, consider there are grounds refusing the application, the form will 
be returned to the officer via the network. 

When a Notice or authorisation is approved by the Authorising Officer, the SPOC will send it 
to the relevant CSP. 

A Notice is only valid for a period of one month. 

When, during the life of a Notice or authorisation, it is no longer necessary or proportionate or 
is no longer required by the investigation it must be cancelled. 
. 
7.10 Records and Errors 

7.10.1 NAFN will retain records of all applications, refusals and authorisations passed to the 
designated person. Copies of all Notices/authorisations and refusals from the Authorising 
Officer will be retained. 

7.10.2 This will allow a full audit trail for an application for obtaining communications data. 

7.10.3 Documentation will be maintained by NAFN for inspection by the Interception 
Commissioner and complaints falling within the remit of the Complaints Tribunal. 

7.10.4 Where any errors have occurred in granting authorisations or notices (eg subscriber 
details of an incorrect telephone number being obtained), a record must be kept and the matter 
explained by means of a report to the Commissioner as soon as practicable. NAFN or the 
authorising officers will notify the Trading Standards Head of Service of any errors as soon as 
possible so a report can be sent to the Interception Commissioner. 

8 Seeking JP approval for authorisations

8.1 In all cases involving authorisation of Directed Surveillance, use of CHIS, and access to 
Communications Data, officers must seek prior approval from a JP before undertaking the 
activity.

8.2  If the JP is satisfied that the statutory tests have been met and that the use of the 
technique is necessary and proportionate he/she will issue an order approving the grant or 
renewal for the use of the technique as described in the application.

8.3 The officer will make an appointment at the relevant magistrates' court and will provide the 
JP with a copy of the original RIPA authorisation or notice and the supporting documents 
setting out the case. This forms the basis of the application to the JP and should contain all 
information that is relied upon. For communications data requests the RIPA authorisation 
or notice may seek to acquire consequential acquisition of specific subscriber information. The 
necessity and proportionality of acquiring consequential acquisition will be assessed by the 
JP as part of his consideration.

8.4 The original RIPA authorisation or notice should be shown to the JP but will be retained 
by the local authority so that it is available for inspection by the Commissioners’ offices and in 
the event of any legal challenge or investigations by the Investigatory Powers Tribunal (IPT). 
The court may wish to take a copy. 

8.5 In addition, the local authority will provide the JP with a partially completed judicial 
application/order form. 

Page 162



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 29 •

8.6 The order section of this form will be completed by the JP and will be the official record of 
the JP’s decision. The local authority will need to obtain judicial approval for all initial RIPA 
authorisations/applications and renewals and the local authority will need to retain a copy of 
the judicial application/order form after it has been signed by the JP. There is no requirement 
for the JP to consider either cancellations or internal reviews.

8.7 Further more detailed guidance and documentation should be accessed via the Home 
Office Guidance available on the www.gov.uk website.

8.8 Where JP approval is granted, this should be forwarded to the Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services for the Central record, and directed surveillance and CHIS 
activity can commence.  For Communications Data, the approval needs to be returned to 
NAFN for the SPOC to contact the relevant CSP.

9 Lancashire County Council Auditing of Authorisations and Records 

9.1 The Trading Standards Service must annually undertake a review of their activity within 
the scope of RIPA and complete the annual RIPA return form which must be returned to the 
Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services. 

9.2. The Senior Responsible Officer reviews RIPA activity on a quarterly basis, and reports 
activity under RIPA to the Cabinet on an annual basis. 

9.3 Part of the Audit will focus on a review of Projected Service activity and that all relevant 
staff have had sufficient training. 

9.4 The following will also fall within the scope of the audit: 

Applications 
Authorisations 
Risk assessments 
Reviews and Renewals 
Cancellations 
Records of Product of Directed Surveillance 
Source Records 
Staff Awareness 

9.5 The audit will seek to establish compliance of the authorisations/renewals/cancellations 
and records with the following: 

RIPA 
Statutory Instruments made under RIPA 

The Code of Practice on Covert Surveillance 
The Code of Practice on Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
The Code of Practice on Accessing Communications Data 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes 
Lancashire County Council RIPA corporate policy and work instructions 
Guidance material issued by the OSC and IOCCO.

9.6 Non-conformities identified as a result of the audit will be reported to the relevant Service 
Management Team. Action taken by local management should be reported back to the Audit 
team. 

9.7 The cross Council audit report will be held within the Central Record. 

Page 163

http://www.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes


Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 30 •

9.8 The processing of prosecution reports by a service should have regard to compliance with 
RIPA where investigations include covert surveillance and/or the use of a CHIS and/or 
obtaining communications data. 

10 Inspections by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC) and the 
Interception of Communications Commissioner (IOCCO)

10.1 The Codes of Practice include a section dealing with inspection by the Commissioners. 
They impose a requirement to comply with requests and to disclose or provide information 
requested by the Commissioner to allow him to carry out his functions. 

10.2 During inspection visits, the codes require certain authorisations to be drawn to the 
Inspector’s attention. These being where the Authorising Officer has authorised an activity he 
is directly involved in and those where confidential material is sought or obtained. 

10.3 A further inspection regime has been established by RIPA in relation to accessing 
communications data. This is undertaken by the Interception of Communications 
Commissioner.  These inspections take place through NAFN, with queries raised individually 
with local authorities where necessary. Similar recourse to the Tribunal exists for complaints 
against the activities of the authority. 

11 Complaints 

11.1 An independent complaints procedure is provided by the legislation. Complaints can be 
made to: 
The Investigatory Powers Tribunal
PO Box 33220
London 
SW1H 9ZQ 
Tel: 0207 035 3711
http://www.ipt-uk.com/

12 Management Records 

12.1 The management files, authorisations/renewals/cancellations and Source Records must 
be kept in a secure place with restricted access. These files will provide the basis of the audits 
and be liable for inspection by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioners. Originals of the 
authorisations (including refusals), reviews, renewals and cancellations, must also be 
provided to the Central Record. This is managed by the Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services. Officers forwarding confidential material to the Central Record 
must ensure that it is forwarded by a secure method. 

12.2 Security of the Central Record 

The Central Record is to be held in a suitable locked cabinet, or secure electronic folder. 

Page 164



Corporate Policy and Guidance on The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

• 31 •

Version Control  

Named Owner: Ian Young Director of Governance, Finance and Public 
Services
 

Version Number: 5.00
Date Of Creation: November 2016
Last Review:
Next Scheduled 
Review:

November 2017

Overview of 
Amendments to 
this Version:

Page 165



Page 166



Shadow RIPA Surveillance Policy 2016

Appendix 'B' 

Page 167



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 2 •

General Statement of Policy 

 This policy document relates to use by Lancashire County Council officers 
of directed surveillance, and covert human intelligence sources not 
undertaken in relation to the prevention and detection of crime for which the 
authority has an enforcement responsibility, or which fall outside the RIPA 
regime due to offence penalties not meeting the thresholds laid down for the 
RIPA regime to apply.

 The County Council is committed to upholding human rights 

 As a public body and responsible employer, the County Council wants to 
conform to the spirit of the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 and associated regulations and codes of practice relating 
to the use of covert surveillance, the use of covert human intelligence 
sources,

 County Council officers will only undertake surveillance work outwith the 
RIPA regime when it is both necessary and proportionate to the ends it seeks 
to achieve. 

Page 168



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 3 •

CONTENTS

Introduction

1. Purpose

2. Scope

3. Responsibilities

4. References

5. Procedure – Directed Surveillance in relation to Lancashire County 
Council employees

6. Procedure – Directed Surveillance in relation to Lancashire County 
Council residents

7. Procedure – Covert Human Intelligence Source

8. Monitoring and Retaining Applications

9. Handling Product from Surveillance Activities

Page 169



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 4 •

Introduction

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) does not grant powers to 
carry out surveillance. It simply provides a framework that allows the Council to 
authorise and supervise surveillance in a manner that ensures compliance with the 
Human Rights Act 1998. Equally, RIPA does not prevent surveillance from being 
carried out or require that surveillance may only be carried out under RIPA.  Where a 
public authority carries out surveillance in accordance with RIPA this provides 
protection against a claim of infringement of an individual's human right to a private 
and family life, his home and his correspondence.

RIPA can however only be used by a local authority for the purposes of preventing 
and detecting crime, and case law (C v The Police and the Secretary of State for the 
Home Department) indicates that this should be interpreted to mean crime which falls 
within the core purpose of the authority.  The question has to be "is it for a core function 
linked to one of the authority's regulatory functions".

There will be times when it will be necessary and proportionate to carry out covert 
Directed Surveillance or use a CHIS other than by using RIPA either because the 
investigation is not carried out for the purposes of preventing or detecting crime in 
pursuance of the core enforcement functions of the authority, or because, in the 
case of directed surveillance, the penalty for the offences under investigation is below 
the threshold which would enable use of a RIPA authorisation. This could include 
surveillance for the purposes of monitoring employees who may be under 
investigation.  It could also include matters where the authority is involved in litigation 
and may wish to carry out surveillance to verify whether or not information provided is 
true or false – for example in child protection matters where there are questions raised 
as to residency of individuals who may pose a threat to a child .

Indeed, there may be circumstances in which Directed Surveillance or use of CHIS is 
the only effective means of efficiently obtaining significant information to take an 
investigation forward.

Page 170



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 5 •

1. Purpose of This Policy 

To establish guidance within Lancashire County Council services for seeking approval 
for the conduct by officers of directed surveillance, and the use of covert human 
intelligence sources (CHIS) which is not undertaken for the prevention or 
detection of crime in connection with the core functions of LCC or where the 
penalty for the offence under investigation falls below the threshold for Directed 
Surveillance to be approved under the RIPA regime. 

If the surveillance is undertaken for purposes related to the prevention and 
detection of crime, reference must be made to the Corporate Policy and 
Guidance on the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

This policy is Intended to cover surveillance carried out in such situations as 
investigations into serious allegations regarding the conduct of employees, 
observations on private residences to determine the veracity of information provided 
to the County Council in connection with the exercise of its functions, use of sources 
to provide information in person or on the internet or to provide officers with information 
in circumstances which would be covered by relevant codes of practice if the activity 
was undertaken for the prevention and detection of crime.

2. Scope
2.1 Surveillance which is covert but not intrusive and undertaken for the purposes of 
a specific investigation or operation, in such a manner as is likely to result in the 
obtaining of private information about a person (whether or not one specifically 
identified for the purposes of the investigation or operation) and otherwise than by way 
of an immediate response to events or circumstances, the nature of which is such that 
it would not be reasonable practicable for an authorisation under the Act to be sought 
for the carrying out of the surveillance.  Private information in relation to a person 
includes any information relating to his private or family life. Note that this can 
include information about family, professional and business relationships. 

2.2 The use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS). A CHIS is a person who 
establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship with another person for the 
covert purpose of: 

(a) Using such a relationship to obtain information or to provide access to 
information to another person, or 

(b) Disclosing information obtained by the use of such a relationship or as a 
consequence of such a relationship. 

In addition, a person who covertly provides information to a public authority is 
potentially A CHIS if he has obtained that information in the course of or as a 
consequence of the existence of a personal or other relationship, whether or not the 
relationship has been established or maintained for that purpose.  A repeat informant, 
if and when it becomes apparent that he obtains his information in that way, is a CHIS 
to whom a duty of care is owed, if the information is acted upon. Legal advice should 
be taken before acting on the information provided by informants.

Page 171



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 6 •

3. Responsibilities
Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services – Authorising Officer
Heads of Service 
Service Managers  

4. References
Human Rights Act 1998
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012
Codes of Practice on Covert Surveillance and CHIS
Corporate Guidance

5. Procedure – Directed Surveillance in relation to Lancashire County 
Council employees

If during the course of any investigation or enquiry into an Lancashire County Council 
employee, the investigating officer believes it necessary to carry out directed 
surveillance on any person involved in the investigation he shall consider the 
possibility of obtaining any private information about that person and if there is such a 
possibility, authorisation on the relevant form should be sought by completing and 
forwarding the form E1 -2016 to the Director of Legal and Democratic Services. 

Those carrying out the covert surveillance should inform the authorising officer if the 
operation/investigation unexpectedly interferes with the privacy of individuals who are 
not the original subjects of the investigation or covered by the authorisation in some 
other way.  This is known as collateral intrusion and steps should be taken to minimise 
the risks of the surveillance affecting other individuals who are not targets of the 
investigation, including considering the appropriateness of recording and retention of 
evidence regarding those individuals.  

Before giving the authorisation the authorising officer will at first satisfy him/herself that 
the authorisation is necessary on particular grounds and that the surveillance is 
proportionate to what it seeks to achieve.  This could include for example serious 
disciplinary investigations.  

Assessing proportionality includes the following:

• balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and extent 
of the perceived conduct;
• explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least possible 
intrusion on the subject and others
• Considering whether the surveillance activity is an appropriate response and a 
reasonable way, having considered all reasonable alternatives of obtaining the 
necessary result
• evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods had been 
considered and why they were not implemented

If other overt methods of obtaining the information can be tried, then these methods 
should be attempted – covert surveillance should be the last resort.

Page 172



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 7 •

Where there is a possibility that confidential material may come into the possession of 
the Service special safeguards should be observed.  In such circumstances the 
matter should be referred to the Chief Executive immediately and legal advice 
sought.  (If the Chief Executive is not available, the matter should be referred to 
a Chief Officer, it is not appropriate for the matter to be delegated).  Confidential 
material is more closely defined in the Home Office code of practice but relates to 
matters subject to legal privilege; confidential personal information; or confidential 
journalistic material.  Such material should not be retained or copied unless necessary 
for a specific purpose, should not be disseminated except for a specific purpose and 
if retained or disseminated this should be done with a clear warning of its confidential 
nature.  Reasonable steps should be taken to ensure that there is no possibility of its 
content being known to any person whose possession of it might prejudice any 
criminal or civil proceedings related to the information.  Confidential material should 
be destroyed as soon as it is no longer necessary to retain it for a specified 
purpose. 

6. Procedure – Directed Surveillance on Lancashire County Council 
Residents

The Council receives complaints and information on occasions in relation to LCC 
residents who are alleged to be involved in activities which may infringe child 
protection guidelines or other County Council guidelines.  Covert surveillance can only 
be authorised in relation to Lancashire County Council residents by the Director of 
Legal and Democratic Services.  The applicant should outline in the application why 
the activity is considered to be necessary and proportionate, as in paragraph 5 above.
  

7. Procedure – Covert Human Intelligence Sources

The Council receives complaints/information routinely from the public regarding the 
alleged activities of individuals. The actions of these complainants do not generally fall 
within the definition of a covert source since they are a one off provision of information. 
However, a person may become a covert source if an ongoing relationship with the 
Council develops and activities described in above are carried out.  The use of CHIS 
could also cover circumstances where an employee of LCC establishes a relationship 
in order to gain information about a particular situation.

Where the nature of the complaint relates to a matter where an officer requests the 
complainant to obtain further information covertly via a relationship with another 
individual, this activity is likely to fall within CHIS. A shadow authorisation will therefore 
be required before seeking such information. By following the authorisation 
procedures, the Council will also be in a position to seek to safeguard the identity of 
the source in any subsequent legal proceedings. Further guidance should be 
sought from the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services or the 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services on this issue to ensure that the 
identities of any such individuals are safeguarded in the event of any legal 
proceedings, tribunals or disciplinary hearings. 

NB Juvenile surveillance CHIS – normally no one under 18 years or any vulnerable 
individual should be considered as a CHIS.

Page 173



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 8 •

8. Monitoring and Retaining Applications 

The Local Authority must maintain a central record of all Authorisations.  The Central 
Record of Shadow Authorisations is currently held in the Trading Standards Service.  
These records will be confidential and should be retained for a period of at least five 
years from the ending of the authorisation. Where it is believed that the records could 
be relevant to pending or future criminal proceedings, they should be retained for a 
suitable further period, commensurate to any subsequent review.  

Authorisations last for a period of three months and may be renewed more than once, 
if necessary, by completion of the relevant document. The renewal should be 
kept/recorded as part of the "authorisation record".  

Regular reviews of authorisations should be undertaken to assess the need for the 
surveillance to continue. The results of a review should be recorded on the relevant 
form (E2 - 2016).  Generally, unless circumstances dictate otherwise, reviews will be 
carried out at monthly to six weekly intervals. 

Once surveillance activities have ceased, the officer who made the application must 
submit an application for cancellation to the Authorising officer.  The cancellation 
application should be submitted immediately the activities are no longer required.  The 
authorising officer who granted an authorisation must cancel it if satisfied that the 
action authorised by it is no longer necessary.  

In summary, the practical procedure for obtaining an Authorisation is as follows;

i) A completed application should be submitted to the Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services using form E1-2016.  The authorising officer will 
consider the necessity and proportionality of the application and the 
likelihood of any collateral intrusion.   

ii) A review should take place at monthly to six weekly intervals. (Form E2 – 
2016)

iii) At the end of the surveillance operation, the investigating officer will 
submit a cancellation form (E3-2016) to the authorising officer. A copy of 
the cancellation form will be given to the investigating officer. All forms will 
be provided to the Trading Standards Manager (Fair Trading/Legal) for 
retention in the central record.

iv) The investigating officer may seek a renewal of the authorisation if 
necessary (Form E4 – 2016).

v)  Copy documents will be retained on the investigation file. 

9. Handling Product from Surveillance Activities

Product from Covert Surveillance activities may consist of:

- Photographs

Page 174



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 9 •

- Video film

- Voice recordings

- Surveillance log

- Officer’s notes

The above may be required as evidence in current or future proceedings.  Officers must have 
regard to the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1998 in relation to this material.  
Product obtained via an authorisation may be used by the authority in other 
investigations.

Officers should record the results of any surveillance.  When product is disposed of, a note 
should be made on the file.

The use of any product obtained by authorised surveillance activities outside of the Public 
Authority or the Courts should only be authorised in the most exceptional 
circumstances.  This requirement seeks to prevent product from being used for 
grounds other than that for which it was obtained.  Joint operations should make 
reference to the potential use of evidence by each agency.

Officers may receive requests from other agencies for product, which may include 
photographs of suspects, descriptions, and vehicle details.  Where this information 
has been obtained under an authorisation, further guidance should be sought from the 
Authorising Officer, since disclosure may not be permitted under the provisions of the 
Code of Practice.

Page 175



Shadow RIPA surveillance Policy 2016

• 10 •

Version Control  

Named Owner: Laura Sales: Director – Legal and Democratic Services
 

Version Number: 1.00
Date Of Creation: November 2016
Last Review:
Next Scheduled 
Review:

November 2017

Overview of 
Amendments to 
this Version:

Page 176



Covert Social Networking Checks and Surveillance Policy 

Appendix 'C' 

Page 177



Covert Social Media and Surveillance Policy

• 2 •

Purpose:

To provide guidance to Lancashire County Council (LCC) employees when using 
social media or internet open source information in furtherance of LCC investigations, 
as to when authorisation for surveillance activities should be sought.

Responsibilities:

Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services
Director of Legal and Democratic Services
Service Managers

Guidance:

For Directed Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes 
Corporate Policy and Guidance On The Regulation Of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
Corporate Policy and Guidance On Non RIPA surveillance activities

NOTE

Before any investigation takes place using the internet or social media, the 
investigating officer should have regard to the potential need for a directed surveillance 
application or a covert human intelligence source application in accordance with 
corporate policy. 

Guidance must always be sought from a manager in the first instance, and in cases of 
doubt from the Director of Legal and Democratic Services.  The important 
considerations are that the surveillance is necessary, in that there is no other way of 
obtaining the information, and proportionate – taking into account the following:-

• balancing the size and scope of the proposed activity against the gravity and extent 
of the perceived crime or offence;
• explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least possible 
intrusion on the subject and others
• Considering whether the activity is an appropriate use of the legislation and a 
reasonable way, having considered all reasonable alternatives of obtaining the 
necessary result
• evidencing, as far as reasonably practicable, what other methods had been 
considered and why they were not implemented

Open Source

Information which is "open source", that is to say where the individual can have no 
reasonable expectation of privacy, can generally be utilised in furtherance of an 
investigation.  However, where an operation involves the longer term monitoring of an 
individual and is likely to result in the gathering and retaining of private information, 
consideration should be given to obtaining authorisation for directed surveillance.

Page 178

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/ripa-codes


Covert Social Media and Surveillance Policy

• 3 •

Where it is proposed to gather information from a source or informant, consideration 
should be given to authorising a CHIS.

Using Facebook/similar social networking sites 

Overt warnings

Consideration will always be given to the appropriateness of gathering information in 
a covert way. Wherever possible the target of any investigation will be made aware of 
the issue and given the opportunity to amend their behaviour, unless in all the 
circumstances given the seriousness of an allegation, this is not appropriate.

The warning should make it clear that the target's activities will be monitored and 
investigated should the conduct continue.   The warning, the reason for it, and a screen 
shot of any web page should be saved on file.

Covert activity

There may be circumstances where it is decided that it is inappropriate to send an 
overt warning to an individual: For example:

 where the individual  has previous history of the behaviour complained of, 
 where it is intended to carry out more detailed investigations into social or 

business links that the individual has, because serious issues are involved
 where the activity is clearly carried out with a deliberate intention to defraud, or 
 Where the activity is on such a scale or linked with other illegal activity such 

that it is thought robust action is necessary.   
 Where vulnerable individuals are at serious risk of harm from the behaviour.

This may necessitate ongoing monitoring of social media, and/or also entering into a 
relationship with the target, and authorisation for this should be discussed and agreed 
with a service manager.  LCC officers should never use their own Facebook 
accounts to facilitate this activity.

RIPA authorisation

Where an overt warning has been provided, a further check should be made to assess 
whether the behaviour is continuing.  If this is the case, the investigating officer should 
take a screen shot and record this on file.  No further monitoring or activity should take 
place at this point.  The investigating officer should provide full details to their manager, 
to discuss applying for an authorisation for CHIS or Directed Surveillance.

Summary

Authorisation is not normally necessary for open source investigations unless there is 
some ongoing monitoring of an individual.

Where a relationship which is more than merely transitory is entered into with an 
individual, authorisation under CHIS should be sought.

Page 179



Covert Social Media and Surveillance Policy

• 4 •

Where ongoing monitoring of social media is involved but no relationship is established 
and there is no possibility of obtaining private information, authorisation may not be 
necessary.

In cases of doubt further advice should be sought.

All decisions about the case should be properly logged and recorded.

Authorisations should clearly describe the conduct which is authorised.

Reviews and cancellations of authorisations should be carried out and clearly 
documented.

All applications should be made on the corporate forms, and sent to the central record 
of authorisations for retention for 5 years.

In addition any retention and disclosure of information needs to be carried out in 
accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 - in particular:-: 

 Only collect and process appropriate personal data to the extent that it is 
required to fulfil operational needs or to comply with legal requirements.

 Ensure the quality of the data we use. 
 Apply retention schedules to determine the length of time we hold information 

and dispose of information securely when it has reached its disposal date.
 Ensure that individuals, about whom we hold data, can fully exercise their rights 

under the DPA 1998. 
 Take appropriate security measures to safeguard personal information. 
 Ensure that we do not transfer personal data outside the country without 

suitable safeguards. 

If in doubt seek advice from the Information Governance Team.

Be aware that content you share and actions you take may show up on pages other 
than your own and could be reshared by other users. 

For more detailed guidance on directed surveillance and CHIS see the corporate 
policies for RIPA and non RIPA authorisations, and the Home Office Guidance.

Page 180



Covert Social Media and Surveillance Policy

• 5 •

Version Control  

Named Owner: Laura Sales: Director – Legal and Democratic Services
 

Version Number: 1.00
Date Of Creation: November 2016
Last Review:
Next Scheduled 
Review:

November 2017

Overview of 
Amendments to 
this Version:

Page 181



Page 182



Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) Policy 2017

Appendix 'D'

Page 183



 

CCTV Policy 2017 

Closed Circuit Television Policy 2017 

The following policy relates to surveillance camera equipment and the gathering, 
storage, use and disposal of CCTV system recorded data. The council uses 
surveillance camera devices for various purposes.  These include CCTV systems 
within council premises and car parks as well as on the highway, body worn video 
camera equipment, automatic number plate recognition and unmanned aerial 
vehicles (drones).  In this policy, such devices shall be referred to as 'CCTV 
systems'.  

This policy covers all CCTV systems used by Lancashire County Council but does 
not cover Lancashire schools.  

Lancashire County Council is referred to as 'the council' throughout this policy. 

This document should be read in conjunction with following codes of practice for 
surveillance cameras: 

• Surveillance Camera Code of Practice and 12 Guiding Principles 2013
• In the picture: A data protection code of practice for surveillance cameras and

personal information 2015 – Information Commissioners Office (ICO)
• National Surveillance Camera Strategy for England and Wales 2016

Details of all CCTV systems, policy documents, legislation, procedures and 
templates can be found on the council's CCTV intranet page.  

Definitions 

Camera Any device used as part of a CCTV system. This includes 
unmanned aerial vehicles (drones).  

CCTV Closed Circuit television. 
CCTV System Any system or device used by the council to monitor an area 

including CCTV, cameras used on the highway, body worn 
camera devices or unmanned aerial vehicles. 

Image Any image captured by a CCTV system. 
Overwrite Period The period between an image being recorded and it being 

automatically deleted from the CCTV system. 
Responsible Officer The officer with responsibility for a specific CCTV system in 

operation, usually a premises manager. 
CCTV Manager The officer with responsibility for CCTV policy and its use 

throughout the council. 

1. Introduction

1.1. Use of cameras and other electronic recording devices in public places has 
escalated over recent years and the advance of technology has meant that 
the variety of devices available has expanded.  Whilst these perform a 

• 2 •

Page 184

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice
https://ico.org.uk/media/1542/cctv-code-of-practice.pdf
https://ico.org.uk/media/1542/cctv-code-of-practice.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/561520/NSCS_Strategy_FINAL.pdf
http://lccintranet2/corporate/web/?siteid=7387&pageid=48310


 

CCTV Policy 2017 

useful role in preventing and detecting crime and keeping people and 
property safe, such use has led to much greater intrusion into the private 
lives of individuals going about their lawful business.  This policy aims to 
set out standards relating to the use of such equipment that maximises 
effectiveness whilst at the same time minimises interference with the 
privacy of individuals whose images are captured by the devices. 

1.2. Officers undertaking covert surveillance with or without recording devices 
must comply with the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and the Codes of Practice issued pursuant to that 
legislation. This policy does not apply to such activities. 

2. Objectives

2.1. It is important that everyone and especially those charged with operating 
the CCTV systems on behalf of the council understand exactly why each of 
the CCTV systems and each camera used as part of a CCTV system has 
been introduced and what the cameras should and should not be used for. 

2.2. Each CCTV system will have its own site or task specific objectives. These 
could include some or all of the following: 

• Protecting areas and premises used by council officers and the public.
• Deterring and detecting crime and anti-social behaviour.
• Assisting in the identification of and apprehension of offenders.
• Deterring violent or aggressive behaviour towards council officers.
• On-site traffic and car park management.
• Monitoring traffic movement.
• Identifying those who have contravened parking regulations.
• Assisting in traffic regulation enforcement.
• Protecting council property and assets.
• Assisting in grievances, formal complaints and investigations.
• Surveying buildings for the purpose of maintenance and repair.

2.3. CCTV systems must not be used to monitor the activities of council officers 
or members of the public in the ordinary course of their lawful business.  
Council officers are not permitted to use CCTV systems to observe the 
working practices and time keeping of other council officers. 

3. Legislation

3.1. CCTV systems are subject to legislation under: 

• The Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA).
• The Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA).
• The Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA).
• The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).

• 3 •

Page 185

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/29/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/36/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/23/contents?schedule-4-paragraph-8-5


 

CCTV Policy 2017 

• The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012
• The Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996

4. Responsibilities

The CCTV Manager 

4.1. The CCTV Manager is responsible for ensuring all those involved in the 
use of CCTV systems can view current legislation and guidance relating to 
CCTV systems. This is done through the council's CCTV intranet page. 

4.2. The CCTV Manager will review the CCTV policy annually. 

4.3. The CCTV Manager will take the CCTV policy to the Corporate Information 
Governance Group (CIGG) to receive policy approval. 

4.4. The CCTV Manager will submit an annual report to the Senior Information 
Risk Owner (SIRO) detailing how effective, in the previous year, CCTV 
systems have proved to be, in meeting the objectives listed in Section 2. 

The Responsible Officer 

4.5. The day-to-day operational responsibility for each CCTV system rests with 
the designated responsible officer at each council building. The responsible 
officer will likely be the premises manager. A list of all CCTV systems and 
their responsible officer will be recorded and available in a CCTV register 
on the council's CCTV intranet page. This will also be the case when a third 
party under the direction or control of the council operates the CCTV 
system.  

4.6. The responsible officer shall ensure that council officers involved in the 
operation of the CCTV system are trained in the use of the equipment and 
are aware of this policy and the procedures in place to manage CCTV 
systems at the council.  

4.7. The responsible officer should act as the first point of contact for all 
enquiries relevant to the CCTV system in their premises and should ensure 
that only authorised council officers are able to operate or view images.  

4.8. The responsible officer shall investigate any reported misuse of a CCTV 
system and report it immediately to the CCTV Manager. 

4.9. The responsible officer shall report any faults in the CCTV system 
equipment to the CCTV Manager and take steps to remedy the fault at the 
earliest opportunity.  

5. CCTV Operations

• 4 •

Page 186

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/9/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/25/contents
http://lccintranet2/corporate/web/?siteid=7387&pageid=48310


 

CCTV Policy 2017 

5.1. Council officers operating CCTV systems are responsible for operating the 
equipment in accordance with all requirements set out in current legislation, 
this policy document, relevant guidelines, codes of practice and local 
operational manuals. 

5.2. Council officers operating CCTV systems must be familiar with the 
requirements of information governance and should complete the councils 
IG eLearning course.  Heads of Service shall take steps to ensure that any 
council officers that they manage who are involved in operating CCTV 
systems have completed this training. 

5.3. Council officers involved in the use of CCTV systems shall report any 
misuse to the responsible officer and shall cooperate with any investigation 
by the responsible officer. The responsible officer shall investigate any 
reported misuse of a CCTV system and report it immediately to the CCTV 
Manager. 

5.4. Council officers operating CCTV systems shall be responsible for bringing 
any equipment faults to the responsible officer’s attention immediately. 

5.5. A number of council owned CCTV systems are located in premises 
occupied by third parties. In these cases, it is important that there is a clear 
understanding between the council and the organisations concerned as to 
who is responsible for each aspect of the CCTV system. This should be 
recorded and signed by both parties. A copy of this document should be 
given to the council’s CCTV Manager. 

6. Purchasing and Deployment of CCTV Cameras

6.1. It is advisable when purchasing CCTV systems to purchase from suppliers 
that are registered with the Surveillance Camera Commissioner's Third 
Party Certification Scheme. Certification enables organisations to 
demonstrate that they use their CCTV systems transparently, effectively 
and proportionately. 

6.2. It is advisable that third party data processing contracts are in place with 
third party CCTV system suppliers to ensure that the suppliers protect the 
data to the council information governance standards.  

6.3. Those responsible for introducing and operating CCTV systems must 
ensure that the use of cameras is proportionate to the intended objective 
and that individuals' right to privacy is respected at all times. A clear 
operational objective for the CCTV system must be identified and an 
assessment on the impact on privacy must be carried out and reviewed 
each year. A template 'privacy impact assessment' can be found on the 
council's CCTV intranet page. A 'privacy impact assessment' must be 
completed for each CCTV system in use within the council. 

• 5 •

Page 187

http://lccintranet2/corporate/web/viewdoc.asp?id=129971


 

CCTV Policy 2017 

6.4. Care must be taken to ensure that cameras do not capture images or 
sounds of private spaces such as dwelling houses. 

6.5. Covert cameras are not permitted to be deployed under the auspices of this 
policy.  Such activities fall under the ambit of RIPA or shadow RIPA and 
authorisation must be obtained for such activity under the relevant RIPA 
procedures. CCTV systems should normally be clearly visible with 
unobstructed signage situated close to the device informing those in the 
vicinity that they are being monitored and/or recorded. The content of such 
a sign or notice may differ according to the nature of the device being used, 
the area it is being used in and the purpose of its use. 

6.6. All costs associated with CCTV systems are covered under the council's 
scheme of delegation. 

6.7. The council does not deploy ‘dummy’ cameras as part of its CCTV systems 
as these can provide a false sense of security. 

6.8. The council does not generally operate cameras that can monitor 
conversation or be used to talk to individuals as this is seen as an 
unnecessary invasion of privacy. This does not apply to body worn camera 
devices. 

6.9. Upon the introduction of a static CCTV system, a copy of the location of the 
camera should be sent to the CCTV Manager for inclusion in the council’s 
central register of CCTV systems. Use of CCTV systems should be 
considered as part of planning a building construction or refurbishment. 
Authorisation for the deployment of CCTV systems should be shared at an 
early stage in building design with the Head of Service for whom the 
building is being constructed. This is so that this policy can be applied and 
either an alternative method adopted or an acceptable CCTV system built 
into the designs.  Information about the CCTV system should be retained 
as part of the file relating to the completed building. 

7. Monitoring

7.1. CCTV system monitors sited in reception areas are intended to provide live 
monitoring of reception areas by security or other council officers. The 
ability to view the CCTV system monitors must be restricted to those 
authorised to see them.  Monitors must not be visible to all entering the 
premises. 

7.2. Monitoring of CCTV systems where required will only be carried out by 
persons authorised by the relevant responsible officer. 

7.3. CCTV will only be subject to the Data Protection Act 1998 if the footage 
captured “relates to living individuals who can be identified” from it. 

• 6 •

Page 188



 

CCTV Policy 2017 

7.4. If the Data Protection Act 1998 does apply, the CCTV operator will be 
required to do a number of things: 

• Register as a data controller with the Information Commissioner’s
Office. The council has already done this, it's registration number is
Z542705X

• Put up signs notifying people that CCTV is in use and who operates
it.

• Give any individual who requests it, copies of footage of themselves.
(Subject Access Request).

• Ensure that any footage stored is kept for no longer than necessary
for the purposes for which it is obtained.

• Ensure that footage is not disclosed to anyone else without the
consent of the individuals shown in it unless it is for a reason
permitted under the Data Protection Act 1998, such as the
prevention or detection of crime.

7.5. In addition to the obligations under the Data Protection Act 1998, the 
Human Rights Act requires any public authority using CCTV cameras to do 
so compatibly with Article 8 of the convention.  

7.6. The council occasionally uses body worn cameras in order to protect 
council officers dealing with members of public in situations where they are 
particularly vulnerable to abuse or where there is an ongoing need to 
capture images or speech for evidential purposes. An example of this is 
Civil Enforcement Officers. Officers using body worn cameras must only 
activate them when there is a need to do, for example, if they consider that 
a member of the public is becoming abusive or may challenge evidence 
that could be recorded using the camera. Continuous recording is not 
permitted, as it is excessive and would cause a great deal of collateral 
intrusion.  

7.7. Details of CCTV systems data collection should be included in the council's 
privacy notice: http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/about/privacy-statement.aspx 

8. Viewing Images

8.1. The casual viewing or trawling of images or sounds captured by a CCTV 
system is strictly forbidden. Viewings must only be carried out for a specific, 
legitimate purpose. 

8.2. Under Section 7 of the Data Protection Act 1998, data subjects are entitled 
to know what personal data the council holds about them and they are 
entitled to receive a copy of their personal data. All such requests, known 
as Subject Access Requests, must be made through the council's 
Information Governance Team at dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk.  

• 7 •

Page 189

http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/about/privacy-statement.aspx
mailto:dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk


 

CCTV Policy 2017 

8.3. Under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, people can request access to 
any recorded information (with certain exemptions) that the council holds. 
However, if individuals are capable of being identified from the CCTV 
system footage then it is personal information about the individual 
concerned and is unlikely to be disclosed in response to a freedom of 
information request as the requester could potentially use the information 
for any purpose and the individual concerned is unlikely to expect this. This 
may be unfair processing in contravention of the Data Protection Act 1998. 
All Freedom of Information requests relating to CCTV system images 
should be directed to the council's Information Governance Team at 
freedomofinformation@lancashire.gov.uk.  

8.4. On occasion council services may wish to access images and 
recordings captured on CCTV systems as part of a legitimate 
investigation into criminal activities, civil claims, potential disciplinary 
matters, complaints, grievances or health and safety issues. Viewings and 
images will only be released to a properly authorised investigating council 
officer upon the submission of a formal request to the CCTV Manager via 
cctv@lancashire.gov.uk. The viewing request should include: 

• The name of the authorising officer (CCTV Manager, responsible
officer, Head of Service)

• The name and contact details of the person viewing images
• The reason for viewing the images

Viewing Requests should be made in a timely manner as the retention 
period for most CCTV systems in operation in the council is 6 weeks. 
Council officers who are subject to council disciplinary, complaints or 
grievance procedures have the right to see and retain footage of 
themselves and can request copies as a Subject Access request via the 
Information Governance Team at dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk.  

8.5. On occasion, police officers may request to view images taken from 
CCTV systems during the investigation of criminal activity. This is 
acceptable under the Data Protection Act 1998 (Section 29). However, the 
police officer making the request must complete a DP1 form (available on 
the council's CCTV intranet page) confirming that the information is needed 
for the detection or prevention of a specific crime. The form must be signed 
by a senior police officer and returned to the council's Information 
Governance Team at dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk.  Police officers 
are not permitted to trawl the council’s CCTV systems on the off chance of 
detecting a crime. 

8.6. Occasionally insurance companies or solicitors will request footage, 
generally over disputes regarding damage to cars in car parks. As the 
footage may identify the individual drivers or vehicles involved it is classed 
as personal information. Copies of personal information can be requested 
making a Subject Access Request under the Data Protection Act, 1998 to 
dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk. Ordinarily you are only entitled to 
information about yourself; however, in certain circumstances it is 

• 8 •

Page 190

mailto:freedomofinformation@lancashire.gov.uk
mailto:cctv@lancashire.gov.uk
mailto:dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk
http://lccintranet2/corporate/web/viewdoc.asp?id=129970
mailto:dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk
mailto:dataprotection@lancashire.gov.uk


 

CCTV Policy 2017 

reasonable to include information about third parties, and this is permitted 
by the Data Protection Act. Such circumstances may include where a third 
party has caused damage to you or your vehicle. All such requests must be 
made through the council's Information Governance Team, who log all 
such requests and who may need to redact third party information. 

8.7. A record of all disclosures is kept in the council case management system 
Norwel. 

9. Signage

9.1. All areas where CCTV is in use should be clearly signed. Such signs warn 
people that they are about to enter an area covered by a CCTV system or 
to remind them that they are still in an area covered by a CCTV system.  
Signs will also act as an additional deterrent. CCTV system signs should 
not be displayed in areas that do not have CCTV cameras. 

9.2. Signs should alert road users to CCTV systems operated in connection 
with highways management or enforcement activity.  Such signage will also 
be subject to additional requirements under the relevant road traffic or 
highways legislation. It is important that these signs do not affect the safety 
of road users. 

9.3. Where body worn cameras are in use, officers using them must display a 
clear notice that this is the case on their person, usually as part of their 
uniform. This notice should not be covered up or obscured but should be 
visible at all times during an interaction that is being recorded or may be 
recorded. Where there is doubt that a member of the public is aware of this, 
officers should make it clear that they are wearing body worn cameras.   

9.4. Signs should be an appropriate size depending on context. For example, 
whether they are viewed by pedestrians or car drivers. 

9.5. Signs should be more prominent and frequent in areas where people are 
less likely to expect that they will be monitored by a CCTV system. This is 
particularly important when an ANPR system is being used that covers a 
large area. 

9.6. Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (drones) act as a safe and effective method of 
surveying buildings but whilst photographing parts of buildings from above, 
they also capture the images of passing individuals. Some thought should 
be given to whether signs should be erected on a temporary or permanent 
basis where drones are in use for buildings maintenance. This may be 
advisable in relation to buildings where such activity is carried out regularly 
or routinely.  In other circumstances, the potential use of temporary 
removable signs should be considered if practical. 

9.7. Signs should: 

• 9 •

Page 191



 

CCTV Policy 2017 

• Be clearly visible and readable;
• Contain details of the organisation operating the system;
• The purpose for using the surveillance system;
• Contact details such as a simple website address, telephone

number or email address.

10. Storage and Retention

10.1. CCTV system images are stored for 6 weeks and then overwritten.  
10.2. Recorded material will not be sold or used for commercial purposes. 
10.3. CCTV systems will be kept secure from unauthorised access. 
10.4. All images remain the property and copyright of the council.  
10.5. All images are stored on secure servers. 
10.6. Each new recording disc will have a unique reference number.  
10.7. All images are time and date stamped. 
10.8. Image resolution should be relevant to purpose. 
10.9. All media will be confidentially disposed of when no longer needed. 
10.10. No CCTV system images will be stored in the Cloud  
10.11. No CCTV system images will ever be published to the Internet 

11. Inspections

11.1. CCTV systems at the council can be inspected at any time by: 
• The CCTV Manager.
• The relevant responsible officer.
• The relevant Head of Service.
• Any of the CCTV specialist advisors named in Section 14 of this

policy.
• A member of the Information Commissioners Office.
• A member of the Surveillance Camera Commissioners Office.
• The council's senior management team or elected members.

11.2. Spot checks and audits of the council's CCTV systems will take place 
sporadically. 

12. Health and Safety

12.1. The relevant responsible officer or relevant Head of Service should 
ensure that officers are made aware of and comply with all council policies 
on health and safety, in particular, working with electrical equipment, VDU 
regulations and working with heights.  

13. Complaints

13.1. Any complaints regarding CCTV systems at the council should be 
directed to the relevant responsible officer, the relevant Head of Service or 

• 10 •

Page 192



 

CCTV Policy 2017 

CCTV Manager or the Corporate Complaints Team. All complaints will be 
dealt with in accordance with the council's complaints procedure.  

14. Contacts

14.1. CCTV Manager: Paul Bond 
14.2. CCTV IG Advisor: Debbie Bonser 
14.3. CCTV Legal Advisor: Laura Sales 
14.4. CCTV Facilities Advisor: Andrew Clarkson 
14.5. CCTV Audit Advisor: Judith Taylor 

Version Control 

Named Owner: Ian Young - Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) 
Paul Bond – CCTV Manager 

Version Number: 1.00 
Date Of Creation: November 2016 
Last Review: November 2016 
Next Scheduled 
Review: 

November 2017 

Overview of 
Amendments to 
this Version: 

• 11 •

Page 193



Page 194



Report to the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services
Report submitted by: Head of Service, Policy, Information and Commissioning 
(Age Well)
Date: 23 January 2017

Part I 

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Adult Social Care Fee Uplifts - 2017/18

Contact for further information:
John Sleightholme, (01772) 530136, Financial Intelligence Manager (Age Well), 
John.sleightholme@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Lancashire County Council supports approximately 25,000 adults in community and 
residential based settings at an annual cost of approximately £300 million per year.  

This report sets out the County Council's proposed fee uplifts for adult social care 
providers for 2017/18.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No. 25 
have been complied with.

Recommendation

The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services is recommended to 
approve, with effect from 3 April 2017, the following uplifts:

i. Residential & nursing care (all client groups) – 4.17%
ii. Homecare (all client groups) – 4.37%, increasing the approved rates for 

homecare services to £13.30 per hour / £7.14 per half hour.
iii. Supported Living – 4.52% for waking hours and 5.39% for sleep in hours, 

increasing the approved rates for supported living to £13.98 and £9.03 
respectively.   

iv. Extra Care – 4.37%
v. Direct Payments (including direct payments for respite) – No increase.  If a 

person is no longer able to meet their needs within the current budget they 
should contact the County Council for a review of their needs.

vi. Carers – 4.17%
vii. Shared Lives – 4.17%
viii. Day Care – 4.17%
ix. Rolling Respite & Provider Brokerage – uplift in line with the relevant service 

(e.g. homecare / residential care).

Page 195

Agenda Item 5a

mailto:John.sleightholme@lancashire.gov.uk


Background and Advice

Funding Context

Lancashire County Council supports approximately 25,000 adults in community and 
residential based settings at an annual cost of approximately £300 million per year.

The County Council is faced with a significant shortfall in overall funding during the 
next three years as demand and cost pressures are forecast to continue to increase.

Some of the demand pressures will be addressed through the Adults Transformation 
work and may be alleviated to an extent by changing models of service delivery. 

This report focuses uplifting rates for existing service models at a level which is 
affordable for the County Council, but are also reflects inflationary costs incurred by 
providers in delivering their services.  

The most significant increase in costs for 2017/18 is the increase in the National 
Living Wage, which will increase from £7.20 to £7.50 per hour (4.17%).  

Uplifts

The living wage will increase by 4.17% but it should be noted that does not represent 
the total cost increase of delivering services.  Whilst labour constitutes a significant 
component there are other aspects of providers cost base that change by higher or 
lower amounts.  

The uplifts proposed are a weighted average that reflect the living wage, changes to 
auto-enrolment contributions as well as other inflationary factors. 

Residential Care

The County Council's fee uplift for 2016/17 was intended to address the discrepancy 
between a "fair price for care" and actual fees paid. The uplift for 2017/18 represents 
an inflationary uplift.  

It is recommended that all residential providers receive an uplift of 4.17% across all 
client groups.

Homecare

It is recommended that homecare providers receive an uplift of 4.37%, increasing the 
approved rates for homecare services to £13.30 per hour / £7.14 per half hour 
pending the new framework commencing.

Supported Living

It is recommended that the supported living providers receive an uplift of 4.52% for 
waking hours and 5.39% for sleep in hours, increasing the approved rates for 
supported living to £13.98 and £9.03 respectively. 

Page 196



Extra Care

Extra Care is a compromise between sheltered housing and a care home. It allows 
residents to continue living independently, typically in a self-contained flat or 
bungalow, while benefiting from personal care support being readily available on 
site.  It is recommended that extra care providers receive a 4.37% uplift.

Direct Payments

The purpose of a direct payment is to provide service users with freedom to design 
their own care packages.  As a result, the County Council does not have full visibility 
of how individuals' use their personal budget.  

Some people may design creative means of support that are insulated from inflation 
and would not require an inflationary increase, for example an individual may design 
a support plan that has historically allowed them to pay a carer more than the 
national living wage. As a result they would not be affected by the April 2017 
National Living Wage increase.  Other individuals may use elements of their budget 
to buy care directly from an agency and hence be subject to an inflationary increase 
during the year.

Two options are possible:
1) Direct payments do not receive an inflationary uplift.  Instead, any person who 

is no longer able to meet their care and support needs within existing budget 
should contact the County Council for a review of their needs.

2) Direct payments are subject to uplift in line with the domiciliary care rate for 
their client group.

It is recommended to adopt option 1.

Carers

Carers are paid a one off fixed amount of £202 or £303 as a direct payment 
depending on the level of support they require.  The scheme was introduced in April 
2015 and is intended to help people in their role as a carer and may use this money 
as they see fit.

The proposal is to uplift fees by 4.17% to £210 and £315 respectively in line with the 
National Living Wage increase.

Shared Lives

Shared Lives is a care service for adults with learning or physical disabilities and for 
older people.  Care is family based and provided by individuals and families. Shared 
Lives carers are local people recruited and trained to make sure they have the right 
qualities to provide care and support.

The proposal is to uplift fees in line with the National Living Wage increase of 4.17%.

Page 197



Day Care

Day time support is delivered in a variety of locations from traditional accommodation 
based services through to outdoor activity centres. It is recommended that day care 
providers receive a 4.17% uplift. 

Rolling Respite & Provider Brokerage

The proposal is to uplift fees associated with rolling respite and provider brokerage in 
line with the relevant service, e.g. rolling respite for homecare care be uplifted to 
reflect the homecare care rates stated above.

Direct Payments for Respite

Respite arranged via payment cards is similar to a direct payment in that the amount 
may be used in a manner determined by the card holder. This could be to pay for 
traditional services such as homecare or more creative methods that are insulated 
from the effects of pay awards. As a result it is proposed that payment card based 
respite is not uplifted but if a person is unable to meet their needs within their 
allocated respite budget they should contact the County Council for a review of their 
needs.

Timing of Uplifts

It is recommended that uplifts take effect from 3 April 2017 so as to coincide with the 
start of the financial year and billing cycles.

Homecare & Supported Living

Homecare and Supported Living are both subject to framework tenders whereby 
providers will submit a rate rather than the County Council setting a rate. As a result 
there will be a period of time between contract commencement and completion of 
mobilisation, (i.e. where service users are transitioned to a successful provider). In 
order to simplify payment processing it is recommended that the County Council 
adopts the following approach to rates during the transition period:

1) All providers receive an inflationary uplift from April 2017 in accordance with 
the previous section (referred hereafter to as the prevailing rate).

2) Upon framework commencement, all unsuccessful providers continue to be 
paid at the prevailing rate until their business has been transferred to a 
provider who has successfully gained a place on the new framework.

3) Upon framework commencement all successful providers receive a further 
uplift to their tendered rate. 

Consultations

The County Council consulted the Health and Social Care Partnership Finance Sub 
Group on 29 November 2016 regarding the proposed 2017/18 uplift. The partnership 
was appreciative of, and welcomed, the level of uplift.  

Page 198



Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Financial

If the recommendations set out in this report are approved, the fee uplifts will cost 
c£14m.

As part of the County Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) price 
inflation is estimated and included using the Laing and Buisson model. These 
proposals do not result in an additional pressure on the Adults Services budget as 
price increases (including the living wage) have already been built into the MTFS. 

It should be noted that whilst the price increases proposed do not pose additional 
pressures on the County Council's MTFS, the County Council is currently operating 
on financial reserves. There remains insufficient funding to support these increases 
once the County Council's reserves have been exhausted, currently forecast to be in 
2018/19.

Legal

The Care Act 2014 requires that "local authorities should not undertake any actions 
which may threaten the sustainability of the market as a whole – for example, setting 
standard fee levels below an amount which is sustainable for providers in the long-
term".  

The proposed fee uplifts have been set at a level that reflects current market 
conditions. They incorporate changes to the living wage as detailed in the 
Chancellor's autumn statement in addition to other factors such as changes in 
employer's contribution rates for pension auto-enrolment and general inflation.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 199



Page 200



Report to the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools
Report submitted by: Head of Service Financial Management (Development 
and Schools)
Date: 18 January 2017

Part I 

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Schools Budget 2017/18
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer) 
(Appendix B will be tabled at the Decision Making Session)

Contact for further information:
Kevin Smith, (01772) 535130, Financial Management: Development & Schools,
kevin.smith@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

In accordance with the Government's school funding framework, the Authority is 
required to submit a final Schools Block budget proforma for 2017/18 to the 
Education Funding Agency (EFA) by 20 January 2017.  This report seeks the 
authorisation of the Cabinet Member to submit the Schools Block budget proforma 
and requests approval of the Lancashire Early Years and High Needs Block 
Budgets for 2017/18.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order No 25 
have been complied with.

Recommendation

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools is recommended to: 

(i) note the report, including the 2017/18 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocation, 
    the final budget proposals for each funding block and any comments made by the 
    Lancashire Schools Forum;
(ii) authorise the Head of Service Financial Management Development and Schools 
     to submit the final Schools Block budget proforma for 2017/18 to the EFA by 20 
     January 2017, on the basis set out in this report; 
(iii) approve the 2017/18 budgets for the Early Years and High Needs Blocks;
(iv) agree that the Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve underwrite the uncertainties 
      around the Early Years and High Needs Blocks.

This decision should be implemented immediately for the purposes of Standing 
Order 34(3) as any delay could adversely affect the execution of the County 
Council's responsibilities.  The reason for this is to ensure that the necessary 
proforma can be submitted to the Education Funding Agency ahead of the required 
deadline.

Page 201

Agenda Item 5b

mailto:kevin.smith@lancashire.gov.uk


Background and Advice 

In the current school funding framework, the Government allocates amounts to each 
local authority through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), based on three notional 
blocks: 

 Schools Block; 
 High Needs Block;
 Early Years Block.

This report sets out the budget proposals for 2017/18 across the three funding 
blocks and for the centrally retained budget.

Originally, the Government had intended to introduce revised national funding 
arrangements for all three funding blocks from April 2017.  However, 
announcements made by the Secretary of State for Education in summer 2016 
delayed the introduction of a Schools National Funding Formula (SNFF) and High 
Needs Funding Reform until April 2018.

Schools Block and High Needs Block

Subsequently, the Education Funding Agency issued Schools Revenue Funding 
2017/18 Operational Guidance.  This Guidance indicated that in order to provide 
stability for school funding, whilst consultations take place, the funding arrangements 
would be "broadly similar" to 2016/17.  Some key differences are set out below:

 the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) blocks have been rebaselined to reflect 
current spending patterns
Local Authorities (LAs) receive school funding in 3 blocks, namely the Schools 
Block, High Needs Block and Early Years Block.  In the summer term 2016, 
the EFA carried out an exercise to determine how funding was spent in each 
LA, rather than how it was allocated from the EFA to LAs. The results of this 
baselining exercise will be used to shape allocations in 2017/18, although 
Lancashire had largely distributed funding locally in accordance with the 
national allocations;

 funding for Education Services Grant( ESG) retained duties (£15 per pupil) 
will be transferred into the schools block for 2017 to 2018
ESG funding was split into two parts.  The retained duties element was 
provided directly to LAs for duties that they must undertake across maintained 
schools and academies, whilst the general duties element went to the LA for 
certain responsibilities at maintained schools, and academies received this 
funding directly for duties relating to their pupils. For 2017/18, the retained 
duties element will transfer into DSG and the general duties funding will 
cease, subject to some transitional protection for LAs; 

 that local authorities will be able to retain DSG funding from maintained 
schools, including special schools and pupil referral units (PRUs), for statutory 
duties previously covered by the ESG

Page 202



The LA will be able to use DSG funding for central services previously funded 
within the retained duties rate (for all schools), with the agreement of Schools 
Forum, and to fund services previously funded within the general duties rate 
(for maintained schools only) from maintained school budgets shares with the 
agreement of maintained school members of the Schools Forum.  School 
improvement is not included in these arrangements and for 2017/18 the LA 
will receive a separate grant covering statutory intervention functions and 
services such as monitoring and commissioning of school improvement 
support. This will allow local authorities to play a transitional role, as the 
school-led system of school improvement continues to mature and capacity in 
the system increases. Schools Forum can agree to de-delegate further 
funding for additional school improvement provision, as a de-delegated 
services

 the removal of the post 16 funding factor, but with protection through the 
minimum funding guarantee (MFG)
In 2016/17, secondary schools with post 16 pupils received some funding 
from the Schools Block of DSG through a post 16 factor.  DfE view this as a 
legacy factor, as post 16 funding now comes directly from the EFA.  The 
regulations for 2017/18 will remove the post 16 factor from the allowable 
formula factors, but the government intend to minimise the impact on 
individual schools by allowing Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) protection, 
at -1.5%, to apply to any funding losses.  As this is a change to the Schools 
Block funding formula a consultation was held with schools earlier in the 
autumn term.  No comments were received to this proposed formula 
amendment, probably because this is a change enforced by the EFA.

 using a national weighting for secondary low attainment figures;
The 2016 KS2 assessments are the first which assess the new, more 
challenging national curriculum. At a national level, a higher number of the 
year 7 cohort in financial year 2017/18 will be identified as having low prior 
attainment. The DfE will use a national weighting to ensure that this cohort 
does not have disproportionate influence within the overall funding total.

 using new bandings for the index of deprivation affecting children (IDACI) 
The Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) dataset is used as a 
basis for deprivation funding in the Schools Block formula.  It is updated every 
five years by the Department for Communities and Local Government. The 
most recent update to the dataset, which took effect in 2016/17, caused 
significant funding turbulence from the previous 2010 dataset. DfE recognise 
that the 2015 data update created unexpected and unhelpful turbulence in 
budgets, towards the latter stages of the local formula-setting process. For 
2017/18, the DfE will update the IDACI banding methodology so that the 
IDACI bands return to a roughly similar size (in terms of the proportion of 
pupils in each band) as in 2015/16.  The Schools Forum have asked that the 
implementation of this factor seeks to minimise 2017/18 turbulence for 
Lancashire schools and academies;

 transfer of funding from post-16 budget to High Needs Block 

Page 203



Nationally, EFA have transferred £125m from the DfE's post-16 budget to the 
high needs block baseline. This is a transfer of place funding for high needs 
places in further education (FE) colleges for place previously met by the EFA. 
From 2017/18, all of these places will be funded from the initial high needs 
block allocations to LAs. Deductions will then be made to fund institutions 
directly, as a result of information collected from LAs, before the high needs 
block allocations are finalised in March 2017. The EFA will continue to pay 
this place funding directly to institutions. There is a risk to the Lancashire High 
Needs Block that the number of places to be commissioned at relevant 
institutions from August/September 2017 may be higher than the number of 
places used to calculate the DSG transfer.  Any increase would need to be 
met from overall DSG resources.

Early Years Block

Although national funding reforms relating to the Schools Block and High Needs 
Block have been delayed until 2018/19, the Government proceeded with changes to 
the Early Years Block.

Following consultations earlier in the autumn term 2016, the DfE issued Operational 
Guidance for the introduction of an Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF) 
on 1 December 2016.

Key requirements for the EYNFF include:

 New national formula for allocating early years funding to local authorities;
 Introduction of a Universal Base Rate, by 2019/20;
 A supplementary grant for maintained nursery schools to keep their funding 

stable, until at least 2019/20;
 Restrictions on the available supplements and on the level of funding to be 

distributed;
 A new Disability Access Fund (DAF) for 3 &4 year olds and confirmation of 

SEN inclusion funds; 
 Continuation of the current Early Years Pupil Premium (EYPP) arrangements.

Lancashire's EYNFF grant allocation for 2017/18 will be based on the newly 
introduced minimum funding rate of £4.30 per hour to local authorities.  This 
generates an indicative 2017/18 allocation for Lancashire that is below our 2016/17 
allocation.  The EYNFF allocation will however be accompanied by the 
supplementary grant for maintained nursery schools, although this grant is available 
for the lifetime of the current parliament.

Following discussions with the Schools Forum's Early Years Block Working Group, 
proposals have been developed for 2017/18.  

The date of these Government announcements, combined with the need to consult 
all early years providers in advance of the Schools Forum/Cabinet Member budget 
setting meetings in January 2017 provides a very challenging timescale in which to 
consider and model the proposals, especially given the Christmas and New Year 
holidays.  This fact is acknowledged in the EFA's Operational Guidance.   

Page 204



The proposals look to meet the EFA Guidance, commence the transition to the 
universal base rate, utilise appropriately the supplementary maintained nursery 
school funding, yet are manageable and achievable in the timescale and provide a 
degree of stability for all providers.  

In accordance with the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations, a 
consultation with all Lancashire early years providers was launched on 13 December 
2016.

Responses to the consultation will be reported to the Schools Forum on 12 January 
2017 and will inform recommendations to the Cabinet Member.

Final DSG Allocation 2017/18

Final Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocations for 2017/18, together with pupil 
data, were issued by the Education Funding Agency (EFA) on 20 December 2016.  
Lancashire's 2017/18 allocation is £881.82m.  Appendix 'A' sets out a detailed 
analysis of the Lancashire allocation.

Decisions and recommendations arising from the Schools Forum's consideration of 
the 2017/18 Schools Budget proposals will be tabled, as Appendix 'B', at the 
Decision Making Session for the Cabinet Member's consideration. 

Consultations

The views of schools and other educational partners and of the Schools Forum were 
sought in the Autumn Term, about the changes to the Schools Block formula for 
2017/18.  

A consultation is taking place with early years providers, including schools, about the 
implementation of the EYNFF.  Consultation responses will be presented to the 
Schools Forum on 12 January 2017 to help shape the Forum's recommendations to 
the Cabinet Member. 

A dialogue with the Schools Forum has also continued around the finalisation of the 
Schools Block and High Needs Block budgets and again any comments from the 
Forum arising from the budget considerations on 12 January 2017 will be reported to 
the Decision Making Session.

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

 Financial 

Lancashire faces a £3.49m shortfall in the core Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 
funding for 2017/18.  It is proposed that this shortfall is bridged by the use of 
reserves, but clearly this position is not sustainable in the longer term.  

Page 205



Any Schools Budget funding gap will be contained within the ring-fenced DSG 
resources.

 Legal

This report reflects arrangements required by EFA Schools Revenue Funding 
2017/18 Operational Guidance.  This guidance makes reference to changes that will 
be made to the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations.  However, at 
the time of writing, no 2016 update of the Regulations has been issued.

A small risk exists that the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 
2016 will introduce additional requirements or will vary from the published guidance, 
which could impact on the budget process.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

EFA Schools Revenue 
Funding 2017/18 Operational 
Guidance

Updated November 
2016

https://www.gov.uk/govern
ment/uploads/system/uploa
ds/attachment_data/file/573
282/Schools_revenue_fund
ing_guide_Nov_2016_FINA
L.pdf

Early Years National Funding 
Formula (EYNFF) Lancashire 
implementation 2017/18 
consultation 

December 2016 Paul Bonser, Financial 
Management Development 
and Schools, 01772 
531815

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 206

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573282/Schools_revenue_funding_guide_Nov_2016_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573282/Schools_revenue_funding_guide_Nov_2016_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573282/Schools_revenue_funding_guide_Nov_2016_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573282/Schools_revenue_funding_guide_Nov_2016_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573282/Schools_revenue_funding_guide_Nov_2016_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573282/Schools_revenue_funding_guide_Nov_2016_FINAL.pdf


Appendix 'A'

This Appendix to the Schools Budget 2017/18 report has been prepared following 
receipt of pupil data and Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocation information from 
the Education Funding Agency and presents the estimated budget.  A final Appendix 
will be submitted to the Cabinet Member on the 18 January 2017, following 
consultation with the Lancashire Schools Forum.

Summary 

On 15 December 2016, the Education Funding Agency (EFA) provided the final 
schools block data based on the October 2016 School Census to be used in the 
calculation of the Schools Budget for 2017/18. 

On 20 December 2016, the EFA issued the 2017/18 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 
allocation for Lancashire.

The EFA sub-divide the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) into three un-ring fenced 
blocks, namely: Early Years Block, Schools Block and High Needs Block.  

The DSG for 2017/18 comprises:

 Schools block – This is based on the school block unit of funding (SBUF). The 
EFA have confirmed that no LA will see a reduction in the level of per pupil 
funding in 2017/18 compared to 2016/17.  The 2017/18 SBUF for Lancashire 
will be the same value as in 2015/16, adjusted for a transfer some of the 
Education Services Grant (ESG) retained duties funding into the DSG. 
Lancashire's 2017/18 SBUF is therefore £4,504.45 per pupil.

 Early years block covering:
o Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF)for 3 and 4 Years Olds, 

comprising
 Early years universal entitlement for 3 and 4 year olds
 Early years additional entitlement for 3 and 4 year old children of 

eligible working parents
o Early years pupil premium- initial allocation
o Early years supplementary funding for maintained nursery school - 

illustrative allocation
o Early years Disability Access Fund - illustrative allocation:
o Early years entitlement funding for disadvantaged 2 year olds

 The HNB allocation for 2017/18 includes a cash flat allocation from 2016/17, 
supplemented by uplifts based on population and an adjustment to take account 
of some national transfers into the High Needs Block for post 16 funding.

Page 207



Forecast DSG for 2017/18

The forecast funding to be used in the calculation of the Schools Budget for 2017/18 
is set out in the table below and amounts to a total of £881.82m.

Forecast DSG Income £m's
Schools Block 714.67
Early Years Block 68.33
High Needs Block 98.82

Total forecast DSG Income 881.82

DSG allocations
Further details about the composition of the 2017/18 DSG are provided below:

Schools Block £714.67m

The 2017/18 Schools Block allocation of £714.67m is calculated using the authority’s 
Schools Block Unit of Funding (SBUF) £4,504.45. 

Notes:
The number of Lancashire pupils at primary and secondary schools and academies at 
the October 2016 school census were 158,659.  This figure is multiplied by the SBUF 
to calculate the Schools Block allocation.

The 2017/18 Schools Block allocation incorporates £2.59m of Education Services 
Grant (ESG) retained duties funding that has been transferred into the DSG schools 
block for 2017/18..

Early Years Block £68.33m

The Early Years block covering: 
 Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF)for 3 and 4 Years Olds, 

comprising
o Early years universal entitlement for 3 and 4 year olds
o Early years additional entitlement for 3 and 4 year old children of eligible 

working parents
 Early years pupil premium- initial allocation
 Early years supplementary funding for maintained nursery school - illustrative 

allocation
 Early years Disability Access Fund - illustrative allocation:
 Early years entitlement funding for disadvantaged 2 year olds

Page 208



Illustrative 2017/18 allocations are provided in the table below:

Funding Stream Illustrative 2017/18 
Allocation (£m)

Universal 3-4 year old entitlement funding 44.49
Additional hours for 3-4 year olds (in place from 
September 2017)

7.89

2-year-olds 10.82
Maintained nursery school supplementary funding 4.09
Early Years Pupil Premium (EYPP) 0.79
Disability Access Fund 0.25

Notes:
Lancashire's has received the EYNFF at the national minimum funding rate of £4.30 
per hour to local authorities.  This allocation covers the Universal 3-4 year old 
entitlement funding and the additional hours for 3-4 year olds, which is being 
introduced from September 2017.  This totals £52.38m for 2017/18.

The hourly rate for 2 year old funding has increased to £5.20 per hour in 2017/18, from 
£4.85 in 2016/17.  This a national uplift of 7.14%. 

In addition, Lancashire has received maintained nursery school (MNS) supplementary 
funding.  This supplementary funding is ring-fenced for maintained nursery schools 
only and is guaranteed for the lifetime of the current parliament (2019/20?) to keep 
maintained nursery schools funding stable during the implementation of the national 
funding formula.  A risk remains about the viability of maintained nursery schools if this 
supplementary grant is removed.

Early Years Pupil Premium continues in 2017/18, at the same hourly rate as 2016/17 
i.e. £0.53 per hour.

The Disability Access Fund is a new allocation for 2017/18, and is based on an 
estimated number of Lancashire 3 and 4 year olds claiming Disability Living Allowance 
(DLA), at a rate of £615.

High Needs Block (HNB) £98.81

2017/18 HNB allocations are shown below

2017/18 Allocation (£million)
high needs block before deductions 106.72
deductions to high needs block for direct funding 
of places by EFA

7.91

high needs block after deductions 98.81

Notes

The HNB allocation for 2017/18 includes:

Page 209



A cash flat allocation from 2016/17, supplemented by the following:
 £2.18m uplift based on population data
 £2.99 uplift to reflect a transfer of funding from the EFA post-16 budget to 

the High Needs Block
This provides a total HNB before deductions of £106.72m.

Deductions will be made from the HNB allocation totalling £7.91m, which relates to 
allocations paid to institutions funded directly by the EFA.  This includes the High 
Needs commissioned places at FE/6th form colleges, mainstream academies, AP 
academies, special school academies and charitable and commercial providers 
(CCPs).

This provides a 2017/18 HNB allocation of £98.81m

In Year Adjustments

The DSG allocation notified is prior to in year adjustments for:
 Academies recoupment from the schools block;
 Deductions for high needs places in academies and non-maintained special 

schools;
 Post 16 places;
 Deduction for national copyright licences;
 Updates to the funding for three and four year olds;
 Updates to the funding two year olds; 
 Updates to the early years supplementary funding for maintained nursery 

school
 Updates to the early years pupil premium; 
 Updates to early years Disability Access Fund:

Page 210



Schools Budget 2017/18
The latest Individual School Budgets (ISB) across all phases has been constructed 
using the final datasets made available from the EFA and our latest local Early Years 
and High Needs data. 

This Schools Block budget estimate has been calculated using the School Forum 
principle of stability in cash values attributed to each formula factor (excluding AWPU).  

Budget Summary – Before headroom / shortfall in funding
The table below summarises the budgets for primary, secondary, academy and early 
years together with a global high needs budget using the principles agreed by the 
Forum. 

DSG allocated to 

£m's
Schools Block Mainstream Non High Needs Block 710.59
Early Years Block 3/4 year olds 57.08
Early Years Block 2 year olds 11.04
High Needs Block (HNB)

HNB Mainstream 6.17
HNB Special Schools 52.22
HNB PRU Places 10.00
HNB PRU WPN 0.05
HNB FE 5.54

Centrally retained budget 37.16

Total of Allocations 889.85

Central Services and Commissioned Services Budget 2017/18
As a result of the national funding reforms introduced in April 2013, the central items 
budget is now split into two distinct areas, these are now known as the centrally 
retained budgets:

 Central Services - Where funding stays with the LA.  These areas are generally 
LA statutory functions and budgets are capped at the previous year's level;

 Commissioned Services - Where funding is held centrally but then allocated to 
schools/service providers in connection with the education provision for 
individual pupils/young people.

As in previous years a detailed review of the centrally retained budgets has been 
undertaken and information is provided in the table below together with explanatory 
notes for the variance between 2016/17 and 2017/18.

Page 211



Central Expenditure Limit Approved 
Budget 
2016/17

High 
Needs 
Budget

Early 
Years 

Budget

Central 
Provision Total Variance Notes

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Central Services

ESG transferred to DSG - - - 2.591 2.591 2.591 1
Carbon Trading 0.047 0.047 - - 0.047 -
Prudential  Borrowing 0.240 - - 0.240 0.240 -
Copyright Licence 0.850 - - 0.850 0.850 -
Growth Fund 1.462 - - 1.462 1.462 -
Early Intervention 1.400 - 1.185 1.185 (0.215) 2
Careers Education Information Advice & Guidance 0.150 - - 0.150 0.150 -
PFI - Special, Sixth Form, Nursery 1.086 1.118 0.057 0.673 1.848 0.762 3
EU Energy Performance Directive 0.022 0.011 - - 0.011 (0.011) 4
School Forum 0.188 - - 0.188 0.188 -

Sub total Central Services 5.445 1.176 0.057 7.339 8.572 0.536
Commissioned Services

High Needs Block Top up 2.249 - - - - (2.249) 5
Children Missing Education & Vulnerable Children 0.161 - - - - (0.161) 6
Admissions 0.937 - - 0.937 0.937 -
ICT 0.029 - - - - (0.029) 6
Commissioned Alternative Provision services 1.459 2.000 - - 2.000 0.541 6
Hospital Provision 0.610 0.610 - - 0.610 -
Out County - Specialist provision places 15.097 15.097 - - 15.097 -
Out County - Mainstream / academies places 1.374 1.374 - - 1.374 -
SEND Specialised Equipment 0.447 0.447 - - 0.447 -
SEND Inclusion Projects 0.897 0.897 - - 0.897 -
SEND Teachers & Support 4.264 4.114 0.150 - 4.264 -
Multi Agency Development 0.075 0.075 - - 0.075 -
Support for Vulnerable Pupils - SI 0.977 0.977 - - 0.977 -
Overheads 1.912 1.912 - - 1.912 -

Sub Total Commissioned Services 30.488 27.503 0.150 0.937 28.590 (1.898)
Total Central Expenditure Limit 35.933 28.679 0.207 8.276 37.162 1.229

2017/18

Notes

Note 1: ESG transferred to DSG increased by £2.591m
The 2017/18 Schools Block allocation incorporates £2.59m of Education Services 
Grant (ESG) retained duties funding that  has been transferred into the DSG schools 
block for 2017/18.  Schools Forum approval will be sought to transfer this amount into 
the central items budget to enable the LA to continue statutory functions. 

Note 2: Early Intervention Funding reduced by £0.215m
The EFA have issued revised guidance for 2017/18 specifically in relation to 'historic 
commitments' funding.  This guidance sets criteria that must be met to allow any 
funding classed as a 'combined budget' to be met from DSG in 2017/18.  Schools 
Forum have support the continued use of these funding streams, but with a reduction 
of £0.215m against 2016/17 provision.

Note 3: PFI - Special, Sixth Form, Nursery increased by £0.762m
A number of years ago, following advice from the EFA, the Schools Forum agreed that 
contractual PFI contributions for special schools could be met from the central items 
budget, as the special school formula was not sufficiently flexible or responsive to 
allow delegation.

Page 212



National funding changes for sixth forms and nursery schools now require additional 
PFI provisions to be made in the central items budget, as set out below:

 EFA changes for sixth form funding to be introduced from April 2017 mean that 
there will no longer be any Schools Block funding allocation to Lancashire's 
sixth form PFI school and all funding will in future be allocated directly by the 
EFA.  There will therefore be no mechanism for the school to receive its formula 
funding PFI allocation to meet the contractual requirement.  Discussions with 
the EFA have identified that they propose that authorities retain the PFI funding 
for such schools within the central expenditure budget, the EFA are proposing 
to include this within the proposed consultations on the national funding 
formula;

 The Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF) proposals to be introduced 
in April 2017 will restrict the supplements that can be paid to early years settings 
and will not include a PFI factor.  Provision has therefore been made in the 
central expenditure budget for 2017/18, to allow the contractual obligations for 
the county's PFI nursery school to continue to be met.

Note 4: EU Energy Performance Directive reduced by £0.011m
A provision of £0.11m for the EU Energy Performance Directive in the early years 
block was a historic anomaly that was not utilised in 2016/17.  It has therefore been 
removed from the 2017/18 budget.

Note 5 High Needs Block Top up reduced by £2.249m
In previous years, this provision has been used to fund additional high needs top up 
allocations that are identified through the course of the year at the termly SEN counts 
and redeterminations in the Schools and High Needs Blocks.  However, termly 
increases in early years settings were treated in a different way, as the 'growth' is built 
into the early years formula model.  Having reviewed the different methodologies, it is 
considered more appropriate to build the high needs growth into the funding model, 
as this provides consistency with the early years arrangements and more accurately 
reflects that the expenditure is a budgeted school allocation.  £2.249m has therefore 
been removed from the 2017/18 central items provisions, but a similar amount will be 
included with the formula models during the budget finalisation process.

Note 6: Commissioned Alternative Provision Services increased by £0.351m net
There has been considerable pressure on the Alternative Provision budget and the 
service has been using funding from various budget headings to support and manage 
this demand.  However, the 2016/17 outturn is still forecasting an overspend position.   
For 2017/18, a single provision has been made, totalling £2m, for AP commissioned 
services.  This budget merges separate budget lines to provide a single core provision 
and increases the proposed resources by just over £0.350m. 

Funding Shortfall
The table below has taken the figures discussed above for the forecast DSG income, 
the estimate of ISBs and the centrally retained budget to calculate the initial shortfall 
in funding to the Forum. Also included is additional funding made available by the 
Forum from reserves. This is detailed in the table below:

Page 213



Calculation of funding shortfall

Total forecast DSG income funding available 2017/18 881.82 
Release of reserves in connection with 17/18 de-delegation proposals 4.54 
Total Income2017/18 886.36
Total DSG Allocations 2017/18 889.85 

Surplus/(Shortfall) in funding (3.49)

Release from reserves to bridge funding gap 3.49 

Notes

£4.54m has been released from reserves in connection with the 2017/18 de-delegation 
proposals relating to 'deficits at closing schools', which was approved by the Schools 
Forum in October 2016, following a consultation with schools.

A further release from reserves of £3.49m has been made to bridge the core 2017/18 
funding gap.

Pupil Premium Grant
The Pupil Premium Grant (PPG) is allocated in addition to the funding which is 
allocated through the Schools Budget.  It is to support disadvantaged pupils, who 
continue to underachieve compared with their peers. 

The DfE have indicated that the funding rates for 2017/18 will be held at the 2016/17 
level.  Details are provided below

Pupils Per pupil 
rate

Disadvantaged pupils: primary £1,320
Disadvantaged pupils: secondary £935
Pupil premium plus: looked-after children (LAC) and those adopted 
from care or who leave care under a special guardianship order or child 
arrangements order (formally known as a residence order)

£1,900

Service children £300

Recommendations from the Schools Forum will be tabled at the Cabinet Member 
Decision Making Session on 18 January 2017, as Appendix 'B'.

Page 214



Report to the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport
Report submitted by: Director of Corporate Commissioning
Date: 23 January 2017
 

Part I

Electoral Divisions affected:
Preston Central South; and 
Preston City

The University of Central Lancashire Masterplan and Associated Highway 
Modifications
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Ian Maudsley, (01772) 532337, Principal Engineer 
ian.maudsley@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The University of Central Lancashire (UCLan) has asked the County Council to 
assist in developing the detail design and implementation of the highway proposals 
required to support their Masterplan development. These proposals include a 
highway design for the area based on shared space principles similar to 
Fishergate’s Central Gateway project. The works will be fully funded by UCLan by 
way of a Section 278 Agreement under the Highways Act 1980.

This is deemed to be a Key Decision and the provisions of Standing Order 26 have 
been complied with.

Recommendation

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport is asked to:

(i) Approve the addition of this scheme, as shown on the plan attached at 
Appendix 'A', and the estimated £157,000 design fee to the highways 
block of the County Council's 2016/17 capital programme;

(ii) Note that further approval will be sought for the construction and site 
supervision costs to be added to the Capital Programme when the full 
extent and scope of the works has been identified and that all costs will 
be fully funded by UCLan under a Section 278 Agreement. 

Background and Advice 

UCLan’s Masterplan sets out a vision for a £200m investment over the next decade 
to create a campus that is more unified and welcoming but importantly integrates 
with the rest of the City. A key aspect of the Masterplan is the transformation of the 

Page 215

Agenda Item 5c

mailto:ian.maudsley@lancashire.gov.uk


- 2 -

Adelphi quarter roundabout by incorporating a new large public space based on the 
principles of Fishergate’s shared space project. This proposal will also include 
sections of Friargate, Corporation Street, Fylde Road and Adelphi Street.

In March 2015, the Cabinet Member authorised officers to assist UCLan by advising 
and guiding on potential changes to the existing highway layout. Through 
engagement with all user groups and consultation with key stakeholders, the design 
has now been developed to the conceptual stage. UCLan has now asked the County 
Council to help with the development of the detailed proposals and contract 
procurement in preparation for a construction phase to start in autumn 2017.

The estimated construction cost will be prepared as part of the design process and 
Cabinet Member approval will be sought to add this to the Highways block of the 
County Council's Capital Programme when a robust figure has been agreed with 
UCLan.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

The advance payment of design fees and the Section 278 Agreement provides a 
robust mechanism for the County Council to ensure there is no financial risk from 
development of the design, construction and supervision of these works.

Financial

The estimated cost of the County Council's design element is £157,000. It is 
proposed that this is added to the Highways Block of the 2016/17 capital 
programme. The County Council may have to commission advance design work by 
utility companies to enable the diversion or protection of their services during the 
construction phase, but this will only become clear as design proposals are 
developed. Further payment for this work will be received from UCLan before the 
County Council authorises third party design. The anticipated completion of the 
design phase is summer 2017.

The construction phase is currently scheduled for autumn 2017. All work will be fully 
funded by UCLan, ultimately through a Section 278 Agreement recognising that 
advance payments have already been received. Following completion of the design 
phase, the construction phase costs will be obtained from the works tendering 
process. 

In accordance with the terms of the Section 278 Agreement, UCLan will meet the 
costs associated with the work. These costs are monitored and additional payments 
requested to safeguard the County Council from financial risk. 

Page 216



- 3 -

Legal

Design work is taking place ahead of planning permission being achieved. Once 
UCLan has planning permission and the S278 is agreed, it is anticipated that all 
works will take place within the boundary of the adopted highway under the S278 
Agreement. There are areas where highway extent needs clarification and the 
evidence evaluated. Change to highway alignment will need to wait until all 
necessary land has been confirmed as part of highway width and recorded as such. 
Ahead of such works the design work can be done and be referred to in the S278 
agreement as proposed.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 217



Page 218



+ 27.150

Motor Sports
Workshop

001
Air Vehicle Lab

(Aerospace)
009

102_2

Entrance Lobby

108

Circulation
214

034_1

Composites Clean
Room

034_2

Composite
Workshop

Aerospace
Computer

SuiteENTRANCE

PLANT ACCESS

ENTRANCE

Proposed EIC building ,
received from Reiach & Hall

 architects 02/04/2016.
File: SitePlanPROPOSED.dwg

exact posiition and orientation provisional only, TBC.

P
ro

po
se

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
s

pr
op

os
ed

 u
nd

er
 E

IC
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

sc
he

m
e.

P
ro

po
se

d 
st

ep
s/

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
as

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 fi

le
S

ite
P

la
nP

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
.d

w
g 

fo
r E

IC
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

sc
he

m
e

(R
ei

ac
h 

&
 H

al
l 0

2/
04

/2
01

6)

BUS SHELTER

BUS SHELTER

6

G
ST

63
3

32

6

Bus stop

Bus stop

Sittin
g steps

Bus
 st

op

Bu
s s

to
p 

(e
xis

t.)

BUS SHELTER

Bus stop

BUS SHELTER

R
et

ai
ni

ng
 w

al
l o

r s
te

ps

one-way as existing

on
e-

wa
y a

s e
xis

tin
g

on
e-

wa
y a

s e
xis

tin
g

on
e-

wa
y a

s e
xis

tin
g

one-way as existing

one-way as existing

To
ile

ts 
(e

xis
tin

g)

Ø
 1

9Ø
 1

6

on
e-

wa
y

on
e-

wa
y

on
e-

wa
y

UNIO
N STREET

56

2

B
eattie H

ouse

143

48

84

3

Te
le

ph
on

e

Po
st

s

1

113

79

145

PH

51

43

141

85

16
6

2

H
O

P
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

6

6

18

10
 to

 1
6

S
TO

C
K

S
 S

TR
E

E
T

28

S
TR

E
E

T

SM

K
IR

K
H

A
M

 S
TR

E
E

T

LADYWELL STREET

9

7a

36

20
13

6

FL
EE

T 
ST

R
EE

T

16

11

44

31

51

a

9

21

Co
rn

 E
xc

ha
ng

e

RING WAY

85

99

75

De
po

t
1 

to
 1

6

135

Bo
at

m
an

s

7to11

119

Po
st

s

15

122

16
1

38

AD
EL

PH
I

8

PH

a

2

131 to 137

Telephone House

A
D

E
LP

H
I P

LA
C

E

29

91

34

137

126

118

15

Ro
pe

r

Su
b 

St
a

GREA
T 

SH
AW

 S
TR

EE
T

114

FYLDE ROAD

S
TR

E
E

T

15

ED
W

AR
D

 S
TR

E
E

T

4

PW

45

28

8

C
en

tra
l

3

4736

31

41

54

135

MAUDLAND BANK

1 
to

 8

At
kin

so
n 

Ho
us

e

M
ed

ica
l

103 to 111

Ca
r P

ar
k

Sc
ho

ol
 H

ou
se

C
R

C
hew

's Yard

18

15

2

15
9

21

St
. W

ilfr
id

s

Co
un

ty

Po
st

s

Ha
lls

Li
br

ar
y

Th
e 

M
ed

ia
 F

ac
to

ry CORPORATION STREET

R
is

in
g 

B
ol

la
rd

H
ILL STR

EET

De
po

t

32

58

62

B
A

C
K

PH

S
E

E
D

 S
TR

E
E

T

4 to 7

42

87

53

MARKET

C
LAYTO

N
'S G

ATE

124

120

52

PATTEN STREET

SIMPSON STREET

78a

CORPORATION STREET

40

LEIGHTON STREET

Su
b 

St
a

8a

21

ST
 W

IL
FR

ID
 S

TR
EE

T

16

CHAPEL WALKS

12
5

33

A
S

H
M

O
O

R
 S

TR
E

E
T

La
dy

we
ll

El Sub Sta

Co
ur

t

123

125

134

Ca
r P

ar
k

121

23

2a

15
8

Bu
ild

in
g

Ki
rk

ha
m

 B
ui

ld
in

g

12
 to

 1
6

Ho
te

l

53

ED
W

AR
D

 STR
EET

MOUNT PLEASANT

170

49

42

2

E
l S

ub S
ta

Pl
ay

ho
us

e

150

Sp
iri

tu
al

ist

Et
hi

ca
l

120

12

M
O

O
R LANE

126

123

95

67

Fo
re

st
er

s

43

MAUDLAND BANK

SM

B
H

A
IL

O
K

S
TR

E
E

T

1

71

W
or

ks

ADELPHI STREET

R
IN

G
 W

AY

CHARNLEY STREET

11

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h

15

11

8

37

16

13

PH

P
E

E
L 

S
TR

E
E

T

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

139

GREENBANKPLACE

Fo
un

dr
y 

C
ou

rt

PC
s

1t
o6

116

22

16
0

Union Court

3

21

37

1 
to

 2
7

2

County Library HQ 143 to 161

17

Th
e 

M
ill

130

54

115

115

1

PH

Po
st

5

78

FRIARGATE

157

K
E

N
D

A
L 

S
TR

E
E

T

3

Sloping masonry

57

St
or

e

33

Ca
r P

ar
k

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

4

15

De
po

t

1 
to

 4
2

13
6 

to
 1

40

83

77

De
po

t

B
ow

ran H
ouse

Br
un

el
 C

ou
rt

to

59

ES
S

117

Fl
ee

t H
ou

se

Ca
r P

ar
k

26

3

D
er

w
en

t H
al

l

Al
le

n 
Bu

ild
in

g

1 to 5

53

Ca
r P

ar
k

4

BOWRAN STREET

138

Ha
ll

136

1

16
2 t

o 1
65

7

35

131 to 133

6

5

3

41

76

Ca
r P

ar
k

H
E

A
TL

E
Y

 S
TR

E
E

T

Ha
ll

42

CORPORATION STREET

G
ar

ag
e

112

40

Ce
nt

ra
l L

an
ca

sh
ire

ST
 P

E
TE

R
'S

Cl
ub

H
A

R
R

IN
G

TO
N

50

POLLARD STREET

21

59

S
M

63 to 67

44

35

12

35

12
 to

 1
4

14

Ch
ur

ch

13

7

(P
H)

St
 G

eo
rg

e's

5

18

5

118

1 
to

 2

Ho
te

l

Ci
ty

-K
ey

PH

Po
st

s

1

31

RADNOR STREET

50
49

23

79

Un
ive

rs
ity

Da
rw

in
 B

ui
ld

in
g

55

Li
br

ar
y

10

91a

56

5

68

8

53

172

16

Jo
b 

Ce
nt

re

Th
e

81

PH

PH

El

SM

De
po

t

M
AU

D
LA

N
D

 R
O

AD

M
IL

L 
H

IL
L

17

44

23

FOX STREET

19

1

7

14

15

4

19

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

1

58

27

PH

De
po

t

De
po

t

Sa
lva

tio
n 

Ar
m

y 
Ci

ta
de

l

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

40to41

100 to 104

ED & W
ard Bdy

13

Ce
nt

ra
l L

an
ca

sh
ire

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f

ES
S

RODNEY STREET

Ha
no

ve
r

Pl
ay

 A
re

a

112a

88 to
 96

ST
 P

E
TE

R
'S

 S
TR

E
E

T

86

De
po

t

PH

C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 S

TR
E

E
T

SEED STREET

4

1 
to

 2
0

11

PH

11

3

113

STREET W
EST

82

De
po

t

83

El

Ex
ch

an
ge

1a

Ch
ur

ch

8

1

20

30

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f

1

16

COLD BATH STREET

20

22

24

G
EO

RG
E'

S 
RO

AD

LUNE STREET

1a

9

16

12

V
IC

TO
R

IA
 S

TR
E

E
T

ADELPHI STREET

Ca
r P

ar
k

1-
16

53

Ce
nt

re

3

Li
ve

se
y 

Ho
us

e

Plough's Yard 39

81

D
ou

gl
as

 H
al

l

Br
oo

k 
Bu

ild
in

g

Pe
nd

le
 H

al
l

to

Bu
ild

in
g

52 ADELPHI STREET

W
AL

KE
R 

ST
RE

ET

FRIARGATE

M
A

R
S

H
 L

A
N

E

M
A

R
S

H
 L

A
N

E

CORPORATION STREET

V
IC

TO
R

IA
 S

TR
E

E
T

M
O

S
S

 S
TR

E
E

T

COLD BATH STREET

BROOK STREET

FYLDE ROAD

FOSTER SQUARE

Sh
el

te
r

UC
La

n 
Sp

or
ts

 A
re

na
 S

hu
ttl

e 

Bu
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ick

-u
p 

/ d
ro

p-
of

f

Ad
el

ph
i B

ui
ld

in
g

St
 P

et
er

s 
Ar

ts 
Ce

nt
re

Ha
rri

s 
Bu

ild
in

g

Fo
st

er
 B

ui
ld

in
g

Vi
ct

or
ia

 B
ui

ld
in

g

R
oad closed

as existing

M
AR

SH
 LA

N
E

BUILDING UNDER CONSTRUCTION (FOOTPRINT INDICATIVE ONLY)

Th
e 

W
ar

eh
ou

se
S

tu
de

nt
 A

cc
om

od
at

io
n

Fa
rro

w 
& 

Ba
ll

AC
E 

De
co

r

pa
pe

r a
nd

 p
ain

t

Th
e 

G
ui

ld
PH

Th
e 

G
ui

ld
PH

UCLan Fylde
Road Car Park

53
 D

eg
re

e
ve

nu
e

St
ud

en
t U

ni
on

Fylde
Electronic
Labs Ltd

The Ferret
(PH + venue)

Sh
op

s

Sh
op

s

C&T Building
(UCLan)

C&T Building
(UCLan)

D
is

us
ed

 R
ai

lw
ay

D
is

us
ed

 R
ai

lw
ay

Ships & Giggle
PH

AD
ELPH

I SQ
U

AR
E

Si
r T

om
 F

in
ne

y 
Sp

or
ts

 C
en

tre

Ch
an

dl
er

 B
ui

ld
in

g

Kirkham

Hanover

Media Factory

C&T

PE
ND

LE
 S

Q
UA

RE

Re
ta

il P
ar

k

B
eattie H

ouse

143

3

Te
le

ph
on

e

1

113

145

PH

16
6

2

6

6

18

10
 to

 1
6

28

9

8

7a

4

36

20
13

6

16

11

44

31

51

a

9

21

Co
rn

 E
xc

ha
ng

e

De
po

t
1 

to
 1

6

14

Bo
at

m
an

s

7to11

15

16
1

76

21

8

PH

131 to 137

Telephone House

29

34

15

15

4

PW

16

45

28

8

C
en

tra
l

3

4736

31

41

54

135

1 
to

 8

Ha
lls

At
kin

so
n 

Ho
us

e

M
ed

ica
l

103 to 111

12

110

18

15

2

15
9

Li
br

ar
y

St
. W

ilfr
id

s

Co
un

ty

De
po

t

32

PH

4 to 7

120 U
nit Vacant

40

13

7

8a

21

16

12
5

33

12

La
dy

we
ll

El Sub Sta

Co
ur

t

123

138 U
nit Vacant

121-122 U
nit V

acant

23

2a

15
8

12
 to

 1
6

Ho
te

l

La
nc

as
hi

re

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f C

en
tra

l

2

Pl
ay

ho
us

e

150

124 U
nit Vacant

Fo
re

st
er

s

1

W
or

ks

1

5

11

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h

15

11

8

37

16

13

PH

139

Fo
un

dr
y 

C
ou

rt

PC
s

1t
o6

22

16
0

Union Court

3

21

1 
to

 2
7

County Library HQ

143 to 161

17

Th
e 

M
ill

115 U
nit Vacant

115

PH

5

157

57

St
or

e

33

8

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

4

15

De
po

t

1 
to

 4
2

13
6 

to
 1

40

De
po

t

B
ow

ran H
ouse

Br
un

el
 C

ou
rt

Bl
ds

ES
S

Fl
ee

t H
ou

se

101

26

3

D
er

w
en

t H
al

l

1 to 5

139 U
nit Vacant

1

16
2 t

o 1
65

7

5

3

Ha
ll

42

G
ar

ag
e

Ce
nt

ra
l L

an
ca

sh
ireCl
ub

50

21

59

44

35

14

12

35

12
 to

 1
4

14

Ch
ur

ch

13

7

(P
H)

St
 G

eo
rg

e's

5

18

5

118

1 
to

 2

Ho
te

l

Ci
ty

-K
ey

PH

Al
be

rt

1

31

23

Un
ive

rs
ity

Li
br

ar
y

10

56

5

53

Jo
b 

Ce
nt

re

Th
e

PH

De
po

t

17

44

23

3

19

1

7

14

15

4

19

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

1

58

27

De
po

t

De
po

t

11

Sa
lva

tio
n 

Ar
m

y 
Ci

ta
de

l

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

40to41

100 to 104

13

Ce
nt

ra
l L

an
ca

sh
ire

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f

ES
S

10
88 to

 96De
po

t

PH

1 
to

 2
0

11

PH

11

De
po

t

Ex
ch

an
ge

1a

8

1

20

30

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f

16

20

22

24

1a

9

16

12

103 to 113

1-
16

53

Ce
nt

re

3

Li
ve

se
y 

Ho
us

e

D
ou

gl
as

 H
al

l

Pe
nd

le
 H

al
l

Pr
es

to
n 

Ci
ty

 C
am

pu
s

Bu
ild

in
g

52

63 U
nit Vacant

61

47 U
nit Vacant

140 N
ew

s Express

69 U
nit Vacant

35-36

The old

Black 
Bull

37 H
alew

ood & Sons

Booksellers

38,39,40,41

&42
British

Heart

Foundation

43 Audio T

44 D
og & Partridge

45 Becks E
-cigs &gadgets

46 Zagros

48 Best O
ne

49-50

Scene51-52 Serve

our C
om

m
unity

53a Tattoo

S
tudio E

ighty O
ne

54 B
eautiful

P
lanet

55 Vapourz

56 & 57 H
ouse

of H
air &

 B
eauty

58,59&60

Jaffa

62 Fanakis64 S
hazaad

65 M
ing's C

hinese

66 O
riginal

B
arber S

hop

67 Ink Plus

68 H
alew

ood

&
S

ons

Booksellers

77
Tesco78 C

urry P
ot

79
O

'N
eill's

80 & 81
Fusion
Rooms82-83 U

nit Vacant

83a The P
hone K

iosk

84,85&
86

M
argaret
M

ason

87
 4

m
at

D
ig

ita
l

88
 C

oc
o'

s 
S

ou
l F

oo
d

89
 B

el
l V

ie
w

 S
tu

de
nt

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

90 &
 91

X
 K

itchen

91
a

La
m

b 
&

P
ac

ke
t

95
 T

he
C

of
fe

e 
Sh

op

96
 S

pi
cy

 G
ril

l
97

 S
pi

ce
 o

f B
en

ga
l

98
 s

co
f S

an
dw

ic
h 

an
d 

sa
la

d 
ba

r
99

 T
ha

i R
oy

al

10
0 

P
iz

za
 C

ity

112
The S

un

113 - 114

The R
oper

H
all

116 The C
om

ic S
hop

117 Fone B
ox

118 M
ace Express

119 G
o S

haw
arm

a

123 S
am

's B
arbers

125 - 126

B
uffet @

 P
reston

127 D
r &

 H
erb

128 Tem
ptations

129 P
opadom

 P
alace

130 D
avid Jones

131 M
ail B

oxes

E
TC

.

132-133 Visage

134-135 U
nit Vacant

136-137

Broadhurst O
ptom

etrists

1 
K

ex
gi

ll 
S

tu
de

nt
 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

Essentials (UCLan shop)

85-83

Base System
s

81 - 7
7

sunseekers

75 Dexter's
73 Subway

69 Booze Brothers

42
 - 

43
 T

he
 A

de
lph

i

141 Taylor M
ade Beauty

2 - 4
Mr Booze6 

S
ec

re
t G

ar
de

n
Fl

or
is

ts

8 
B

oy
a 

Lt
d 

Le
tti

ng
s

14
 3

 M
on

ke
ys

 C
af

e

16
b 

D
el

ic
io

us
 C

af
e

18
 C

he
ck

er
 T

ax
i

20
 A

de
lp

hi
 E

xp
re

ss

22
 - 

24
 M

an
zi

l K
eb

ab

26
 C

al
l C

ab
in

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns

28
 - 

30
 T

he
 V

ar
ie

ty
(C

LO
S

E
D

)

17
2 

G
ra

nt
ha

m
s

170 St. John's C
arpets

120 New 
Element

12
 S

tu
de

nt
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n

101,102,103,104,105

,106,107,108,109,110,111

Student accommodation

(under construction)

126 Unit Vacant

63-66

Unit Vacant

67 Bricks 2 C
licks71 Northwest Hom

es

FY
LD

E 
RO

AD

GREENBANK STREET

G
at

ew
ay

 p
lin

th
 

fe
at

ur
e

Ne
w 

ing
re

ss
 la

ne
 a

nd
 o

pt
ion

al 

eg
re

ss
 w

ith
 n

ew
 cr

os
so

ve
r.

In
di

ca
tiv

e o
nly

, t
o 

be
 d

es
ign

ed
 a

s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
ca

r p
ar

k b
y o

th
er

s

C
ro

pp
ed

 s
et

t 

pa
vi

ng
 (f

lu
sh

)

Ex
ist

in
g 

ga
te

: 

re
m

ov
al

/
re

te
nt

io
n 

TB
C 

C
ro

pp
ed

 s
et

t 

pa
vi

ng
 (f

lu
sh

)

De
sig

n 
in 

th
is 

ar
ea

 

ind
ica

tiv
e 

on
ly,

 s
ub

je
ct 

to
 

de
sig

n 
by

 L
CC

Maudland Road kept 
open.
One-way or two-way TBC.

2m wide refuge islands at 
ped. crossings with kerb 
upstand, flush where 
tactile paving

Bridge is restricted to permit 
holders and to vehicle below 
7.5t

Marsh Lane kept open 
one-way onto Corporation 
Street on two lanes

Two lanes required for 
stacking up at junctions 
with Ringway (as existing)

Pinch point in footpath.
OPTION: acquiring 
land/right of way on 
adhacent property to 
widen footpath

Junction to cater for 2-way 
traffic with diverted bus 
route

CORPORATION STREET: 
Design yet to be refined

WORK IN PROGRESS
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Bus stops kept south of 
the junction with Brook 
Street. 
Reason: bus services 
into/out of Brook Street. 
TBC by LCC.

Kirkham Street kept two-way.
Reason: no other route available, 
assuming the brigde over the 
dissued railway is not 
availbale/load bearing.

Footpath to be widened 
as much as possible using 
UCLan land. TBC.

Existing strip of land 
with planted 
embankment in 
LCC ownership 
(TBC by LCC)

Buses into Fiargate only 
as existing

Junction subject to durther 
design.  Design to slow 
traffic down and make the 
junction safer.

Coach and/or accessible 
parking on Maudland Rd 
TBC

Gates (shown in 
existing location); 
requirements TBC

Assumed future gate and 
path into future park on 
former canal bed.

New  ingress 
(+optional egress) 
to car park

Design on 
car park site 
by others

existing cobbles in Victoria 
Street

Retention of bus stop TBC

Proposals for new Student 
Support Centre and Adelphi 
Square subject to design 
competition and further 
coordination

Adelphi Street - Work in Progress,
requirements  to be agreed

KEY

BOUNDARIES
Site Boundary of Highway 
Improvements

Site wide:
Ordnance Survey:
File: mz_dxf30690.dxf
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Lancashire
County Council Licence 100023320, 2011

Public Realm
Topographic and  below ground utilities survey:
File: S10628-U.dwg

EIC building site:
UCLan 2015.06.08 - Topographical survey.dwg
UCLan 2015.06.08 - Below ground utility survey.dwg

SURVEYS

Assumed boundary of existing
adopted highway, TBC

Assumed boundary of existing
adopted highway, TBC

As previously issued

Site Boundary of Highway
Improvements

Site wide:
Ordnance Survey: 
File: mz_dxf30690.dxf
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Lancashire 
County Council Licence 100023320, 2011

Public Realm
Topographic and  below ground utilities survey:
File: S10628-U.dwg

EIC building site:
UCLan 2015.06.08 - Topographical survey.dwg
UCLan 2015.06.08 - Below ground utility survey.dwg

SURVEYS

Assumed boundary of existing
adopted highway, TBC

Design Zones of
Highway Improvements

Scale Bar (m)

0 10 20 30 5040

F)
Vi

ct
or

ia
 S

tre
et

54
13

m
2

85

1 
to

 1
6

AD
EL

PH
I

12

THORPE CLOSE

Edale Court

1

1

31

41

135

En
gl

ish
 M

ar
ty

rs

1 
to

 8

1 
to

 1
6

Ribble Brook House

1

25

7

SIZER

11

PH

27

23

A
S

H
M

O
O

R
 S

TR
E

E
T

E
de

n 
H

al
l

19

(P
H)

1 to 63

75

71

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

139

Sc
ho

ol

2

De
po

t

STREET

Ar
ts

 C
en

tre

D
er

w
en

t H
al

l

23

ST THOMAS' PLACE

Da
y 

Ce
nt

re

9

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Pr
im

ar
y

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f C

en
tra

l L
an

ca
sh

ire

R
ib

bl
e 

H
al

l

88
E

l S
ub

 S
ta

Sheldon Court

V
IC

TO
R

IA
 S

TR
E

E
T

27

1 
to

 3
6

C
AS

TL
E 

ST
R

EE
T

ST
 T

H
O

M
AS

' S
TR

E
E

T

AS
H

M
O

O
R

 S
TR

EE
T

4

V
IC

TO
R

IA
 S

TR
E

E
T

ADELPHI STREET

D
ou

gl
as

 H
al

l

Br
oo

k 
Bu

ild
in

g

Vi
ct

or
ia

 B
ui

ld
in

g

85

1 
to

 1
6

12

Edale Court

1

1

31

41

135

En
gl

ish
 M

ar
ty

rs

1 
to

 8

1 
to

 1
6

Ribble Brook House

1

25

7

11

PH

27

23

La
nc

as
hi

re

Un
ive

rs
ity

 o
f C

en
tra

l

E
de

n 
H

al
l

19

(P
H)

1 to 63

75

71

139

Sc
ho

ol

2

De
po

t

D
er

w
en

t H
al

l

23

Da
y 

Ce
nt

re

9

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Pr
im

ar
y

R
ib

bl
e 

H
al

l

88

Sheldon Court

27

1 
to

 3
6

4

D
ou

gl
as

 H
al

l

Pr
es

to
n 

Ci
ty

 C
am

pu
s

Junction to cater for 2-way 
traffic with diverted bus 
route

Victoria Street:
Full width of existing carriageway 
to be made available for two-way 
bus traffic: 
outbuilds and on-street parking 
to be removed.
Local narrowing and street tree 
planting not shown yet / to be 
agreed.

Issue

© Planit Intelligent Environments LLP

01

A0 (extra long)

Size

Planit Intelligent Environments LLP

LONDON
18  Bowling Green Lane 
London 
EC1R 0BW 
T: 0207 253 5678

MANCHESTER 
2 Back Grafton St 
Altrincham 
WA14 1DY
T: 0161 928 9281

E: info@planit-ie.com W: planit-ie.com

Project UCLan - Highway Improvements 

Client University of Central Lancashire

WORK IN PROGRESS

Status

PL1569.103
Drg No.

1:500

Scale

09-08-2016
Created on

JD
Created by

LH
Approved by

Drg Title HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

and Streetscene

LAYOUT - reduced information

Design in accordance with PL1569.101, issue 07

DateIssue Status and Description Drawn Apprvd.

NOTE:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.

Always work to noted dimensions.
2. All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.
3. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
4. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site

before being laid out.
5. This drawing must be read with the relevant specification

clauses and detail drawings.
6. Order of construction and setting out to be agreed on site.

This drawing is copyright protected and may not be 
reproduced in whole or part without written authority from
the owner.

C

09/08/201601 WORK IN PROGRESS JD LH

Site wide:
Ordnance Survey:
File: mz_dxf30690.dxf
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Lancashire
County Council Licence 100023320, 2011

Public Realm
Topographic and  below ground utilities survey:
File: S10628-U.dwg

EIC building site:
UCLan 2015.06.08 - Topographical survey.dwg
UCLan 2015.06.08 - Below ground utility survey.dwg

Assumed boundary of existing 
adopted highway, TBC

BOUNDARIES

Assumed boundary of existing
adopted highway, TBC

Appendix A

P
age 219



P
age 220



Report to the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools and 
Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services
Report submitted by: Head of Service – Procurement
Date: 18 January and 23 January 2017 

Part I 

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence Procurement 
Exercises
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Rachel Tanner, (01772) 534904, Head of Service - Procurement 
rachel.tanner@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report sets out recommendations to approve the commencement of two 
procurement exercises for:

(i) The Supply of Maintained Equipment Services 
(ii) The Provision of Crisis Services in Central Lancashire 

The procurement exercises will be undertaken by the Procurement Service in line 
with EU Regulations, the County Council's Procurement Rules, and as outlined in 
Appendix 'A' to this report.

These are deemed to be Key Decisions and the provisions of Standing Order No.25 
have been complied with. 

Recommendation

1. The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools and the Cabinet 
Member for Adult and Community Services are asked to approve the 
commencement of the procurement exercise, as set in Appendix 'A' of the 
report, in respect of:

(i) The Supply of Maintained Equipment Services 

2. The Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services is asked to approve 
the commencement of the procurement exercise, as set out in Appendix 'A' of 
the report, in respect of:

(i) The Provision of Crisis Services in Central Lancashire 

Page 221

Agenda Item 5d

mailto:rachel.tanner@lancashire.gov.uk


Background and Advice 

In July 2016, Full Council approved an amendment to the approval process for 
procurement exercises which are deemed to be Key Decisions in order to enhance 
the transparency and efficiency of decision making.

In line with the approved procurement rules, approval is required from the 
appropriate Cabinet Member to commence the two procurement exercises detailed 
in Appendix 'A' of the report, which are deemed to be Key Decisions.

Appendix 'A' sets out the details of the individual procurement exercises, and the 
basis upon which the Procurement Service proposes to carry out the processes 
including:

 the description of the service being procured;

 the estimated annual contract value and the funding position;

 the contract duration and

 the proposed basis for the evaluation of the tender submissions received.

Where approval has been received from the Cabinet Member to undertake a tender 
process which is deemed to be a Key Decision, the subsequent award of the 
Contract on the satisfactory completion of the tender exercise shall not be deemed a 
Key Decision and can be approved by the relevant Head of Service or Director.

On the conclusion of the procurement exercises, the details of the contract awards 
will be reported to Cabinet on a monthly basis and recorded on the Scheme of 
Delegation recording system, in accordance with the council's procurement rules. 

Consultations

Relevant Heads of Service and key operational staff have been consulted in drawing 
up the proposals to undertake the procurement exercises included within this report.

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Legal/Procurement

Failure to take steps to procure new contracts and continuing with the current 
arrangements would contravene the council's procurement rules and the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015, exposing the county council to an increased risk of 
legal challenge. Furthermore, failure to award the contracts may result in the county 
council facing difficulty in delivering these services.

Page 222



List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

Procurement Rules July 2016 Rachel Tanner (01772 
534904) Head of 
Procurement

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 223



Page 224



Appendix A

Cabinet Member
Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services
Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools
Procurement Title
Provision of  Maintained Equipment Service 
Procurement Option
EU – Open Tender 
New or Existing Provision
Existing – the current contract expires on 31 March 2017.
Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
The estimated annual cost for arrangements for supply, installation and 
maintenance will be estimated at £1,500,000 . 
This is funded by the District Councils administered by the Disabled Facilities 
Grant (DFG).
Contract Duration
Initial period of 3 years with an option to extend the Agreement beyond the initial 
term, for any number of agreed periods, to a maximum of a further 2 years. The  
Agreement term will match the period of the current DFG funding commitment
Lotting
The Maintained Equipment Service will be separated into four lots. 

Lot 1  Stairlifts
Lot 2  Vertical through floor lifts
Lot 3  Ceiling track hoists
Lot 4  Specialist toilets

Evaluation

Quality Criteria 70% Financial Criteria 30%

Of which Social Value will form 5% of the quality criteria, the objective will be 
focused on promoting training and employment opportunities for the people of 
Lancashire. 
Contract Detail

Lancashire County Council provides a service to District Councils to supply, install 
and service equipment such as stairlifts and track hoists. In providing these services 
Lancashire County Council currently manages a number of supply and maintenance 
(service/repair) contracts, for the provision of large pieces of equipment that are 
funded by the District Councils through the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG).

The current contractual arrangements include purchase, installation and servicing 
with an initial warranty coverage of between 12 months and 5 years dependent upon 
the equipment type and funding district. The current contractual arrangements are 

Page 225

http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=128
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=858


Appendix A

due to end on 31 March 2017.

As there is a continuing requirement for maintained equipment and with the funding 
arrangements through the District Councils set to continue, a new Framework 
Agreement is needed to meet ongoing requirements. The new Agreement will have 
an initial term of three years with the option to extend for up to maximum period of 
a further two years. 

The Framework Agreement will cover initial purchase and subsequent servicing, 
repairs, parts, labour and emergency call out.  

The warranty for the equipment will be increased to cover a 10 year period and 
include all maintenance, service, and repair and call out requirements. This will 
provide the Council with reduced administration, servicing and maintenance costs.

Historical spend indicates that there will be an anticipated annual spend in excess 
of £1,500,000 with a total spend over the five year term of the Agreement of an 
estimated £7,500,000. The Framework Agreement will be put in place following the 
completion of a competitive tender procedure that will be compliant with the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015.

Arrangements for existing equipment where LCC retains responsibility for servicing 
maintenance and repairs will continue on a separate service contract.

Cabinet Member
Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services
Procurement Title
Provision of Crisis Service In Central Lancashire
Procurement Option
OJEU – Open Tender
New or Existing Provision
Existing – the current contracts will expire on 30th June 2017.

Page 226



Appendix A

Estimated Annual Contract Value and Funding Arrangements
The estimated annual cost to LCC is between £600,000 and £739,000, dependent 
upon the hourly rate of the successful tenderer.   Any additional cost to LCC will 
require further budgetary approval.

The annual contract value could increase up to £2,000,000 subject to continued 
CCG funding.

This is made up of: 

LCC Adult and Community Services Budget: £600,000 - £1,200,000
CCG funding: £0 – £800,000

Potential total contract value: £10,000,000. 

A range is given for the value as there will be flexibility for block hours to be varied 
in order to mitigate the impact of seasonal pressures or utilise varying funding 
provided by CCG's.

Contract Duration
Initial period of 2 years with an option to extend the contracts beyond the initial term, 
for any number of agreed periods, to a maximum of a further 3 years.

Lotting
This procurement represents the third Lot of the Lancashire-wide Crisis service. The 
procurement for the North and East Lancashire services have already been 
approved. 

Evaluation

Quality Criteria 60% Financial Criteria 40%

Of which Social Value will form 10% of the quality criteria, the objective will be 
focused on promoting training and employment opportunities for the people of 
Lancashire. 

Contract Detail
Crisis Services are a domiciliary care service providing support and care for adults 
in their own homes when an acute situation occurs and who without additional 
intensive support would normally be admitted to hospital or residential care. The 
goal is to enable the Service User to remain in his or her own home during the period 
in which support is required and to return to their previous independent state where 
possible. 

The principal aims of the Crisis Service are to:

i) Provide short-term personal care and practical support to enable Service 
Users to remain safe and secure in their own homes for as long as is practical 
and according to their wishes.

Page 227



Appendix A

    
ii) To provide a Service, which is responsive, reliable and flexible to meet the 

needs of Service Users, as identified throughout the period of intervention.

The services will be available 24 hours per day, 365 days per year. 

There is a much higher demand for Crisis Services in Central Lancashire than East 
and North Lancashire, due to the increased population. 

The contract will be let on a block purchase arrangement, with a minimum 
guaranteed level of hours per week. There will be flexibility for these block hours to 
be increased in order to mitigate the impact of seasonal pressures or utilise funding 
provided by CCG's.

Initially the contract will be let on the basis of 948 hours per week.  Dependent upon 
the hourly rate of the successful tenderer this will equate to an estimated annual 
cost in the range of £600,000 (based on an hourly rate of £12.17) to £739,000 
(based on an hourly rate of £15.00).

The existing Crisis and Rehabilitation Service contract for Central Lancashire has, 
for historical reasons, integrated crisis services with rehabilitation services. The 
crisis element of the contract will now be procured separately to the rehabilitation 
element. This procurement for the crisis Central Lancashire contract will be 
consistent with those services currently being procured for the East and the North 
of the County. 

The rehabilitation element of the current contract is intended to be incorporated into 
the forthcoming Reablement Services procurement, anticipated to be tendered in 
January 2017, with new contracts intended to commence July/August 2017. 

Page 228



Document is Restricted

Page 229

Agenda Item 9a
(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972.  It is considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)





Document is Restricted

Page 235

(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972.  It is considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)





Document is Restricted

Page 241

Agenda Item 9b
(NOT FOR PUBLICATION: By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972.  It is considered that all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information)




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016
	Lancashire County Council Executive Scrutiny Committee
	County Councillors
	1. Apologies
	2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary Interests
	3. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2016
	4. Reports for decision by Cabinet
	a. Pan Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Governance Arrangements
	b. Money Matters - 2016/17 Financial Position and Medium Term Financial Strategy
	5. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key Decisions
	a. Securing the Healthy Child Programme
	b. The Future of Ashton Community Science College's Post 16 Provision
	c. Assessment and Priority Policy for Public Transport in Lancashire
	d. Proposed Junction Improvements - Blackpool Road/Lea Road Preston
	e. Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises
	6. Urgent Business
	7. Date of Next Meeting
	8. Exclusion of Press and Public
	9. Report for Decision by Cabinet
	a. Cuerden Strategic Site Development
	10. Forthcoming Individual Cabinet Member Key Decisions
	a. Disposal of Winckley Square properties
	b. Disposal of the former Moor Lane Resource Centre, Moor Lane,

	4a The Annual Audit Letter for Lancashire County Council - Year Ended 31 March 2016
	Appendix A

	4b Money Matters - The Financial Strategy
	Appendix A - Money Matters 31st Dec 2016 Cabinet FINAL
	Appendix B - MTFS 31st Dec 2016 Cabinet FINAL
	Appendix C - Reserves 31st Dec 2016 Cabinet FINAL
	Appendix D - Capital Programme Monitoring FINAL v1
	Appendix E - Capital Programme FINAL

	4c Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000: Annual Report to Cabinet
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D (CCTV Policy 2017)

	5a Adult Social Care Fee Uplifts - 2017/18
	5b Schools Budget 2017/18
	Appendix A

	5c The University of Central Lancashire Masterplan and Associated Highway Modifications
	Appendix A
	PL1569.103-Highway Improvements Layout - reduced information (A0 OVERSIZE)
	Viewport-65
	key54
	key55
	key490
	Viewport-66
	key56



	5d Procurement Report - Request for Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises
	Appendix A

	9a Chorley Youth Zone - County Council Grant
	Appendix A

	9b Provision of PAT Testing Services to Lancashire County Council

